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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRE

Yi Xiaodi % /\i#
IERITES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Sunshine 100 China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | present the business review and outlook
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting
Period”).

Market Review

Since the large-scale real estate defaults in China in 2021, the entire
industry has faced unprecedented difficulties, decline, and adjustment.
By 2022, the state has introduced a series of macro policies to stabilize
land and housing prices and expectations, and the “bottom” of policy
adjustments has already appeared, but market volatility has not yet
ended. Although the performance of different local markets varies,
prices are stabilizing in general, sales are still declining, the land market
is cautious, bank loans and financing channels have not yet opened up,
and the fundamentals of real estate developers have not significantly
improved. Since the end of epidemic control at the end of the year,
consumption has improved significantly, and commercial real estate
has partially rebounded, especially the commercial leasing business.
In summary, the fundamentals of real estate developers have not
improved, market confidence needs to be restored, and the difficult
situation of the entire industry may continue for some time. The real
improvement of the real estate industry depends on greater support
from banks and credit policies, as well as the recovery of the macro
economy and the restoration of public purchasing confidence.

Chairman and Executive Director
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Business Review

The year 2022 is the most difficult and uncertain year for Sunshine
100. After the debt default in 2021, the entire Group faced a cash flow
crisis, resulting in a series of unprecedented chaos and difficulties,
including project suspensions, debt disputes, employee turnover,
customer complaints, and government intervention. However, in such
a difficult situation, all employees and management did not shrink back
to become discouraged, and did not adopt a non-responsible attitude.
After experiencing the initial shock for several months, the Company,
starting from its executives, actively faced creditors, governments,
construction parties and other partners, faced reality, and sought the
best solutions to solve problems and cooperate. After a year of effort
and dedication, the overall situation has finally stabilized, various
conflicts and crises have been resolved, and the Company and various
projects have gradually returned to normal operations, paving the way
for recovery and development, with the following main achievements:

1. Ensuring Delivery: Since the cash flow crisis started in 2021,
the Company has faced significant pressure to deliver projects
due to the gradual suspension of construction work. In 2022,
all projects actively promoted sales and raised funds while
seeking relief loans. We obtained a total of approximately
RMB510 million in relief loans throughout the year. With the
efforts and support of local governments, construction partners
and other parties, the delivery pressure was basically resolved.

2. Debt Negotiations: The year 2022 was also the year with the
most debt disputes for the Company. During this year, the
Company actively negotiated with construction partners to
stabilize their emotions by offering repayment with real estate
or goods, and installment payments, ensuring the consistent
completion of construction and delivery. At the same time,
we actively faced the debt pressure from various financial
institutions, negotiating for debt extension and other ways to
extend the debt. We reached a certain level of understanding
with important creditors, winning time for the Company to
resolve its difficulties.

3 Operational Management: In the situation of sharp sales decline
across all projects, the Group promptly initiated the operation
management of Commercial Street, Himalaya apartments,
and inventory properties, ensuring the continued operation of
Himalaya after delivery under the situation of fund shortage,
as well as good business environments for each commercial
street. Despite the shortage of funds and the serious impact
of the epidemic, the Group’s property income remained stable,
and its commercial operation area steadily increased.
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4. Cost Reduction: The year 2022 was also a year of continuous
cost reduction and staff streamlining for the Group. The fixed
costs of management and sales decreased significantly by
approximately 50% from the previous year. While significantly
reducing costs, the Company still maintained the stability of
key personnel, and the personnel streamlining plan for each
project was carried out in an orderly manner. At the same time,
the Company also strengthened the front-line operational staff,
ensuring further reinforcement in project leasing and sales
operations and preparing for further development in the future.

Despite the double effort made by all employees in the Company
during the year, the impact of the macro situation and debt defaults
resulted in a significant decrease in revenue and gross profit. Due to
the decline of the real estate market, the Company's large number
of inventory properties and self-owned commercial properties
also experienced varying degrees of impairment. As a result, the
Company's annual revenue was approximately RMB2,357.6 million,
and the net loss was approximately RMB3,317.0 million. Contracted
sales for the year also fell significantly, only completing approximately
RMB1,205 million, with 106,454 square meters of contracted sales
areas.

It is expected that the industry situation will not improve rapidly in
the next one or two years, and the Company’s losses will continue.
However, the loss is expected to gradually narrow, and we hope
to turn losses into profits and emerge from difficulties as soon as
possible by revitalizing existing projects.

Future Outlook

Looking ahead to the next year, we still face enormous difficulties
and challenges. In the next year or even the next few years, we will
continue to work hard to accomplish the following key tasks:

1. Reducing Debt: By revitalizing assets, attracting investment
to projects, and using some assets to offset debt, we will
optimize the value of existing projects and avoid disposing of
assets at low prices, hoping to repay as much debt as possible
and gradually reduce interest-bearing debt.

2. Ensuring Stability: We shall not only stabilize the emotions of
external creditors, seek more time to delay debt repayment
pressures, but also stabilize the internal core team, strengthen
our efforts to obtain more support from local governments,
and obtain some preferential policies (such as commercial-
to-residential conversion). We also need to stabilize our
relationships with customers and partners.

4. (REM: 2022FLREEFEHRER -
BEAEN—F  QAENERMEENEE
BERER L —FE KB TELD50% - EAER
EMAMAEE  ARNARBTEBAENR
E - HEMABRREHBBRERFNER
RIERK o R - N8 T —4EZABR N
E BREZREHEELLELABE—FE
ik - ROBE—TERMTERE -

BREE—FRAAZEBRCAETNES S BRZR
BREREBENTE  FERARIURERT
EFRETER  AREHETS M7 ARBEHK
EEFRAFERNEYE  FLRTRBEMNRE
MIESE N - REIEEWAAE2,357.6BE T FEIE
3,317.0B&7L ' 2FAHHELKRB TR  EXK
ARBEX1,206B 87T - & KHEEIEL106,454F 75
)Jﬁ °

BEIARK—MEF - (TEHB IS HRRETE - X
ERESKE BERBERERFHE  FEBA
RERARARBERBESR  EHRE -

KAREE

RERF - LIAULAERRE RN 2 R PREL - KK —
FHELFANEENTRIATEIGERTIE

1. WEE  BAEERE  HASIERBOE
B HREHBEEERLL #REEREER
E-UBMBESZHNEEER  BFRIABR
AafE-

2. RIBTE  BERRBEINBERANIGE - FE
FENERLEEERE  ARBEREA
BB EEM - MNoRFEE L e T BUT
NE - BEE—LEERRWARE) 2R
ERFRAEBHNRIE -

2022 FE®/E  BHIOREZBRERAR 7



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EREWE

3 Operational Management: The Company holds nearly 700,000
square meters of commercial properties with great potential.
By strengthening operations and increasing rental and various
operating income, we can not only stabilize our employee team
but also better maintain the Company's projects and brand
image.

4. Seeking Development: We will use various means to introduce
external cooperation, revitalize existing projects and inventory,
and use the advantages of commercial operations to output
management and cooperation and find new development
space.

After experiencing three years of the epidemic and unprecedented
industry and market pressures, although the Company has faced
multiple difficulties such as loss of performance, asset damage,
business difficulties, and staff turnover, the Group have maintained the
integrity of the overall project value and the stability of the core team.
Particularly, the performance of commercial operations continues to
grow steadily, and the Group's development potential and competitive
advantage still exist. We remain optimistic and hopeful about the
future, and believe that the most difficult times have passed. With the
market’s improvement and the continued efforts of all employees, we
hope to overcome difficulties soon and return to a normal development
track.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Group’s shareholders, investors, partners, customers,
employees and friends who care about Sunshine 100.

Chairman of the Board
Yi Xiaodi

8 SUNSHINE 100 CHINA HOLDINGS LTD 2022 Annual Report

3. EZ : RAKALETEFLTNEEY
¥ BERZEBENWE  MEEE - 27448
THEELLEWA - BRI URE 8 THE
WAIAR R EE R RIRE - MR -

4. WRERE THA  ZEITASIANLE
15 BERAER  BEERF  RAENAE
FELNED  BHEBRESE  KIFH
BRI ©

ERET=FRBERIMABNITRENSENZ
% BEARMBREEER BEXE XHXRK -
ABRKELZERYG - ERE2EEENRE T EEN
BREEENTEY  UREBBENRE  LEZ
BRELFANEREREER  KERRNEN
BE RRABZEMBEFNEE  HARKDNDARE
L8 RnFE  HERKRMENEACKBE  BE
M5 - RARZBRICEES S  FEFHEBREHE
B ELERERHE -

&% AANERRRADESTE  MALERRE &
BN BEBME  BFE - EINBOB1000BR
19 » BUARNRE -

EFETE
il



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEEE

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A3MBLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

IN-A-T=E vl AREEET AREBET AREBET AREKBER

Revenue WA 2,358 5,399 5,760 8,289 7,679

Gross profit EH 456 755 1,530 2,100 1,591

Profit before taxation BRELRTER (3,286) (3,794) 1,831 4,018 609

Income tax FrigHt (31) 64 (547) (803) (366)

Profit for the year FEaM (3.317) (3,730) 1,284 3,215 243
Total profit for the year IATEFEIEEE

attributable to: EAER -

— Equity shareholders of the —RNA B

Company (3,164) (3,673) 438 1,805 (30)

- Non-controlling interests — RS (153) (57) 846 1,410 273
Total comprehensive income for  FE 4 A W5 858

the year (3,350) (3,725) 1,296 3,212 225

As at 31 December
®12A31AH

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

N vl AREFEET AREBET ARKBERT ARKEER

Total assets BEMARE 52,383 56,356 60,958 58,395 61,452

Total liabilities BiEESE 48,397 49,021 48,788 46,647 51,844

Net assets BEHME 3,986 7,335 12,170 11,748 9,608
Total equity attributable to: AT EEER

BERER Y -

— Equity shareholders of the —AREEERE

Company 2,558 5,754 9,383 9,167 7,475

- Non-controlling interests — I 1,428 1,581 2,787 2,581 2,133

Total equity REmAEE 3,986 7,335 12,170 11,748 9,608

2022 FERE

F% 100 B XA R A A
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEIHE

Revenue

A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEIWE S

Contracted sales

During the Reporting Period, the Group (including light-asset operation
projects) realized contracted sales of RMB1,205.0 million, representing
a decrease of 62.6% from 2021, and contracted sales area of 106,454
square metres, representing a decrease of 63.9% from 2021.
Moreover, the Group’s average unit price for contracted sales was
RMB9,422 per square metre, representing a decrease of 7.9% from
2021. Approximately 80.4% of the contracted sales amount was
generated from the Bohai Rim and Midwest regions, among which,
Jinan Sunshine 100 International New Town and Liuzhou Sunshine
100 Xinye Town projects contributed significantly, with the contracted
sales being RMB219.5 million and RMB238.5 million, respectively,
accounting for 18.2% and 19.8% of the Group’s total contracted sales,
respectively.

Breakdown of contracted sales of the Group by geographic location
during the Reporting Period is as follows:

ko)

RBEA - AEE(EREEEZHB)EHAL
HESHEARE,205.08 8T @ 2021 F =R
62.6% : BIRALIHEEIE106,454F 75K » 2021
FERMAD63.9%  ItHh  NEBFIHELHEEEER
ANR#9,42278 /F K » 20215/ L7.9% ° A&
HISHESFBAIB0.4% R EARIRE ST LS » Erhif
S Y100 BEBRF M R MMM BB B EREE - &
HRES BN R AARE21958 8T ARK238.5
BEL DAMEASERENEESEMNI82% K
19.8% ©

REBAARREMNSOHERICRBI D BERLT

For the 12 months ended 31 December 2022
#F2020512A310 L+ fER

Contracted sales area  Contracted sales amount  Unit selling price

(square metres) (RMB million) # (RMB/square metres) "
RNNETR AHHEST Ef
Economic area City Project name (FHH)" (AEWERT)" (7 FHR)"
#HER B RA4R A B B o
Bohai Rim Shenyang Shenyang Sunshine 100 International New Town
R08 a5 EGEH 1002555 5,033 11,326 50.6 1250 8,637 9,636
Shenyang Sunshine 100 Golf Mansion
EHER100REAE 271 5,109 34 403 6,278 7311
Jinan Jinan Sunshine 100 International New Town
il EEER100ER 8150 18584 2195 4379 24661 20719
Dongying Dongying Sunshine 100 Phoenix Community
Re 21531008 84t 782 766 52 25 6,507 4517
Weifang Weifang Sunshine 100 Phoenix Community
i3 51008 B4t 700 8,082 145 63.0 7,191 7,101
Tianjin Tianjin Sunshine 100 Nankai Himalaya
R REERI0EREFLE 90 2,350 37 508 24507 18715
Tianjin Sunshine 100 Tianta Himalaya
REGHI0KEEHHE -82 126 11 -1.1 43,828 55,983
Tianjin Sunshine 100 Interational New Town
ARG F 1008 - 81 6.8 15 - 7,000
Yantai Yantai Sunshine 100 Himalaya
& EaE100E 5% 987 25335 109 29456 9896 11570
Chengde Sunshine 100 Beijing Arles
e B 1003t RAVAES) 1,105 379 69 437 6132 11519
Sub-total
it 1702 74,021 3204 10472 15931 12,95

2022 FEHE BrioohEEBAERAR 11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEHEMNRR SR
For the 12 months ended 31 December 2022
BE202512A310.L+=@A
Contracted sales area Contracted sales amount  Unit selling price
(square metres) (RMB million) @ (RMB/square metres) "
ANBEER ANHESR ER
Economic area City Project name (F5R)" (ARWERT) (%/FHR)"
HEER s HE%R 2021 201 2021
Yangtze River Delta Wuxi Wuxi Sunshine 100 Arles
k=f B35 EHER100MAS 438 8409 1345 1115 23,887 7327
Wuxi Sunshine 100 Himalaya
EEEHI0ESLE 2,923 2,955 355 34.6 12,154 11,703
Wenzhou Sunshine 100 Wenzhou Center
et 100 L 541 8,09 112 1335 15,405 15,708
Wenzhou Sunshine 100
Adesi/E 100 &8 305 20575 34 2349 199 11107
Changzhou Changzhou Sunshine 100 Zone 7 Up-east Side
B EMBERI1007ELE -161 -494 32 450 14440 36767
Yixing Yixing Sunshine 100 Phoenix Street
ER HEG 100884 759 - -103 23 15039 -
Sub-total
U] 3,281 39,541 17141 501.8 12,532 10,969
Pearl River Delta Qingyuan Qingyuan Sunshing 100 Arles
%=f R EERR100MRES 14,626 4575 65.4 322 4,396 6818
Sub-total
it 14,626 4,575 65.4 322 4,396 6,818
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERE TR R S
For the 12 months ended 31 December 2022
HE202%12A310.E+=@A
Contracted sales area Contracted sales amount  Unit selling price
(square metres) (RMB million) @ (RMB/square metres)
SNRETH ANHELT ER
Economic area City Project name (F5R)" (ARRERT) (%/FHR)"
BEER B HE%H m 2021 2021 2021
Midwest Wuhan Wuhan Sunshine 100 Lakeside Residence
ki HE HEBXI100KHE 358 -244 5.1 0.1 9,684 13,965
Wuhan Sunshine 100 Phoenix Street
HEBX100BEE 2,760 30,178 323 369.2 10,984 12,156
Chongging Chongging Sunshine 100 Arles
£ ERBL100MEE 3,320 23,076 453 3262 13,513 13,957
Changsha Changsha Sunshine 100 Phoenix Street
- EDBH 1008 B4 - 2,386 14 309 - 10,280
Liuzhou Liuzhou Sunshine 100 Yaobu Town
Ll MG 100ZBTOWN 419 2,187 48 215 9,988 9,735
Liuzhou Sunshine 100 City Plaza
NG 1008 T ES 222 2,764 3.8 19.3 6,800 5,237
Liuzhou Sunshine 100 Xinye Town ©
MAB 1005 £ 24,673 31,356 2385 3089 9,666 9,850
Chengdu Chengdu Sunshine 100 Mia Center
m# HAGH100KER L -45 179 14 51 10487 3802
Nanning Nanning Sunshine 100 Up-east Side International
HE BEBH 100 L RER - 11,066 36 793 -6
Nanning Sunshine 100 Nine Peninsulas ©
HER 1000 EEEY 13,750 36,526 100.6 2359 1214 6,458
Wuzhou Wuzhou Sunshine 100 Sankee City®)
M BB 100=250 20,031 28557 100.9 164.4 4,992 5,480
Lijiang Lijiang Sunshine 100 COART Village
Bl EIBR100Z L E 6,008 7,948 104.5 735 17,386 9,251
Xi'an Xi'an Sunshine 100 Arles
i AR 100MEE) - 953 2.7 13.9 - 9,085
Guilin Pingle Sunshine 100 Li River Cultural Village
i) LB 1008 3L - 161 - 18 - 11,188
Sub-total
it 71499 176,735 648.1 16398 8,756 9,007
Total
#it 106,454 294872 12050 32210 9422 10227
Notes: Htat -
(1) Excluding car parks (1) TEEHEE
(2)  Including car parks (2) BIEBEE
(3)  Being light-asset operation projects (3) AREEELEA

2022 EEHE  BrioohEEBEERAT 13



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Breakdown of contracted sales of the Group by type of business
during the Reporting Period is as follows:

Contracted sales area

REERETRERANESAHEIRERE
T

|53 185 40

For the 12 months ended 31 December 2022
#E2022F12A310L+={BA

Contracted sales amount Unit selling price

(square metres) (RMB million) @ (RMB/square metre)
ANMEER RMESH BR

Type (FHH) (AR¥WEET) (7T FH¥)0
i) 2021 2021 2021
Residential properties £ 75699 175055 626.0 23316 8,269 13,318
Commercial properties and car parks ERNERER 30,755 119,817 579.0 889.4 12,261 12,076
Total it 106,454 294,872 1,205.0 3,221.0 9,422 10,227
Proportion it
Residential properties =2 7% 59% 52% 72%
Commercial properties and car parks BRNEREE 29% 1% 48% 28%
Total it 100% 100% 100% 100%
Notes: Hat -
(1) Excluding car parks (1 T EFEHE
(2)  Including car parks (2) BREEE
Property Construction MEEE

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no newly started
construction area, representing a decrease of 100% from 2021. The
completed GFA was 298,038 square metres, representing a decrease
of 62.9% from 2021. The total GFA under construction was 3,484,961
square metres at the end of the Reporting Period, representing a
decrease of 11.8% from 2021. The decrease was mainly due to the

need to maintain the Group's liquidity.

14 SUNSHINE 100 CHINA HOLDINGS LTD
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

T B R R 2

The property construction of the Group during the Reporting Period is as

follows:

AEBENARERANDEZEBRDOT -

For the 12 months ended 31 December 2022
#BE2022F12A31H 1L+ =R

Total GFA under
construction as at the

Newly-started total Completed total GFA end of the period
GFA (square metres) (square metres) (square metres)
Economic area City FRAIREEERE BRIMEEEE HREEEEEEE
RER W (FEFHXK) (FEFK) (FEFHK)
Bohai Rim Jinan
S ke - - -
Shenyang
el - - 94,349
Weifang
Y - - 195,134
Yantai
ZEa - - 328,917
Chengde
R - - 166,817
Tianjin
RE - - -
Sub-total
gt = - 785,217
Yangtze River Delta Wuxi
r=A 5 - - 208,532
Wenzhou
BN - - 877,390
Sub-total
et - - 1,085,922
Pearl River Delta Qingyuan
BR=A B - 14,314 38,107
Sub-total
et - 14,314 38,107
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERHRR S
For the 12 months ended 31 December 2022
#BE2022F12A31H L+ A
Total GFA under
construction as at the
Newly-started total Completed total GFA end of the period
GFA (square metres) (square metres) (square metres)
Economic area City FRIREERRE BRIMNEEEE HREEEEEERE
REREE W (FEFHXK) (FEFBXK) (FEFHXK)
Midwest Chongging
P Es B=E - 19,687 154,974
Yueyang
&5 - - 82,552
Guilin
FEAR - - 31,960
Nanning
MmE - 132,130 158,699
Liuzhou
0N - - 261,908
Wuzhou
= - 28,137 370,751
Xi'an
(S - - 238,981
Wuhan
FUE - 102,010 248,001
Lijiang
BT - 1,760 27,889
Sub-total
Pt - 283,724 1,575,715
Total
#ast - 298,038 3,484,961
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEMNRR SR
Breakdown of major properties EFEMERN
Expected
completion ~ Completion Saleable GFA
dateof ~ progressof  remaining  GFA under Our
properties properties unsold development Planned GFA attributable
Economic Project under under (square (square (square interest in
area City Project Address type development development!® metres) metres) metres) the project
BEY BRh ERIMKA BE% it | 550
L WERI ERRER 2 BEER 0 RREW  REAEW
BEEE WA 5H it FRRY RIRMY EE"  (FHR) (FHK)  (FAHR) ] ¥
Bohai Rim ~ Jinan Jinan Sunshine 100 No. 19 Yangguang New Road, Huaiyin 112,145 - - 49.00%

International New Town  District, Jinan City, Shandong Province

RiE W EERRI00ER  IREERTRERSEHR19% = =

Phase | Residential 4,746 - -
-8 frz
Phase Residential Y/A] - -
- frz
Phase Il Residential 15,162 - -
=i frz
Phase IV Residential 49773 - -
M frz
Phase V Residential 22,097 - -
it frz
Phase VI Residential 80% 19,644 - -
i frz
Shenyang  Shenyang Sunshing 100 Yuhong New Town, Yuhong District, 114,852 48529 229,759 100.00%

International New Town  Shenyang City, Liaoning Province
25 EBERI0ERI  EELRR TR R

Phase | Composite 22530 - -

—H A

Phase Il Composite 51,238 - -

-5 &Fa

Phase |l Composite 2024 90% 41,084 48529 229,759

=4 78

Shenyang Sunshing 100 No. 18 Qi Hao Street, Economics and 33,637 20,083 15,310 51%

Golf Mansion Technology Development District,

Shenyang City, Liaoning Province
EEGRI0RENE  EEEERTEERIRRELRE 8%

Phase | Composite 12,426 20,083 -
—H 58
Phase Il Residential 21211 - -
-8 iz
Phase Il Residential - - 15,310
= iz
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHERR 7
Expected
completion ~ Completion Saleable GFA
dateof  progressof  remaining  GFA under Our
properties properties unsold development Planned GFA attributable
Economic Project under under (square (square (square interestin
area City Project Address type development development® metres) metres) metres) the project
BRY BRY BRIMKH BE il 350
YRR YERI EREER 2 BRER 00 RRER  RMEEY
SEEY WA RH ot FRER B IRE" R (FHK) (AR (FAHK) ] £
Tianjin Tianjin Sunshine 100 Hongai South Road, Nankai District, 16,179 - - 86.00%
International New Town  Tianjin City
px RAGRI0ER  RETERRAERA
Phase | Composite 7328
—H )
Phase [I Composite -
i &R
Phase Il Composite 7891
-5 )
Phase [V Residential 266
u:é fiz
Phase V Composite 693
it )
Tianjin Sunshine 100 West of Honggi Road and North of Composite 13,064 - - 100.00%
Nankai Himalaya Chuxiong Road, Nankai District,
Tianjin City
Rl 1008H REMRRELEARE BHELA  &E 71%
ESNE
Tianjin Sunshine 100 Intersection of Weijin South Road and ~ Composite 2022 61,842 - 80.00%
Tianta Himalaya Tianta Road, Nankai District, Tianjin City
KGR 100KE RETRRESEERENSERND A - -
ESNE
Dongying ~ Dongying Sunshing 100 No. 248 North 1st Road, Dongying District, ARy, - - 100.00%
City Garden Dongying City, Shandong Province
RE RERAI0ATEE  LRERETRERL 6%
Phase | Residential 2,692 - -
—H fiz
Phase II Composite 5,708 - -
i )
Phase Il Composite 32718 - -
-8 )
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERE TR R S
Expected
completion ~ Completion Saleable GFA
dateof  progressof  remaining  GFA under Our
properties properties unsold development Planned GFA attributable
Economic Project under under (square (square (square interestin
area City Project Address type development development!® metres) metres) metres) the project
R BRYT ERIMKH BEF Rl 3]
R YERI EREER 2 RBRER 00 BRER  RMEEY
BEEE  HA 5 b} FRER BIRE" R (FAHK) (AR (AR i £
Weifang ~ Weifang Sunshine 100 No. 5051 Shengli East Street, Kuiwen 40572 111,847 362,748 100.00%
City Plaza District, Weifang City, Shandong
Province
i) BABR0ETES  LREEIIENERBHRERH
Phase | Composite 22491 - -
—H Fa
Phase [l Composite 18,082 - -
i Fa
Phase Ill Composite 2023 - 111,847 -
-5 Fa
Phase IV Composite - - 229,955
i &Fa
Phase V Composite - - 80,721
il Fa
Phase VI Composite - - 52,071
i Fa
Chengde ~ Sunshine 100 Beijng ~ Near Xinglong West Station, Xinglong - 158405 - 71.20%
Arles County, Chengde City, Hebei Province
E BrIOtROMES  AleREnREERRRLE
Phase | Composite 2024 25% - 60,923 -
—H Fa
Phase Il Composite 2025 17% - 97482 -
i &Fa
Yantai Yantai Sunshing100 No. 25-27 Haigang Road, Zhifu District, 31,720 318,564 - 100.00%
Himalaya Yantai City, Shandong Province
28 BaBri0EEaE  WREEATIREEERL-27H
Phase | Composite 31,720 - -
—H Fa
Phase II Composite 2024 29% - 318,564 -
i &Fa
Subtotal 465,129 657,428 607,816
it
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHERR 7
Expected
completion ~ Completion Saleable GFA
dateof  progressof  remaining  GFA under Our
properties properties unsold development Planned GFA attributable
Economic Project under under (square (square (square interestin
area City Project Address type development development® metres) metres) metres) the project
BRY BRY BRIMKH BE il 350
YRR YERI EREER 2 BRER 00 RRER  RMEEY
SEEY WA RH ot FREFY B IRE" R (FHK) (AR (FAHK) ] £
Midwest ~ Wuhan ~ Wuhan Sunshing 100 No. 2 Yanggiaohu Avenue, Canglong ~ Composite 101,355 - - 100.00%
Lakeside Residence Island, Jiangxia District, Wuhan City,
Hubei Province
Gl | HE REGRIOKEE AR ETIERERSARINEN Ga
Wuhan Sunshing 100 Qixin Village, Zhifang Street, Jiangxia 20,844 174,876 - 100.00%
Phoenix Street District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province
REGXI00BEE  MtARERIRRAGEELN
Phase | Composite 2023 80% 20,844 2,990 -
— )
Phase [I Composite 2023 63% - 65,744 -
i )
Phase Il Composite 2023 46% - 20519 -
-8 &R
Phase [V Composite 2023 39% - 85,623 -
i Fa
Xi'an Xi'an Sunshine 100 Arles  No. 3501 Chanhe West Road, Chanba - 66,230 402,206 100.00%
Ecological District, Xilan City, Shaanxi
Province
ER EZBRI0MEY  HEARETERLARETARI0E
Phase | Residential 2022 87% - 28519 -
—H fiz
Phase Il Residential 2024 - 10,664 366,731
-4 fre
Phase Ill Residential 2024 - 27,057 35,475
= fre
Chongging  Chongging Sunshine No. 163 Yunan Road, Banan District, 57,333 91,996 - 80.00%
100 Arles Chongging City
il ERGHIOMAS  EEACHEAEAE163%
Zone A Residential 2022 88% 23,100 31,107 -
AE fiz
Zone B Composite 2023 7% 34,233 60,889 -
BE )
Chengdu  Chengdu Sunshing 100 No. 6 Wugui Road, Chenghua District, ~ Composite 55,435 - - 100.00%
Mia Center Chengdu City, Sichuan Province
5 RAGRI00KERL  WIERSTRERRERER TR

20 SUNSHINE 100 CHINA HOLDINGS LTD

2022 Annual Report



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERE TR R S
Expected
completion ~ Completion Saleable GFA
dateof  progressof  remaining  GFA under Our
properties properties unsold development Planned GFA attributable
Economic Project under under (square (square (square interestin
area City Project Address type development development!® metres) metres) metres) the project
R BRYT ERIMKH BEF Rl 3]
R YERI EREER 2 RBRER 00 BRER  RMEEY
HEEY WA RH b} FRER BIRE" R (FAHK) (AR (AR i £
Changsha ~ Changsha Sunshine 100 No. 518 Section One, 2nd South Ring 170,166 - - 100.00%
International New Town  Road, Yuelu District, Changsha City,
Hunan Province
&Y ROBRIOEENS  AEEROTEERR-_R-2518%
Phase | Composite 23,848 - -
—H &a
Phase [I Composite 41,14 - -
i &Fa
Phase Il Composite 15,478 - -
i Fa
Phase IV Residential 2% 89,099 - -
i fix
Yueyang  Yueyang Hansen Project  No. 1 Baling West Road, Yueyang City, ~ Composite 10% - 82,562 - 51.00%
Hunan Province
&5 FRENER Bt ERTERER IR Fa - -
Guilin Guilin Sunshine 100 Pingle Town, Pingle County, Guilin City, 14,01 15479 94115 100.00%
Lijiang Project Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
i) EHGHI0RKEL  ERAGEAEANT TEETEE
Phase | Composite 2022 81% 2,19% 15,479 -
— Fa
Phase Il Residential 86% 11,216 - -
-8 fixz
Phase Il Composite 79% - - 4434
-5 Fa
Phase IV Commercial - - 39,152
] EES
Phase V Composite - - 50,629
il &Fa
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHERR 7
Expected
completion ~ Completion Saleable GFA
dateof  progressof  remaining  GFA under Our
properties properties unsold development Planned GFA attributable
Economic Project under under (square (square (square interestin
area City Project Address type development development® metres) metres) metres) the project
BRY BRY BRIMKH BE il 350
YRR YERI EREER 2 BRER 00 RRER  RMEEY
SEEY WA R it FRER B IRE" R (FHK) (AR (FAHK) ] £
Guilin Sunshing 100 Ertang Township, Xiangshan District, 61% - 16,355 455,262 100.00%
Scape Project Guilin City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region
Al 100ER ERRERRENTR LR RS
Phase | Commercial 2022 - 16,355 11873
—H B
Phase I Commercial - - 195,434
ot R
Phase Il Commercial - - 137,940
=i [
Phase IV Commercial - - 110,015
i RS
Liuzhou  Liuzhou Sunshing 100 No. 2 Guizhong Avenue, Liuzhou City, 141,271 - - 100.00%
City Plaza Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
i WNGRI08TES  EREAKSREMNTES B
Phase |- Phase [V Composite 141,271 - -
—HEmE )
Liuzhou Sunshing 100 No. 29, Xijiang Road, Liuzhou City, Composite - 195,990 - 49.00%
Xinye Town Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
INGRI00MES  EEAREREDNTRIROR )
Liuzhou Sunshing 100 No. 9 Panlong Road, Liuzhou City, 102,482 - - 100.00%
Yaobu Town Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
WHGH100ZETOWN  ERMKEAEMNHEERIR
Phase | Composite 44675 - -
—H )
Phase [I Composite 47,300 - -
i )
Phase Il Composite 10,508 - -
-8 Fa
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B R R 2

Expected
completion ~ Completion Saleable GFA
dateof  progressof  remaining  GFA under Our
properties properties unsold development Planned GFA attributable
Economic Project under under (square (square (square interestin
area City Project Address type development development!® metres) metres) metres) the project

BEP BRT ERIMAH BRm il 550
hEF WREI EREER 2 BEER 0 BEER  REER

BEEE  HA 5 b} FRER BIRE" g (FAHK) (AR (AR i £
Nanning ~ Nanning Sunshine 100 No. 63-1 Minzu Avenue, Nanning City, ~ Composite 5,140 - 99,152 100.00%
City Plaza Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
S HEBRI0ATES ERAREAEEENREAES-T &A
Nanning Sunshine No. 166 Minzu Avenue, Nanning City, ~ Composite 32,640 - - 26.01%
100 Up-east Side Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
International
HEBRI0LRER  ERAREAEEENREAEIGN &A
Nanning Vantone Air No. 80 Renmin West Road, Nanning City, Composite 2,752 = - 100.00%
Garden Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
NEEETNIE EEARARERETARERY &4
Nanning Sunshine 100 No. 1-2 Yinghua Road, Nanning City, ~ Composite 2533 - - 100.00%

Mountainside Garden ~ Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
HEBRIHLER  ERAREAEEENAER-E &4

Nanning Sunshine 100 No. 8 Qingshan Road, Nanning City, ~ Composite 388 - - 100.00%
Australian Garden Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region

HEBRIORNER  ERAREAERENELKSH )

Nanning Sunshine 100 No. 63-1 Minzu Avenue, Nanning City, ~ Residential - - - 100.00%
European Garden Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region

BERLINESER  EELRSABRETREAE-IE 4%

Nanning Sunshine 100 Wuhua Avenue Middle, Wuming 111,19 131,707 850,051 30.00%
Nine Peninsulas District, Nanning City, Guangxi Zhuang

Autonomous Region

HEBRIONELE  ERMKERERETRBENE

RNERG
Phase | Composite 89% 39,510 - -
—H Fa
Phase [I Composite 91% 14,075 - -
i Fa
Phase Il Composite 1% 57612 12,340 -
= Fa
Phase IV Composite - 119,367 508,152
e &Fa
Phase V Residential - - 68435
il iz
Phase VI Residential - - 162,130
A iz
Phase VIl Residential - - 111,334
tH iz
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHERR 7
Expected
completion ~ Completion Saleable GFA
dateof  progressof  remaining  GFA under Our
properties properties unsold development Planned GFA attributable
Economic Project under under (square (square (square interestin
area City Project Address type development development® metres) metres) metres) the project
BRY BRY BRIMKH BE il 350
YRR YERI EREER 2 BRER 00 RRER  RMEEY
SEEY WA RH ot FRER B IRE" R (FHK) (AR (FAHK) ] £
Wuzhou ~ Wuzhou Sunshing 100 No. 38 Xinglong Road, Changzhou 290,007 310487 743,106 21.75%
Sankee City District, Wuzhou City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region
Tl EMBE100=45 ERtEREARENTRNE
FRER 305
Phase | Composite 286,419 117,69 743,106
—H )
Phase II Residential 3,568 192,791 -
5 fiz
Lijiang Lijiang Sunshine 100 Kaiwen Community and Longguan Commercial 2024 82% 9,354 27,889 229,965 51.00%
COART Village Community, Shuhe Street, Liiang City,
Yunnan Province
Bl BIGHI0ZLENE ER4BINRTEER N BRIE &%
Subtotal 1116908 1113560 2,873,857
gt
Yangtze River Wuxi Wuxi Sunshing 100 Arles No. 1 Tianyi New Street, Xizhang, Yangiao 176,479 145,437 - 100.00%
Delta Town, Huishan District, Wuxi City,
Jiangsu Province
Eof 57 BARLIOOMEY  IHeRETELERBERER-
b
Phase | - Phase IX Composite 172,448 - -
—HENH )
Phase X Composite 98% 4,031 54,791 -
5 &R
Phase XI Composite 2023 66% - 84,697 -
- &R
Phase XII Commercial 2023 - 5,949 -
+-4 Bx
Wuxi Sunshine 100 No. 100, Lide Road, Binhu District, Composite 2021 46,925 = - 100.00%
Himalaya Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province
BARI0ERAE  IHELESTENEIEE00% )
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERHWE S
Expected
completion ~ Completion Saleable GFA
dateof  progressof  remaining  GFA under Our
properties properties unsold development Planned GFA attributable
Economic Project under under (square (square (square interestin
area City Project Address type development development!® metres) metres) metres) the project
R BRYT ERIMKH BEF Rl 3]
R YERI EREER 2 RBRER 00 BRER  RMEEY
BEEE  HA 5 b} FRER BIRE" R (FAHK) (AR (AR i £
Yixing Yixing Sunshine 100 East Jiefang Road, Chengdong New ~ Commercial 27761 - - 80.00%
Phoenix Street District, Yixing City, Jiangsu Province
ER EEGHI0EES  THEEETHRIBEIGE R
Wenzhou  Sunshine 100 Wenzhou  Binjiang Qidu, Lucheng District, Wenzhou 4,610 216,521 131,227 100.00%
Center City, Zhejiang Province
patl B I00RMAL HIARNTRIERIH
Phase | (C) Residential 4,610 - -
(0] fiz
Phase Il (A) Residential 2024 66% - 216,521 -
—HNE fiz
Phase II (B) Commercial 20% - - 131,227
—HBE Bx
Wenzhou Sunshine 100 Yangyi Road, Lucheng District, 71,247 332,832 133,749 100.00%
Arles Wenzhou City, Zhejiang Province
BHEHI0MES RIS TREENELE
Phase | (A11 parce) Residential 33,206 - -
—Hn1gs) fiz
Phase II (A02 parcel) Residential 99% - 99,111 -
ZH02t) fiz
Phase II (A3 parcel) Composite 44,020 - -
ZH(A03itHR) Fa
Phase II (A5 parcel) Residential 2023 55% - 85,705 -
ZH(A05i%) fiz
Phase II (A7 parcel) Composite 2024 44% - 148,016 -
ZH(A07itHR) Fa
Phase Il (A16 parcel) Composite 44% - - 33875
ZH(n6itHR) Fa
Phase II (B0 parcel) Commercial 47143
ZHBoot) £k
Phase Il (C04 parcel) Commercial - - 18,535
ZH(cositR) R
Phase Il (C08 parcel) Commercial - - 34,19
ZH(Cositp) £
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHERR 7
Expected
completion ~ Completion Saleable GFA
dateof  progressof  remaining  GFA under Our
properties properties unsold development Planned GFA attributable
Economic Project under under (square (square (square interestin
area City Project Address type development development® metres) metres) metres) the project
BEY BRY BRIMKH BE il 350
WRAi YERI EREER 2 BRER 00 RRER  RMEEY
SEEY WA RH ot FREFY B IRE" R (FHK) (AR (FAHK) ] £
Changzhou  Changzhou Sunshine 100 East of Dongcheng Road and North Composite 52,106 - - 51.00%
7th District Up-east of Dongfang East Road, Economic
Development Zone, Changzhou City,
Jiangsu Province
Bl EHBRI0RLR  IBERNTEEREERARRE. &A
RARELH
Subtotal 385,127 694,790 264,976
it
Pearl River ~ Qingyuan  Qingyuan Sunshine 100 No. N24 Area, Po Keng Lian Tai Industry 181,169 - 21192 55.00%
Delta Arles City, Long Tang Town, Qing Cheng
District, Qingyuan City, Guangdong
Province
%=f B BEGHIOMAY  ERAEENAEREERAEEIE
HINUEE
Phase | Composite 30,887 - -
— )
Phase II Composite 98430 - 100
i &R
Phase Il Composite 94% 9226 - -
-8 &R
Phase [V Composite 42,625 - -
i &R
Phase V Composite - - 78958
it &R
Phase VI Residential - - 142,134
i fiz
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B R R 2

Expected
completion ~ Completion Saleable GFA
dateof  progressof  remaining  GFA under Our
properties properties unsold development Planned GFA attributable
Economic Project under under (square (square (square interestin
area City Project Address type development development!® metres) metres) metres) the project

BEP BRT ERIMAH BRm il 550
hEF WREI EREER 2 BEER 0 BEER  REER
EEES W RE it RERY BIRRE" g5 (FHR) FhR) (FAR) Ll £

Qingyuan Yingde Project  North of Zhenyang Three Road and Composite 2023 28% - 38,107 - 55.00%
East of Yinglan Monitoring Station,
Yingcheng Street, Yingde City,
Qingyuan City, Guangdong Province

ERAEER ERABEMABTRNAEER =R &4
Dt - BRERE
Subtotal 181,169 38,107 221,192
It
Total 2148332 2503885 3,967,841
&t
Note: Ktat -

(1) Expected completion date and completion progress are applicable to (1) BARIKBRTIEZEAREERTRYDE W1
properties under development, but not applicable to those completed HEARERIYESGFEYE - .
or to be developed.

(2)  The total GFA of completed investment properties is not included in (2) ERIZEREVELEZEDBRABREELEAN B
this table and has been deducted. k-

(3)  Completion progress represents the overall completion progress as (3) FZTI#EERMR-_ZFT__F+-_RA=+—HzZ#&EA&
at 31 December 2022. FTIH#E -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

T B &R B 5

Investment Properties

During the Reporting Period, the GFA of investment properties of
the Group increased by 8,358 square metres. In the meantime, the
GFA of the Group's investment properties, both completed and under
construction, was 633,816 square metres. Moreover, the Group's

RAEMR

rental income for the Reporting Period was RMB162.3 million,
representing an decrease of 15.9% as compared with 2021.

633,816 K ° B -
R#162.3BE 7T * B2021F [fE15.9% °

ARERA - NREBERE Y EELMIEIL NG, 358
FHAK HECEURERTREMEZEEE
AREHN - H2BABA

Breakdown of Investment Properties it ELE
Economic
area City Project Address Use Leasing period
REES b EH Hht B #1
Bohai Rim Tianjin Tianjin Sunshine 100 International ~ Hongai South Road, Nankai District, Tianjin ~ Commercial Short, medium and
New Town City long term
b4 xE K25 10085375 REhERRAEREE % P RH
Tianjin Sunshine 100 Nankai West of Hongai Road and North of Chuxiong Commercial Medium and long
Himalaya Road, Nankai District, Tianjin City term
KEEX1008HAZFARE KEMAFREAERAR - BEELE % F R
Shenyang Shenyang Sunshine 100 yuhong New Town, Yuhong District, Kindergarten Long term
International New Town Shenyang City, Liaoning Province
&5 IG5 100B 3T FERRG T TRE T HEE =31
Commercial Short, medium and
long term
G B &
Jinan Jinan Sunshine 100 International No.19 Yangguang New Road, Huaiyin Kindergarten Long term
New Town District, Jinan City, Shandong Province
e BRI % 1 00E B AT ISR & B MR 5 375 195 HHEE R
Commercial Short, medium and
long term
L B &H
Yantai Yantai Sunshine 100 City Plaza No.25-27 Haigang Road, Zhifu District, Office Short, medium and
Yantai City, Shandong Province long term
& EalEt 1000 mES LREEATERESHEK25-275 BTig BefRH
Commercial Short, medium and
long term
[EES Bef&H
Weifang Weifang Sunshine 100 Phoenix No.5051 Shengli East Street, Kuiwen District, Commercial Short, medium and
Community Weifang City, Shandong Province long term
i sk 100B B4t RE Y 2= X R B AR E750515% [GES o R
Dongying Dongying Sunshine 100 Phoenix ~ No.248 North 1st Road, Dongying District, ~ Commercial Medium and long
Community Dongying City, Shandong Province term
RE 2[5 1008 B4t IRERETRERIL—FR2485% LS RE
Kindergarten Long term
R &
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B R R 2

Economic
area City Project Address Use Leasing period
BEES b HH b B# HH
Midwest Changsha Changsha Sunshine 100 Phoenix ~ No.518 Section One * 2nd South Ring Road, Commercial Medium and long
Street Yuelu District, Changsha City, Hunan term
Province
R =9/ RO 1008 B WHERSTERBEA R —R518% HE F o RHE
Chengdu Chengdu Sunshine 100 Mia Centre  No.6 Wugui Road, Chenghua District, Commerecial Short, medium and
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province long term
] AR Y 100K B ) M)l R M A E R K6 [EES 2esRE
Wuhan \Wuhan Sunshine 100 Lakeside No.2 Yanggiaohu Avenue, Canglong Island,  Commercial Long term
Residence Jiangxia District, Wuhan City, Hubei
Province
HE BER 100K WA REMIERFREHBEES, &% R
Wuhan Sunshine 100 Phoenix Qixin Village, Zhifang Street, Jiangxia District, Commercial Under development
Street Wuhan City, Hubei Province
REGX100E B MR EMIERASEEON G Zige
Nanning Naning Sunshine 100 Upper East ~ No.166 Minzu Avenue, Nanning City, Commercial Short term
Side International Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
BE BEGH100 L REE BB AREENRKAE1665 [GES gkt

Nanning Sunshine 100
Mountainside Garden

HERBH 100 ILER

Nanning Sunshine 100 City Plaza

No.1-2 Yinghua Road, Nanning City, Guangxi Commercial
Zhuang Autonomous Region

ERRERREETEER-25% S =

No.63-1 Minzu Avenue, Nanning City, Commercial medium term
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region

ERAKE AR EETREAES-15% [GES Fist

Long term

HEB 1000 T ES

Guangxi Vantone Air Garden No.80 Renmin West Road, Nanning City, Commercial Short, medium and
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region long term

ERERERTE BAitkE R REEN ARERS0R GRS gome R

Nanning Sunshine 100 European ~ No.63-1 Minzu Avenue, Nanning City, Commercial Long term

Garden
HEBHI00BSER

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region

ERL B AREETREAB63-15% GES R4

Nanning Sunshine 100 Australian ~ No.8 Qingshan Road, Nanning City, Guangxi Commercial Long term
Garden Zhuang Autonomous Region
HEERX100RNEBE Btk ERREETHILEKS [ =
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T B &R B 5

Economic
area City Project Address Use Leasing period
BEES b HH ik Bi# Y
Liuzhou Liuzhou Sunshine 100 Classical Era No.11 Haiguan Road, Liuzhou City, Guangxi  Commercial Medium and long
Zhuang Autonomous Region term
M I B Yt 10043 BB BFEAREABRIIMTTEEE115% [GES AN
Kindergarten Long term
HE R
Liuzhou Sunshine 100 City Plaza No.2 Guizhong Avenue, Liuzhou City, Commercial Medium and long
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region term
WINES 1008 B BFEAtREABRIIM S KiE25% S F R
Liuzhou Sunshine 100 Yaobu No.9 Panlong Road, Liuzhou City, Guangxi ~ Commercial Short, medium and
Classic Town Zhuang Autonomous Region long term
HINEZ 10028 TOWN =i A=hal R e B% 2ed R
Chongging Chongaing Sunshine 100 Arles No.163 Yunan Road, Banan District, Commercial Medium and long
Chonggaing City term
B EEGKX100MES BEEMEARAEAE163% [GES e RE
Guilin Guilin Sunshine 100 Lijiang Project  Pingle Town, Pingle County, Guilin City, Commercial Long term
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
R MR ) 100 R R T Bk B B AT T 5 T 4E4R % =
Yangshuo Sunshine 100 City Plaza  Diecui Road, Yangshuo West Street, Guilin, Commercial Long term
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
B8 100/ 4T 5 BEFfk s B EMTG AR aRE % R
Yangtze Yixing Yixing Sunshine 100 Phoenix Street East Jiefang Road, Chengdong New District, Commercial Short, medium and
River Delta Yixing City, Jiangsu Province long term
=R HE HEBGH100EEE TEA BRI R R R R [ 2edRE
Wuxi Wuxi Sunshine 100 Arles No.1 Tianyi New Street, Xizhang, Yangiao ~ Commercial Short, medium and
Town, Huishan District, Wuxi City, Jiangsu long term
Province
E:37) 555100 B 8 IHEESTRLIEEREAER M1 B P I
Wuxi Sunshine 100 Himalaya No. 100, Lide Road, Binhu District, Wuxi Commercial Short and medium
City, Jiangsu Province term
EHHKE1002 FATE LB BT R SR8 1005 [ yial i
Wenzhou Sunshine 100 Wenzhou Centre Binjiang Qidu, Lucheng District, Wenzhou ~ Commercial Under development
City, Zhejiang Province
Al B3 1008 M0 LA RM TR E R [ i
Changzhou  Changzhou Sunshine 100 Zone 7 East of Dongcheng Road and North Commercial Medium and long
Upper East Side of Dongfang East Road, Economic term
Development Zone, Changzhou City
Jiangsu Province
M BMEHI1007R LR IEHAEMMEEREERBERE - [EES F R
R REILA
Pearl River Delta  Qingyuan Qingyuan Sunshine 100 Arles N24 Area, Po Keng Lian Tai Industry City, ~ Commercial Medium and long
Long Tang Town, Qing Cheng District, term
Qingyuan City, Guangdong Province
h=# B B 1000 R 8 BREFEMABEEERNBRIEN &% LA
N24%: &
Kindergarten Long term
R =
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B R R 2

Land Acquisition T ihiEER

During the Reporting Period, the Group paid an aggregate amount of — ANSREHIN - AEEFSLE L I8 B BB AR
RMB7.6 million for various land and project acquisitions. HAFARKIGEET °

Breakdown of the land reserves of the Group at the end of the  AREBRAIRE IR T EHISRAOT -
Reporting Period is as follows:

Total GFA Attributable GFA
Economic area City (square metres) Proportion (square metres) Proportion
HEEEH RaREmEms
REE W (FEFHK) FRi& LB (FEFHK) FRr i L B
Bohai Rim Weifang 544,569 6% 544,569 8%
B985 HEDT
Shenyang 545,576 6% 511,751 8%
&S
Yantai 409,137 4% 409,137 6%
Ea
Jinan 174,710 2% 85,608 1%
e
Tianjin 109,323 1% 92,230 1%
P=
Chengde 158,404 2% 112,784 2%
S
Dongying 43,779 0% 43,779 1%
Sub-total 1,985,498 21% 1,799,858 27%
et
Midwest Chongging 151,488 2% 121,190 2%
il BE
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Total GFA Attributable GFA
Economic area City (square metres) Proportion (square metres) Proportion
HERER EIERER
REES W (FFHXK) FFi4di EE B (FEFHXK) FR{&i L&
Guilin 610,196 7% 597,767 9%
EZ
Changsha 218,880 2% 218,880 3%
Yueyang 82,552 1% 42,102 1%
&5
Liuzhou 523,186 6% 421,727 6%
#N
Nanning 1,269,516 14% 480,187 7%
Wuzhou 1,343,599 15% 372,849 6%
B
Wuhan 303,550 3% 303,550 5%
BUE
Chengdu 81,453 1% 81,453 1%
R
Xi'an 468,436 5% 468,436 7%
(kS
Lijiang 267,208 3% 136,276 2%
=an
Sub-total 5,320,064 59% 3,244,417 49%
et
Yangtze River Delta  Wenzhou 896,186 10% 896,186 13%
R=A BN
Wuxi 409,218 4% 409,218 6%
57
Changzhou 53,736 0% 27,405 0%
M
Yixing 70,410 1% 56,328 1%
HHE
Sub-total 1,429,550 15% 1,389,137 20%
et
Pearl River Delta Qingyuan 455,420 5% 250,481 4%
K=7A B
Sub-total 455,420 5% 250,481 4%
et
Total 9,190,532 100% 6,683,893 100%
#ast
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Financial Review

Financial Performance

Revenue

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue decreased by 56.3%
to RMB2,357.6 million in 2022 from RMB5,399.2 million in 2021,
mainly due to the decrease in the income from sale of properties.
Income from sale of properties

During the Reporting Period, revenue generated from the sale of
properties decreased by 63.4% to RMB1,682.5 million in 2022 from

RMB4,597.2 million in 2021, mainly due to the decrease in delivery
areas for the period as compared with last year.

R %5 R
MRS
A

AREHA > AEENRAH2021FNARY

5,399.2 5 & LE 56.3% £2022F A AR #2,357.6
BEL  FEEHERYEHEEWARDFTE -

YFHERA

AREHA > WEHERAH2021FNARY

4,597 2B BT 63.4% E 20225 A K#1,682.5
BETLT FTERARABREBREREF R

For the 12 months ended 31 December 2022

#BE2022F12A31BL+=EA

Sales area Sales amount Unit selling price
(square metres)™" (RMB million)®? (RMB/square metres)"
HEEE HESHE HE
(FEHHK) (AR®BHHET)? (AR®T FHX)
Type L) 2021 2021 2021
Residential Properties F= 101,556 301,763 1,172 3,475 11,545 11,516
Commercial properties and car parks 7 Y% & & & 24,044 60,149 511 1,122 16,713 13,871
Total #at 125,600 361,912 1,683 4,597 12,534 11,907
Proportion FRri&EE B
Residential Properties F= 81% 83% 70% 76%
Commercial properties and car parks 7 )% & EE 19% 17% 30% 24%
Total st 100% 100% 100% 100%
Notes: Htat -
(1) Excluding car parks (1) TEEHE
(2)  Including car parks (2) BEBEE
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Income from property management and hotel operation

During the Reporting Period, revenue generated from property
management and hotel operation of the Group decreased by 13.7%
to RMB499.6 million in 2022 from RMB578.8 million in 2021, mainly
due to the repeated of COVID-19 pandemic, which resulted in lower
property charges and lower hotel occupancy rates in certain projects
thereby affecting revenue levels.

Rental income from investment properties

During the Reporting Period, rental income from investment properties
of the Group decreased by 15.8% to RMB162.3 million in 2022
from RMB192.8 million in 2021, mainly due to the fact that some of
the newly leased properties are in a leasing preferential period, the
revenue has declined compared to last year.

Cost of sales/services

During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales/services of the Group
decreased by 59.1% to RMB1,901.7 million in 2022 from RMB4,644.2
million in 2021. Cost of sales of properties decreased by 63.9% to
RMB1,454.4 million in 2022 from RMB4,024.5 million in 2021, primarily
due to the decrease in delivery areas for the period as compared with
last year. Cost of property management and hotel operation decreased
by 28.3% to RMB440.5 million in 2022 from RMB614.7 million in
2021, primarily due to the Company'’s enhanced cost control efforts.

Gross profit

As a result of the foregoing, for the Reporting Period, the Group's
gross profit decreased by 39.6% to RMB455.9 million in 2022 from
RMB755.1 million in 2021. The Group's gross profit margin increased
by 5.3 percentage points to 19.3% in 2022 from 14.0% in 2021,
primarily due to the increase in the proportion of delivered properties
with a higher gross profit.

Valuation losses on investment properties

During the Reporting Period, valuation loss on investment properties
of the Group were RMB580.5 million, primarily due to the decline in
investment property valuations caused by the downturn in the property
market.
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R1E - BEEIBHEE MERBRE  BEAFETHR
Wi BUAKE -

REYRHEZ KA

AREHRN - AEBNREMERSKAH2021F
MARE192.8EEITLH A 15.8% E2022F M A REE
16238 &L ' TEE2ERTLFELHERBEE
BH - WABREFEB TR -

HE WMEBERE

RREHR - AEENHEE REKRBH2021FH
AR4,64428ETTHL59.1%E2022F AR
1,901. 78 8T - MEHENEAH2021FHARE
4,024 58 BT 63.9% £2022F K A R#51,454 .4
BEL FERARKRNERBRREFRBEMRLD
FrEl - METEMBELCE K AH2021FRARE
614 7E & LM 283% E2022F M ARKEA405H B
JC 0 EZANA R INGRAAEH] o

EF

EREMAZE - AREHA - REEKEFNBH2021
FMARKETIS51BEITEAL39.6%E2022FMAR
A5 QB BT o AEBMEFEH2021F/14.0%
#HN5.3ME DB E20229119.3% * TERANE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B R R 2

Other income

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s other income decreased by
4.7% to RMB50.5 million in 2022 from RMB53.0 million in 2021.

Selling expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group's selling expenses decreased
by 63.4% to RMB133.9 million in 2022 from RMB366.3 million in
2021, primarily due to the significant decrease in the Company's
revenue from property delivery during the Reporting Period compared
to the corresponding period last year, resulting in a decrease in sales
commissions and agency fees, as well as the Company's intensified
efforts in cost control and streamlined personnel, resulting in a
decrease in the payment of salaries and advertising expenses.

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the administrative expenses of the Group
decreased by 35.2% to RMB282.7 million in 2022 from RMB436.5
million in 2021, primarily due to the Company’s intensified efforts
in cost control and streamlined personnel, resulting in a decrease
in wages and benefits, consulting fees and other expenses as the
Company strengthened cost control during the Reporting Period.

Other operating expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other operating
expenses of RMB566.8 million, representing a decrease of 4.3% from
RMB592.5 million in 2021, mainly due to the decrease in write-down
of properties under development and completed properties held for
sale and loss on disposal of investment properties compared to last
year.

Material Impairment

As a result of the continuous COVID-19 control policies and the
unexpected significant deterioration in the real estate market due to
the tightened monetary and credit policies in the PRC since 2021, the
Group and some of its counterparties experienced significant liquidity
difficulties, and therefore, certain property development projects have
been suspended/delayed and the recoverability of certain assets and
receivables, that were advanced to the Group’s business partners for
certain property development projects in the Group’s ordinary course
of business, was deteriorated. After due and careful consideration of
the potential recoverable amounts, the Group recognised significant
impairments on various assets. For details, please refer to Note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RUA

AREHRA  AEENEMBBABR2021FHARYE

53.0AB TR A4 7%E2022FHMWARES05H8
773 o

HERR

RFEBHAN - AEBMNEEERH2021FHARKE
366.3E & TR 63.4% 202256 M ARE133.98 8
T TERARBREHANRARERAREFERIFA
Bl BEEEHERERREETHRURARMAE
FREHIAE - BEAR  BEEMNNEE  BEEE
BRE o

TR B

AREHR  AEENTHRERH2021FEFHNARE
436.5A BT 35.2% 20226 ARKE282.7HE
T TERARBREHRNRRMABREHNE - 1B

BAR  BYNAWFHE - KHELEMBER TR -

RUEERR

AMEHR - AEEHRSEMEEER ARKESE6.8
BHEIT ' M2021FH ARSI 5AETTHL4.3% *
FTERANTEREEEREBREMERIBELTF
B o

REER

FR 782021 4 F B 5 48 00 5 T 1B B PR R DA R AP
KWEEENMEEBCREBEEM S EIINKBRL -
AEEREBAIRFEFEAREARBESRE -
It BLEHERBIEECYEE TE T4A5EA
EEBBARRADOBHEREBERBNAIEEE
BAEBENIEH EEMERZEN T RE R -
KEEFAFZREBECIRECER  AEEHSHE
BEBREARBEBR - FHBL2EREMBHRE
BIRE5.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Financial income

During the Reporting Period, financial income of the Group decreased
by 15.2% to RMB397.9 million in 2022 from RMB469.0 million in
2021, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue arising
from the change in exchange rate as compared with last year.

Financial costs

During the Reporting Period, financial costs of the Group increased
by 21.3% to RMB1,925.8 million in 2022 from RMB1,588.1 million
in 2021, which was mainly attributable to the increased interest
expenses as a result of the increased total finance costs and decrease
of capitalisation of finance costs resulted from increased number of
completed projects and certain suspension of property development
projects.

Income tax

During the Reporting Period, the income tax expenses of the Group
was RMB31.2 million, and the income tax credit of the Group was
RMB64.1 million in 2021, which was mainly attributable to the
increase in provision for land appreciation tax, net with the decrease in
provision of current tax and recognition of deferred tax for tax losses
and impairment losses.

Loss for the year

During the Reporting Period, the loss of the Group decreased by
11.1% to RMB3,317.0 million in 2022 from RMB3,730.0 million in
2021.

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Due to the factors mentioned above, the loss attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company decreased by 13.9% to RMB3,163.6
million in 2022 from RMB3,672.7 million in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Working capital, financial and capital resources
Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately RMB641.3
million of cash and cash equivalents, representing a decrease of
RMB547.9 million as compared to those as at 31 December 2021,
mainly due to the repayment of interest payment and external
investment. Approximately RMB8.5 million was held in USD,
approximately RMB1.7 million was held in HKD and the remaining was
held in RMB.

Current ratio, gearing ratio and net gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current ratio decreased to
87.1% from 111.7% as at 31 December 2021. The Group's current
assets decreased from RMB40,983.1 million as at 31 December
2021 to RMB37,638.2 million as at 31 December 2022, while current
liabilities increased to RMB43,198.2 million as at 31 December 2022
from RMB36,691.3 million as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's gearing ratio (calculated as total
loans and borrowings divided by total assets) increased to 51.2% from
47.5% as at 31 December 2021. Net gearing ratio (calculated as total
loans and borrowings minus cash and cash equivalents and current
restricted deposits, divided by total equity) increased by approximately
306.5 percentage points to 649.5% as at 31 December 2022 from
343.0% as at 31 December 2021, which was mainly attributable to the
decrease in total equity resulting from the loss from operation for the
year as compared to last year.

Contingent liabilities

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into agreements
with certain banks to provide guarantees for the mortgage loans of
purchases of its properties. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
provided guarantees for mortgage loans in an amount of RMB3,617.4
million (31 December 2021: RMB4,196.6 million) to those banks in
respect of such agreements.

RBRE MERRERE
HeMRELFR/Y

M2022%F12A310 - A5EEHEFR e MRS EEY
HARE6413EETT * K2021F12A831ABP AR
547 9B &L TERHNEENBREINGE -
Heb: YARBSEHEETUETEE - HARKE17
BETEERE  HBUARBRES -

WEBLE  BFRRLERFRMAILE

M2022F12A8318 - AEERRENLLEH2021F12
A3THM111.7% NFEE87.1% ° R2022%F12 A31
B AREBORBEEH2021F12A31BHARE
40,983. 1 BB LRI EARMKESI7,6382EE T - KB
BEM2021F12A31BMARY36,691.35 & TiE
MNZE2022F12A31HMW AR 43,198 28 & T ©

$2022% 128310 » AEBNEAREFEL R (BN
ERRERERABEE)HR2021F12 A31HAI47.5%
EAES1.2% - FEEEXREVRERREFINRIE
SRR EEYRREZRHTRERABER) B
2021512 A31B#H343.0% - 49306 5B E DB E
649.5%  TEHNAFELEBRERBEZREA
FRE -

EAARE

RFEHA - NE@ME—LRTRT T HEHEY
¥ ERMIZBEFTIRMIER - 182022128318 -
RNEBBZSHERARITREERNIZBERSE
AARY3,617.4587T(2021F12A318 : AR
4,196.6EETT) °
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Loans and borrowings and pledged assets

As at 31 December 2022 the Group had total loans and borrowings
of RMB26,816.7 million, of which RMB25,221.7 million, RMB1,376.6
million and RMB218.4 million were payable within one year or on
demand, after 1 year but within 2 years and after 2 years but within 5
years, respectively.

The Group's borrowings are denominated in Renminbi and US dollar
and approximately RMB4,683.5 million was denominated in USD
and the remaining was denominated in Renmibi, mostly with fixed
interest rate. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no unutilized
comprehensive credit facilities granted by bank and other financial
institutions. The Group currently has no interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management will monitor the interest rate risks and
consider taking other necessary actions if any material risks are
expected.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged properties and
restricted deposits with a carrying value of RMB14,841.9 million (31
December 2021: RMB12,932.8 million) to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's contracted capital commitment
for properties under development and investment properties under
construction not provided for in the financial statements was
approximately RMB5,597.3 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB6,639.9 million). Approved but not contracted for capital
commitment of the Group was approximately RMB4,729.4 million as
at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: approximately RMB5,310.0
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Foreign exchange exposure

The Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take place
through the People’s Bank of China (the "PBOC") or other statutory
institutions. The exchange rates adopted for foreign exchange
transactions are those published by the PBOC and may be subject to
a managed float against an unspecified basket of currencies. Foreign
currency payments, including the remittance of earnings outside the
PRC, are subject to the availability of foreign currencies (depending on
the foreign currency in which the Group's earnings are denominated)
or must be conducted through the PBOC with government approval.

Nearly all of the Group's income and expenses are denominated
in Renminbi ("RMB"), while certain bank deposits and loans are
denominated in the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") and US dollar ("US$").
However, the operating cash flows and working capital of the Group
have not been materially impacted by fluctuations in exchange rates.
The Group currently does not hedge its foreign exchange exposure but
may adopt hedging measures in the future.

Significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals

Update on completion status for disposal of 100% Equity Interest
in Eminent Star

References are made to the Company's announcements dated 13
April 2019 and 31 December 2019 as well as the Company’s circular
dated 13 June 2019 regarding the very substantial disposal by Chang
Jia International Limited (REBIER/AF]) (“"Chang Jia”) of the
share capital and loans owing by Eminent Star Group Limited(# 2 %8
ABR/A7]) (“Eminent Star"”) for a total consideration of approximately
RMB4,661.2 million payable in cash (the “Eminent Star Disposal”).
Terms used below shall have the same meanings as those used in the
Company's announcement dated 13 April 2019.

As at the date of this report, the first completion, the second
completion, the third completion and the fourth completion of the
Eminent Star Disposal have taken place. The Group has received
cash totaling RMB4,466.4 million, which includes the Initial Deposit,
the Further Deposit, the First Instalment, the part of the Second
Instalment, the Third Instalment and other related payments. The
parties are negotiating the payment of the balance of the Second
Instalment and related matters.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no other significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals during the Reporting
Period.
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Pledging of shares by controlling shareholder

Joywise Holdings Limited (“Joywise”), the controlling shareholder of
the Company (as borrower) entered into a facility letter dated 26 June
2019 with Haitong International Securities Company Limited (“Haitong
International Securities”) (as lender). To secure the credit facility,
Joywise as chargor entered into a security deed pursuant to which
Joywise charged not less than 964,838,855 ordinary shares of the
Company to Haitong International Securities. As at 26 June 2023, the
total amount due and owing to Haitong International Securities under
the credit facility was HK$386,884,412.40.

In December 2020, Joywise (as chargor) entered into the supplemental
share charge with Beyond Steady Limited (as chargee), pursuant
to which Joywise has pledged 492,947,000 ordinary share of the
Company to secure the obligations of certain obligors including
Joywise and Mr. Yi Xiaodi under a series of agreements in relation
to the subscription shares issued by the Company pursuant to the
subscription agreement dated 18 December 2017 between the
Company and Beyond Steady Limited. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 18 December 2017, 28 December
2017 and 4 August 2022.

As at the date of this report, Joywise holds in aggregate 1,418,859,855
ordinary shares of the charged shares, which represents approximately
55.62% of the total issued shares of the Company.

Financial Assistance

In December 2020, Sunshine 100 Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.* (F5¢
SEEXEEARAT) (“Sunshine 100 Group”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan agreement to grant the
loan to Wuxi Puyida Electronics Co., Ltd.* (BT ESEETTARA
Al) (“Wuxi Puyida”), which was owned as to 60% and 40% by two
individuals, namely Luo Qi (Z%) and Liu Danhua (2IF$23E), respectively,
at the relevant time, in a principal amount of up to RMB300,000,000
with interest rate of 8% per annum. The borrower shall repay within
three days from the date of issuance of written notice of repayment
by Sunshine 100 Group to it. Pledge was granted by the borrower
over the accounts receivables arising from the principal and interest
payable under certain debts. As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding
principal amount was RMB236,000,000. As of the date of this
report, the outstanding principal amount was RMB236,000,000 and
Sunshine 100 Group has not issued any written repayment notice to
the borrower so none of the loan is currently overdue. For reasons
for the above provision of financial assistance, please refer to parts
headed “Loan 1 and Loan 2" in section headed “REASONS FOR AND
BENEFITS OF THE LOAN" in the Company’s announcement headed
"MAJOR TRANSACTION PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE"
dated 20 September 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B R R 2

In December 2020, Sunshine 100 Group entered into a loan agreement
to grant the loan to Wuhan Ruidi Yida Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd.* (FUEE# P EEEFHREMRAA]), which was 100% owned by an
individual, Zhang Lei (3&%) at the relevant time, in a principal amount
of up to RMB250,000,000 with interest rate of 8% per annum. The
borrower shall repay within three days from the date of issuance of
written notice of repayment by Sunshine 100 Group to it. Pledge was
granted by the borrower over the accounts receivables arising from the
principal and interest payable under certain debts. As at 31 December
2022, the outstanding principal amount was RMB206,477,183.30.
As of the date of this report, the outstanding principal amount was
RMB206,477,183.30 and Sunshine 100 Group has not issued any
written repayment notice to the borrower so none of the loan is
currently overdue. For reasons for the above provision of financial
assistance, please refer to parts headed “Loan 3" in section headed
“REASONS FOR AND BENEFITS OF THE LOAN" in the Company's
announcement headed “MAJOR TRANSACTION PROVISION OF
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE" dated 20 September 2023.

In March 2021, Sunshine 100 Group entered into a loan agreement
to grant the loan to Wuxi Puyida, in a principal amount of up to
RMB250,000,000 with interest rate of 8% per annum. The borrower
shall repay within three days from the date of issuance of written
notice of repayment by Sunshine 100 Group to it. Pledge was granted
by the borrower over the accounts receivables arising from the
principal and interest payable under certain debts. As at 31 December
2022, the outstanding principal amount was RMB207,311,130.90.
As of the date of this report, the outstanding principal amount was
RMB207,311,130.90 and Sunshine 100 Group has not issued any
written repayment notice to the borrower so none of the loan is
currently overdue. For reasons for the above provision of financial
assistance, please refer to parts headed “Loan 1 and Loan 2" in
section headed “REASONS FOR AND BENEFITS OF THE LOAN"
in the Company’s announcement headed “MAJOR TRANSACTION
PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE" dated 20 September 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B &R B 5

In April 2021, Sunshine 100 Group entered into a loan agreement
to grant the loan to Shenyang Rongyuda Enterprise Management
Service Co., Ltd.* (EERTECXEERBERAF) (“Shenyang
Rongyuda”), which was 100% owned by an individual, Zheng
Wenchao (2032 #f), at the relevant time, in a principal amount of up to
RMB250,000,000 with interest rate of 8% per annum. The borrower
shall repay within three days from the date of issuance of written
notice of repayment by Sunshine 100 Group to it. Pledge was granted
by the borrower over the accounts receivables arising from the
principal and interest payable under certain debts. As at 31 December
2022, the outstanding principal amount was RMB247,165,904.13.
As of the date of this report, the outstanding principal amount was
RMB247,165,904.13 and Sunshine 100 Group has not issued any
written repayment notice to the borrower so none of the loan is
currently overdue. For reasons for the above provision of financial
assistance, please refer to parts headed “Loan 1 and Loan 2" in
section headed “REASONS FOR AND BENEFITS OF THE LOAN"
in the Company’s announcement headed “MAJOR TRANSACTION
PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE" dated 20 September 2023.

In January 2022, Hainan Yangguang Qiheng Operation Services
Co., Ltd.* (B REUEEZ RSB A F) ("Hainan Yangguang
Qiheng”), a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan
agreement to grant the loan to Shenzhen Chengjin Information
Technology Co., Ltd.* (FIITHERE SR AR AR) (“Shenzhen
Chengjin”), which was ultimately 90% owned by Lin Wenguan (#&
i) and 10% by Lin Wengiu (#R3ZFK),in a principal amount of up
to RMB200,000,000 with interest rate of 9.28% per annum. The
borrower shall repay the outstanding Loan within 19 months from
the date(s) of drawdown (being 26 January 2022, 27 January 2022,
29 January 2022 and 8 February 2022). Pledge was granted by
Shenzhen Chengjin over its 100% equity interest in the borrower
pursuant to a pledge agreement. Joint guarantees were provided by
(i) Shenzhen Nanyou Huaxing Industrial Co., Ltd.* (RYIFHEEE
¥ AR 27); and (i) Lin Wenguan and Xiao Qing (H 5, spouse of Lin
Wenguan), respectively, pursuant to guarantee contracts. Moreover,
Hainan Yangguang Qiheng shall have right to take certain properties
owned by Dongguan Langyitong Technology Co., Ltd.* (R5EMBEA5
BIEBRHE AR A A and Dongguan Qingyuan Incubator Co., Ltd.*
(RE=mEEMNLEEER A F) (“Dongguan Qingyuan Incubator”) as
settlement of the overdue repayment. The value of such properties
shall be determined separately. Hainan Yangguang Qiheng shall
have right to co-manage Dongguan Qingyuan Incubator with the
borrower such that, among other things, Hainan Yangguang Qiheng's
approval is required for certain key corporate actions pursuant to a
co-management agreement. For reasons for the above provision of
financial assistance, please refer to section headed “REASONS FOR
AND BENEFITS OF THE LOAN" in the Company’s announcement
headed “"DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION PROVISION OF FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE" dated 20 September 2023. As at 31 December 2022,
the outstanding principal amount was RMB200,000,000. As of the date
of this report, the outstanding principal amount was RMB200,000,000
and the loan is overdue, and the Company has not commenced any
legal proceedings or any other actions in relation to the loan. For more
details of the above financial assistance, please refer to the Company’s
announcement headed “"DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION PROVISION
OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE" dated 20 September 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B R R 2

In November 2022, Sunshine 100 Group entered into a loan agreement
to grant the loan to Shenyang Rongyuda, in a principal amount of up
to RMB60,000,000 with interest rate of 8% per annum. The borrower
shall repay within three days from the date of issuance of written
notice of repayment by Sunshine 100 Group to it. Pledge was granted
by the borrower over the accounts receivables arising from the principal
and interest payable under certain debts. As at 31 December 2022, the
outstanding principal amount was RMB4,070,626.00. As of the date
of this report, the outstanding principal amount was RMB5,243,448.00
and Sunshine 100 Group has not issued any written repayment notice
to the borrower so none of the loan is currently overdue. For reasons
for the above provision of financial assistance, please refer to parts
headed “Loan 4" in section headed “REASONS FOR AND BENEFITS
OF THE LOAN" in the Company’s announcement headed “"MAJOR
TRANSACTION PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE" dated 20
September 2023.

Financial Assistance to a Connected Person

On 20 July 2022, Jinan Sunshine 100 Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.* (Er5 X SAEFMERE AR AR (“Jinan Sunshine 100”), a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan agreement to grant a
loan to Zhongyin (Jining) Property Development Co., Ltd. (1R (E %
EERME AR AT) (“Zhongyin Jining Real Estate”), a connected
person of the Company at subsidiary level, in a principal amount of
RMB389,370,000 with interest rate of 6% per annum. The borrower
shall repay the loan on 20 July 2023. Zhongyin Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(FRIRMEFBR A F)) (“Zhongyin Real Estate”) who owns 100% and
51% interest in Zhongyin Jining Real Estate and Jinan Sunshine 100,
respectively, undertakes to guarantee the repayment obligations of the
borrower pursuant to a letter of undertaking dated 4 July 2022. Jinan
Sunshine 100 is a joint venture company established by the Group and
Zhongyin Real Estate to engage in property development. Since Jinan
Sunshine 100's property development projects have substantially been
completed and delivered, stable unrestricted cash flow was being
generated and was expected to be sufficient to satisfy the remaining
costs and expenses even after the grant of the loan. Accordingly,
Zhongyin Real Estate would like to utilize the surplus funds of Jinan
Sunshine 100.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding principal amount was
RMB389,370,000. As of the date of this report, the outstanding
principal amount was RMB389,370,000 and the loan is overdue,
and the Company has not commenced any legal proceedings or any
other actions in relation to the loan. For details of the above financial
assistance, please refer to the announcement headed “"MAJOR
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION PROVISION OF FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE" dated 20 September 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B &R B 5

Future plans for substantial investments or capital assets

As at the date of this report, there is no plan authorised by the Board
for other substantial investments or additions of capital assets.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 2,216
employees (31 December 2021: 3,229 employees). The staff costs
of the Group for the Reporting Period were RMB403.9 million (2021:
RMB500.7 million). The Group has adopted a performance-based
incentive system to motivate its staff. In addition to the basic salary,
year-end bonuses are offered to staff with outstanding performance.
In relation to staff training, the Group also provides various training
programs to improve employees’ skills and develop their respective
expertise. Generally, salary will be determined based on the
qualifications, position and experience of each employee. The Group
has established a regular assessment mechanism to assess the
performance of its employees. The assessment results are used as
the basis for determining salary increment, bonuses and promotions.

The Group participates in Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 in total. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

As required by regulations in China, the Group makes contributions to
mandatory social security funds such as pension, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and the housing provident fund for the benefit of its
employees in China. The Group is required to make contributions to
mandatory social security funds at 16% to 20% of the gross salaries
of its staff. During the Reporting Period, the Group made contributions
of approximately RMB29.3 million to the employee retirement scheme
(2021: RMB33.2 million).

The Group had no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme and
mandatory social security funds which may be used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021. There were also no forfeited contributions
available as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 under the MPF Scheme
and mandatory social security funds which may be used by the Group
to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B R R 2

Change of Auditor

On 7 May 2022, KPMG resigned as the auditor of the Company, and
Mazars CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company
on the same day. For details, please refer to the Company's
announcements dated 10 May 2022 and 22 July 2022.

Appointment of Receivers in Respect of Shares of the
Company

The Company received a letter on 22 July 2022 from Mr. So Man
Chun and Mr. Jong Yat Kit of PricewaterhouseCoopers regarding the
appointment of the joint and several receivers on 11 July 2022 over
an aggregate of 971,335,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Charged Shares"”), which represents approximately 38.08% of the
total issued shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

The Charged Shares were security for the obligations of certain
obligors including Joywise Holdings Limited and Mr. Yi Xiaodi under
a series of agreements in relation to the subscription shares issued
by the Company pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 18
December 2017.

For further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 4 August 2022.

Events After the Reporting Period
Events of Default

Further events of default under the Company’'s debt instruments
occurred after the Reporting Period. For details, please refer to
the section headed “Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Listed
Securities of the Company — Events of Default under the 6.50%
Convertible Bonds Due 2021 (the “2021 Bonds"), the 10.5% Senior
Notes Due 2021 (the “2021 Notes"), the 13.0% Senior Green Notes
Due 2022 (the “2022 Notes"”) and the 12.0% Senior Notes Due
2023 (the “2023 Notes”)” and “Purchase, Sale and Redemption
of the Listed Securities of the Company — Events of Default under
the 8.50% Corporate Bonds Due 2022 (“2022 8.50% Bonds"), the
9.0% Corporate Bonds Due 2022 (the “2022 9.0% Bonds"”) and the
8.4% Corporate Bonds Due 2023 (the “2023 Bonds") (together, the
"Onshore Bonds")" in this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B &R B 5

Reorganisation Petition Against a Subsidiary of the Company

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 17 November
2022 and the 2022 interim results announcement, a winding up
reorganization petition was filed against Wenzhou Shihe Eco-city
Development Co., Ltd. *(BM AR BIZE AR A F)) (“Wenzhou
Shihe"”), an indirect wholly- owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 16 February 2023, the manager of Wenzhou Shihe applied to
the Wenzhou People’'s Court seeking approval of Wenzhou Shihe's
reorganization plan (the “Reorganization Plan”) approved in the first
creditors’ meeting. Subsequently, the Company received a civil order
from the Wenzhou People’'s Court dated 24 February 2023, which
approved and endorsed the resolution passed at the first creditors’
meeting to adopt the Reorganization Plan. As a result, the winding up
reorganization of Wenzhou Shihe has been terminated.

For further information, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 17 November 2022 and dated 10 March 2023.

Legal action with regards to the Notes Purchase Agreement

On 5 June 2023, a writ of summons indorsed with a general
indorsement on claim was issued in the High Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region by the solicitors acting for HTI Financial
Solutions Limited (“HTI Financial Solutions”) against the Company.
The statement of claim was filed with the High Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region on 3 July 2023. HTI Financial Solutions
alleged that pursuant to a Notes Purchase Agreement entered
into between HTI Financial Solutions (as seller) and the Company
(as purchaser) dated 27 September 2021 (the “Agreement”), the
Company failed to pay the Repurchase Price on the Repurchase Date
(both as defined in the Agreement).

For further information, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 14 June 2023, 20 June 2023 and 5 July 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B R R 2

Legal Proceedings Against Controlling Shareholder of the
Company

On 10 August 2023, Haitong International Securities filed a winding-
up petition against Joywise, a controlling shareholder of the Company,
for an order that Joywise be wound up by the High Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region under the Companies (Winding
Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) on the ground that Joywise was unable to repay Haitong
International Securities in the sum of HK$386,884,412.40, being the
total amount due and owing to the Petitioner as at 26 June 2023
under and pursuant to a facility letter dated 26 June 2019 entered into
between Haitong International Securities as lender and Joywise as
borrower. To secure the credit facility, Haitong International Securities
as lender and Joywise as chargor entered into a security deed pursuant
to which Joywise charged not less than 964,838,855 shares of the
Company to Haitong International Securities.

As at the date of this report, 492,947,000 shares of the Company held
by Joywise is under receivership (the “Receivership”). The Company
is currently assessing the legal, financial and operational impact of
the petition to the Group. The Shareholders are reminded that (1) the
petition is presented against Joywise and not the Company; and (2)
the amount claimed is against Joywise and not against the Group.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 August 2023.

Disposal of Land Pursuant to Court Enforcement Order

The Company’s subsidiaries and associates, being Yantai Sunshine
100 Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (B&BE XS EEMERZEER
2 7]) (“Yantai Sunshine 100"), Weifang Sunshine 100 Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (#IF5 EAEE AR A F)), Guilin Sunshine 100 Real Estate
Co., Ltd (M EMAEE AR 2R (“Guilin Sunshine 100”) and
Sunshine 100 Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (GAEHEXEBAR A
A]) (together, the "Entities”), have received an enforcement order
issued by Beijing Financial Court (1t % g#%bT) dated 7 August 2023
(the "Enforcement Order”). The Enforcement Order was issued as
a result of the Entities’ failure to comply with the mediation order
dated 29 July 2022 which required the Entities to repay China Huarong
Asset Management Co., Ltd. (FEIZEREEEERMEMRAF) (stock
code: 2799) (“China Huarong") a loan that China Huarong made to
Yantai Sunshine 100 (the "Defaulted Loan"). The aggregate principal
amount of the Defaulted Loan, together with interest and litigation
costs, as at 29 July 2022, were approximately RMB495.0 million plus
interest accrued from 21 March 2022 up to the date of repayment (the
“Claim”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
T B &R B 5

Beijing Financial Court has ordered Guilin Sunshine 100, which agreed
to guarantee the Defaulted Loan with land use rights over a portion of
land located in Xiangshan District, Guilin, Guangxi Province (& Fat iz 5
SRR EMTRILE) (the “Land”), to sell its land use rights in the Land
by way of judicial public auction to satisfy the claim. The Land was
valuated at approximately RMB586.3 million as at 20 September 2022
based on the valuation report commissioned by Beijing Financial Court,
which had remained unsold after two rounds of judicial public auction.
Therefore, China Huarong applied to Beijing Financial Court, and the
court granted the Enforcement Order for China Huarong to take the
Land at the auction reserve price of approximately RMB328.0 million
(including an enforcement fee of approximately RMBO0.6 million and the
auction reserve price of the buildings above the Land of approximately
RMB8.7 million), representing a discount of approximately 44% to its
valuation price, as settlement of part of the claim. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 18 August
2023.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREERE

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Yi Xiaodi (% i#), whose former name is Yi Daichang (%1%
£), aged 59, is the chairman of the Board, the pioneer founder, an
executive Director, the chief executive officer and the chairman of the
Company’s nomination committee, and is in charge of the corporate
strategy of the Group. Mr. Yi was appointed as an executive Director
on 20 September 2007 and the chief executive officer on 10 May 2018
by the Company, respectively.

Mr. Yi has extensive experience in the real estate development
industry in China. In 1992, Mr. Yi established Guangxi Vantone
Enterprise Development Company in Guangxi, which established
Guangxi Vantone in 1994. He established the “Sunshine 100" brand
in 2000 through the development of the Sunshine 100 International
Apartment project (F5 % 100BIFR A E) in Beijing.

Mr. Yi received an award for being a leader in real estate innovation
in Beijing (AL RMEBIFTEAY) from sina.com (FRA) in 2003,
an award for being one of China's influential persons during China's
10 years of transformation (BXE B+ 522 ) A¥) by the Asian
Living Environment Association (S8l A/ZiRE 1% &) and the Economic
Observer (#EBIZ ) in 2004, an award for his outstanding
contributions to creating a living environment in China (R BI A fEIRF 4
BB A S FESR) by the China Real Estate and Residential Housing
Research Association (FBIEHE KT EHHFRE) and the Chinese
Environmental Protection Fund (FEIRIFREES L) in 2005, an
award for outstanding contribution to the creation of value in cities in
the real estate industry of China (Bl T (B (& B = F 7 = 1 5 B
A¥n)by the Chinese Living Environment Committee (FBIABIRIEEZ 8
&) in 2006, an award named him a Person of Outstanding Contribution
of 2006 China Chuangyi Real Estate Annual Meeting (2006 £ EAIE
HEFEEBEBAY) in 2007 by Lanchou Real Estate Commentary
(EEEMER®)), sina.com (FTEAY), College of Real Estate of Beijing
Normal University (JLEIATB)ZEZFx) and Chinese Living Environment
Committee (FEIABIRIHZ B E), an award for special contribution for
2009 China urban commercial value (2009 F B3, /5 2 (B (E 5 7k &
A¥1) by China Federation of Urban Commercial Outlets Construction
Administration (1 BI5  75 S A BE 2258 B TR EE S &) and the International
Real Estate Federation (BIFR N EpZETT3HF B), an award named him an
Influential Person of 2009 Lanchou Real Estate (20094 [ & & i FEE 27
2 ) A¥) by Lanchou Real Estate Media (5 &t ZEE1%)and Sina Leju
(FRZL/E), an award for being one of the most respected entrepreneur
of China in 2012 (2012 FHREHEZEHPZZK)by Hurun Report (FHH
H'E) and an award for being one of the top 10 annual persons in 2009
China brand real estate (2009 kg7 BlF #bE + KFEAY) by China
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREERE

Brand Union Association (mah## BIZE%E5:8) and China Real Estate
Chamber of Commerce (2B TiEE:EER ), and the “Special
Promoting Award"” on the 14th Venice Architectural Biennale paralleled
with the first exhibition in Chinese Cities Hall (55 + P fE &L /E 2T e &
ERFITRBHEHHEERE) in June 2014. Mr. Yi was appointed the
lecturer for the outstanding alumni’s series report course ((BFR R Z
HFRE)) from September 2006 to July 2011 by the Alumni Association
of (It RENEI A EH & E) Beijing Normal University. He was the vice
executive chairman for the second session of the Guangxi Chamber
of Commerce in Beijing (At REFAPEEE) and a member of the
Entrepreneurial Forum of Sohu (N> ¥R #18).

Mr. Yi obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in geography from
Beijing Normal University (1t ZEI5KE2) in July 1986 and a master's
degree in economics from Renmin University of China (B A R KE)
in October 1989.

Mr. Fan Xiaochong (38 #), aged 59, is an executive Director
appointed by the Company on 20 September 2007. Mr. Fan was
appointed as the vice chairman of the Board on 25 August 2017,
assisting Mr. Yi Xiaodi in formulating the corporate strategies of the
Group, takes charge of the development of the cultural creativity-based
economy (FT4&E L Al) of the Company and provides assistance in
respect of land acquisition, human resources and other matters of the
Company.

Since the establishment of Guangxi Vantone in 1994, Mr. Fan was
engaged in the business and corporate strategy development of the
Group. He was the deputy general manager of Guangxi Vantone from
1992 to 2003, the deputy general manager of Beijing Yinxin Guanghua
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. from 1999 to 2003, and has been
the executive vice president of Sunshine 100 Group from 2003 to
August 2017.

Mr. Fan received an award named Person of Outstanding Contribution
of 2006 China Chuangyi Real Estate Annual Meeting (20064 B8] &
HESESDIHEELAY) in 2007 by Lanchou Real Estate Commentary
(EZEHERT)), sina.com (¥TRA), College of Real Estate of Beijing
Normal University (AbEBATE)EZFx) and Chinese Living Environment
Committee (FBIAEIRIHZ E€) and an award for outstanding
contribution to China real estate (FFEBIbEEEH EEIAYIEE) in 2010 by
the Chinese Association of Urban Development and Public Relationship
(FEIE MR E A HKBERBD).

Mr. Fan obtained a bachelor of science degree in geography and a
master of science degree in regional geography from Beijing Normal
University (3t RAT#IAZ2) in July 1986 and July 1989.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREERE

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Fan Xiaohua (SEBEZE), aged 81, is a non-executive Director
appointed by the Company on 20 September 2007. Ms. Fan joined the
Group as a member of the senior management of Guangxi Vantone in
1994. She has been a Director since August 2005 and was involved
in the decision-making process and supervised internal audit of the
Company. Ms. Fan served as head of the technology department, the
deputy factory director and the factory director of Guangxi Nanning
Chinese Medicine Pharmaceutical Factory (& 75 =3 22 /1 Z4J8) from 1979
to 1990, the chief deputy general manager of Nanning Pharmaceutical
Group (FIERZEMZELE) from 1991 to 1993 and the chairman and
general manager, a professor-level senior engineer of Guangxi Vantone
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (EPE&E@EZHF R A F]) from 1993 to January
2017. Ms. Fan enjoys the life-long special allowance (45 = 5 Bk
FFK 2 RE) which is an award granted by the State Council for experts
and scholars who have outstanding contribution since 1993. She
was honored as one of “Second Batch of Top Professional Talents in
Nanning” (FIZT 8 L EZE RIS AT) between 1991 and 1993.
She obtained a bachelor’'s degree in medicine from Nanjing Pharmacy
College (PR EEE[7) (currently known as China Pharmaceutical
University (1 B 2281 KX £2)) in August 1967,

Mr. Wang Gongquan (Eh#), aged 62 was appointed as a non-
executive Director by the Company on 1 August 2015. Mr. Wang
served as a partner of IDG Technology Venture Investments, LP (IDG
KT gl %% & E %) from 1999 to 2005, the managing partner and senior
partner of Beijing Dinghui Venture Investment Advisory Company
Limited (b SHiE ¥ BB AR 2 7)) from 2005 to 2011, and an
independent director of China Digital TV Holding Co., Ltd. (FFZEELIE
RIERBBR A A]), a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE: STV) from 2007 to 2010. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering with major in management engineering from
Jilin University of Technology (Z# T %K &%) (currently known as Jilin
University (F#AZ2)) in 1984.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREERE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gu Yunchang (BBZE &), aged 79, formerly known as Gu
Yongchuang (EAE#]) was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director by the Company on 17 February 2014. Mr. Gu currently
serves as the executive chairman of the National Real Estate Business
Alliance and had also been the secretary-general of the China Real
Estate Association from 1998 to 2006 and the vice president of the
China Real Estate Research Association from 2006 to 2013.

Mr. Gu formerly served at different positions in the Ministry of
Construction of the PRC, including the deputy director at Policy
Research Centre of Ministry of Construction from 1988 to 1998; and
the Deputy Division Head and Division Head at Urban Residence
Bureau of Ministry of Construction from 1982 to 1986.

Mr. Gu engaged in theory and policy research, market research and
analysis concerning China real estate industry. In the 1980s, he
participated in the policy research and formulation of China's city
and village residential construction techniques, carrying on a State
key project “2000 China"”, and won the First Class National Science
Technology Advance Award in China twice. After joining the China
Real Estate Association in 1998, he has been involved in promoting the
development of the China real estate industry as well as undertaking
the research and analysis of the national real estate market. He is also
the main organizer of the China Real Estate Market Report, an annual
analysis report issued by the China Real Estate Association. Mr. Gu is
an independent non-executive director of Jiayuan International Group
Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2768) since March
2016 and Shimao Services Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 873) since October 2020.

Mr. Gu served as an independent non-executive director of Shimao
Property Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
813) from April 2006 to May 2011, Sino-Ocean Land Holdings Limited
(listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3377) from June 2007 to
March 2016, COFCO Property (Group) Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 000031) from April 2012 to June 2018,
CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 884) from October 2012 to December 2021, and Zhejiang Yasha
Decoration Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 002375) from May 2013 to May 2019

Mr. Gu obtained his qualification as a senior urban planner in April 1988
and qualification as a researcher specializing in residence and real estate
in December 1999, both of which were certified by the Ministry of
Construction. Mr. Gu graduated from Tongji University and obtained a
graduate certificate in Urban Planning in July 1966.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREERE

Mr. Ng Fook Ai, Victor (E1&%), aged 75, is an independent non-
executive director appointed by the Company on February 17,
2014. Mr. Ng is the chairman of 1 Rockstead GIP Fund Limited and
managed a number of China focused funds, including China Growth
Opportunities Limited, a £50 million UK-listed fund that focuses
on private equity investments in China. Mr. Ng has over 36 years’
experience in senior investment management, including private equity
fund management. He also provides seed money for several joint
ventures and startups, including IPO, trading sales, Merger

and Acquisition, etc.

Mr. Ng has been a director of The Place Holdings Limited (listed on
the main board of the Singapore Stock Exchange, stock code: E27)
since January 2018; chairman of the board of Health Bank Holdings
Ltd. (listed on the main board of the Singapore Stock Exchange, stock
code: 40B) (formerly known as SMI International Holdings Ltd.) since
May 2018; an independent chairman of the board, the chairman of the
remuneration committee, and a member of the audit committee and
nomination committee of QT Vascular LTD (listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange Mainboard, stock code: 510.Sl) since January 2022;an
independent chairman of the board, the chairman of the remuneration
committee, and a member of the audit committee and nomination
committee of Quantum Healthcare Ltd. (listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange — Catalist, stock code:V8Y.SI) since May 2022 (The listing
status of Qt Vascular Ltd. was transferred to Quantum Healthcare Ltd.
on 28 July 2022), and an independent director of Soilbuild Construction
Group Ltd. (listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Mainboard, stock
code: S7P.SI) since April 2022. Mr. Ng served as an independent
director and the chairman of audit and risk committee of SB Reit
Management Pte Ltd. (listed on the main board of the Singapore Stock
Exchange, stock code: SV3U) from May 2015 to December 2019

Mr. Ng obtained a bachelor’'s degree in economics and a master’s
degree in economics from the University of London in 1976 and
1978, respectively. Mr. Ng is a fellow of the Chartered Management
Institute, United Kingdom.

Mr. Li Chunping (&), aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director by the Company on 31 December 2021. Mr.
Li serves as the executive director and general manager of Beijing
Bluestone Marketing Consulting Co., Ltd. *(Jt RE A& BRI B IR & 1T
A 1A]) since 2001.
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Mr. Li graduated from the Department of Geography (Undergraduate)
of Beijing Normal University in 1986, and the School of National
Economic Planning Management and Statistics (graduate) of Renmin
University of China in 1989 with a master’'s degree in Economics.
From 1989 to 2013, Mr. Li he worked successively in the Department
of Price Supervision and Inspection of the State Administration for
Commodity Price* (BIX¥EREREERER]), Huizhou Huamei
Industrial Company* (BMZEXE %2 7]) under the Head Company
of Chinese Agricultural and Local Products* (B 2&ILEMmE
2\]), Beijing Zhongbo Modern Investment and Consulting Co.,
Ltd.* (bR IERRIREZABREERR]), Beijing Sunshine 100
International Apartment* (1t =[5 ¥ 100BIF2 2 8), Beijing Bluestone
Sales Consulting Co., Ltd.* Gt REAHEBHARET AT, Beijing
Bluestone Times Real Estate Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.* (1t}
ERRREEREBEMER AR, Yunnan China Skyland Property
(Group) Co., Ltd*. (EFEMKRXFEHE(KE)ABR2AF]) and other
institutions From 2015 to 2016, Mr. Li served as the deputy general
manager of Chongging Sunshine 100 Co., Ltd.*(EEB X EMBEARA
FJ). From 2017 to 2018, Mr. Li served as the executive deputy general
manager of Zhongwaijian Health Industry Development Co., Ltd.* (4
HNEREEEEEEARAT). From 2018 to 2019, Mr. Li served as the
vice president of BG City Investment Holding Group Limited* (b5 3
I EE AR A7), From 2019 to 2021 Mr. Li served as a director
of Lancheng Kanghao (Yunnan) Construction Management Co., Ltd.*
EWRE(EmEREEERAF).

Mr. Li has won many awards and honorary titles, including “China’s
Top 10 Real Estate Strategy Consultants” (China Construction News
(China’s Real Estate Market):2003) and “China’s Top 10 Real estate
Planning Experts” (China Marketing Association, China Enterprise
Culture Promotion Association: 2004).
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Senior Management

Mr. Yi Xiaodi (%/i#l) is the chief executive officer of the Group.
For the biography of Mr. Yi, please refer to the sub-section headed
“Executive Directors” above in this annual report.

Mr. Han Bin (883®), aged 53, joined the Group in September 2021
as the vice president, and was appointed as the chief financial officer
of the Company on 8 November 2021. Mr. Han is responsible for
overseeing the financial affairs of the Group. Mr. Han has extensive
experience in accounting, cost management, investment, financing
and tax planning of listed companies.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Han worked successively at Shanghai
EAM Import and Export Co. Ltd.* (/@B E L OBR DA,
Shanghai Jingrui Real Estate (Group) Holdings Limited* (/& & Iz
(£ @) %7 B PR A R)) and Shanghai Huajiang Construction Development
Co. Ltd.* (E)FETERERBRAF) from 1992 to 2007. Mr. Han
served successively as assistant financial controller at Martello
Property Services Inc. and financial controller at Redstone Group from
2008 to 2015. Mr. Han served as deputy general manager of finance
at Dalian Wanda Group* (A¥E&E S E) from March 2015 to July 2016
and was assigned to Australia as general manager of finance with a
Sydney subsidiary of Dalian Wanda Group* from July 2016 to March
2018. Mr. Han served as vice president of finance at Aoyuan Beauty
Valley Technology Co., Ltd.* (REZEAREERMHBRAE]) (formerly
known as Kinghand Industrial Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (OB %1%
AEBAZH AR AF)) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange stock code: 000615)
from June 2018 to June 2021. Mr. Han graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in economics from Nankai University in 1992 and a master’s
degree in business administration from Fudan University in 2003. Mr.
Han possesses the professional qualification of Chartered Professional
Accountant of Canada.

Mr. Ding Gong (T I), aged 56, is the vice president of the Group
and general manager of product centre of the Group. Mr. Ding
joined the Group in September 2003 as the assistant to the project
general manager of Nanning Sunshine 100 City Plaza project and was
appointed as the manager of promotion department of the Group
in July 2005, the manager of brand development department of the
Group in January 2008, the brand director of the Group in February
2010, the assistant to the Chief Executive Officer from September
2011 to May 2018 and the vice president of the Group in May 2018.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ding was a tutor at Guangxi Nanning
College of Education (BT ZE# A Zkt) from October 1989 to
January 1992 and a correspondent of Guangxi Nanning Radio Station
(EPOFEEE A) from January 1992 to January 2003. Mr. Ding obtained
a bachelor’s degree in philosophy from Beijing Normal University (165
B&EKE2) in July 1989.
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Mr. Wu Lei (RE), aged 52, is the vice president of the Group and
the general manager of the Central-South China Project Management
Centre and Wuhan Zhifang project. Mr. Wu joined the Group in June
2002 as the manager of procurement department of Nanning Sunshine
100 City Plaza project and was appointed as the assistant to the
general manager of Liuzhou Sunshine 100 Classic Era project in April
2003, the assistant to the general manager of Changsha Sunshine 100
International New Town project in January 2004, the general manager
of Changsha Sunshine 100 International New Town project in April
2009 and the deputy general manager of Central-South China Project
Management Centre in December 2011, the general manager of Yixing
project and Chengdu project since February 2016 and March 20186,
respectively, the general manager of Wuxi Taihu new project from
March 2017 to January 2018, the general manager of Wuhan Lakeside
Residence project since July 2016, the general manager of Wenzhou
City Company &/ T2 &]) from February 2018 to November 2019,
the general manager of the Central-South China Project Management
Centre from July 2012 to September 2021, and worked for Wuhan
Zhifang project since September 2018.

Mr. Wu completed his undergraduate studies from Hubei University (748
JERE8) in June 1997 and completed the advanced training courses in
real estate innovative management from Tsinghua University (/&% X £2)
in April 2009. He received a certificate as a mid-level financial analyst (1
44 FhAM) from the Ministry of Personnel, PRC (FFZE A R L ANE A 2 3F)
in November 2001. Mr. Wu Lei is the son of Ms. Fan, a non-executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. Xing Baohua(fiBEE &), aged 59, is the vice president of the Group,
since February 2021.Before joining the Group, Mr Xing Baohua served
as a director of Beijing Shangrong Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.
LR BEEEFEEAR AT, from 2019 to 2020 as vice president
of ZhongGeng Group(FF B E), from 2010 to 2019 as the chief
accountant of Beijing Capital Development Co., Ltd., (1t & #BFE 2
8RR A E)), from 2005 to 2010 as Tianhong Baoye (KJEE %) financial
director. Mr. Xing received a bachelor’'s degree and a master’'s degree
from Norbei University of Finance and Economics(R1LEI&EAE) in
1988 and 1993, and then received his doctorate from the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences in 2004.

Mr. Li Qiang(ZE3), aged 49, joined the Group in November 2021
as the Vice President in charge of human resources work. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Li Qiang had worked successively in Gemdale
Group(& 5% &), Jiaming Real Estate(3 #4301 ZE), Napa Real Estate
and Beijing Investment Development(# 1A E B IR 2 &), serving as
the head of the Regional Administration and Personnel Department,
general manager and assistant president of the Administrative and
Human Resources Center respectively. Mr. Li Qiang graduated from
Renmin University of China with a bachelor’s degree in economics,
and then graduated from Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University (It R KX EFEERL), with a master's degree in
management.
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Joint Company Secretary

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (2% ¥), aged 37, is the Company Secretary of
the Group. Mr. Tsang is currently a partner of Stevenson, Wong & Co,
specialising in corporate finance and commercial law. Mr. Tsang has
been an independent non-executive director of Sterling Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1825) since September 2021; Zijing International
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 8340) since August 2023; and
Skymission Group Holdings Limited (stock code1429) since September
2023. Mr. Tsang has been an independent non-executive director from
September 2021 to January 2023 and re-designated as a non-executive
director of CROSSTEC Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 3893)
since January 2023; a non-executive director of China Regenerative
Medicine International Limited (stock code: 8158) since January 2020;
a joint company secretary of Sundy Service Group Co. Ltd (stock code:
9608) since January 2021; the joint company secretary of Mabpharm
Limited-B (stock code: 2181) since May 2019; and a joint company
secretary of 1957 & Co. (Hospitality) Limited (stock code: 8495) since
August 2022.

Mr. Tsang was the company secretary of Sino Energy International
Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 1096) from November 2018
to July 2019; an independent non-executive director of INNO-TECH
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8202) from June 2019 to June 2020;
the company secretary of Moody Technology Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1400) from January 2019 to November 2019. Mr.
Tsang had been appointed as the company secretary and authorised
representative of Mobile Internet (China) Holdings Limited (stock code:
1439) from February 2020 to February 2021.

Mr. Tsang was admitted as a solicitor in Australia and Hong Kong in
May 2012 and December 2013, respectively. Mr. Tsang obtained a
bachelor degree in laws and commerce (accounting) from University
of Melbourne, Australia in August 2008 and then obtained a master
degree in laws from the same university in August 2010. Mr. Tsang
then obtained the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the City
University of Hong Kong in July 2011.

Mr. Tsang has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the reporting period, in accordance with Article 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present the directors’ report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

Global Offering

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20
September 2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law").
The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) became listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange") on 13 March
2014 (“Listing Date"”) (the “Listing”).

Principal Activities And Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in property and land development,
property investment, property management and hotel operation in
China. An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year by principal
activities is set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The fair review, major risks and uncertainties in relation to the
businesses of the Group, the performance of the Group during the
year and the discussion and analysis on significant factors in relation
to results and financial conditions are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement, Financial Review and Business Review of this annual
report, respectively. The future development of the Group's
businesses is discussed in different parts of this annual report,
including the Chairman’s Statement and the chapters regarding
significant investments or capital assets of this annual report.

Results

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 123 to
124 of this annual report.

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are set out in Note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividends
Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Dividend Waived Or Agreed to be Waived by
Shareholders

For the year ended 31 December, 2022, the Board confirms that no
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted the dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”).
Pursuant to the dividend policy, subject to the Companies Law, through
a general meeting we may declare dividends in any currency but no
dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by
the Board. The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”) provide that dividends may be declared and paid out
of our profit, realized or unrealized, or from any reserve set aside from
profits which the directors determine is no longer needed. With the
sanction of an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorized for this purpose in accordance with the Companies
Law.

The amount of dividend actually distributed to our Shareholders will
depend upon the Group’s earnings and financial condition, operating
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions that our
Directors may deem relevant and will be subject to approval of our
shareholders. Our Board has an absolute discretion to recommend any
dividend for any year, and there is no assurance that dividends of any
amount will be declared or distributed in any future year.

Financial Summary

A financial summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for
the last five financial years are set out on pages 9 to 10 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following section lists out the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other
risks and uncertainties further to the principal risk areas outlined
below. Besides, this report does not constitute a recommendation or
an advice for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company and
investors are advised to make their own judgment or consult their own
investment advisors before making any investment in the securities of
the Company.
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Policy and market risk

Substantially all of the Group’s property portfolio is located in the PRC
and all of the Group’s revenue is derived from the PRC. As such, the
Group is therefore subject to the risks associated with China’s real
estate market. The Group's operations in the PRC may be exposed
to the risks of policy change, interest rate change, demand-supply
imbalance and the overall economic conditions, which may pose an
adverse impact on the Group’s business, financial condition or results
of operations.

In order to better respond to the opportunities and challenges from
the changes in policies, the Group maintained close communication
with relevant authorities and carried out in-depth study on the policy
direction. In addition to maintaining growth by accelerating the
development of existing products, in view that China has now started
entering a mature period of real estate development, the proportion of
sales from non-residential real estate products gradually picks up and
governmental policies also shows greater support for the operation of
rental housing and commercial properties, the Group will accelerate
transformation by increasing the proportions of two core products, i.e.
Commercial Street Complex and Himalaya Apartments, to fully capture
the market opportunities.

Operation risk

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk factors distinctive
to property development and property related businesses. Default
on the part of its buyers, tenants, sub-tenants and strategic business
partners, and inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels of negative
impact on the Group's operational results and reputation.

The Group set up relevant systems and policies to prevent accidents.
In particular, various systems were established for management of
quality, progress, safety, material and cost of project development
with project management staff of regional and front-line companies
monitoring project progress, construction quality and work site on
a real-time basis. It conducted strict assessment on suppliers and
implemented stringent control on construction changes, improved
construction safety protection measures and set specific assessment
indicators.
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Capital risk

Property development is capital intensive. The Group finances its land
acquisitions and property developments through a combination of
internally generated funds and external financing. Its ability to obtain
external financing in the future is subject to a variety of uncertainties,
including the conditions of the financial markets and economic
conditions in the PRC. If the Group fails to secure adequate financing
or renew its existing loans prior to their expiry as a result of these
governmental actions and policy initiatives, there may be a material
adverse effect on the business operations and financial condition of
the Group.

Under the current challenging financial condition, the Group
strengthened the centralized capital management to ensure the
capital safety. We emphasized on active sales and timely return
on investment and ensured reasonable investment based on the
operation and financing plans, thereby achieving dynamic equilibrium
of cash flow. Meanwhile, the Group also expanded and diversified the
financing channels, actively facilitated financial innovation, consolidated
financial resources and established an effective ecosystem of financial
cooperation so as to respond to the market risk and meet the capital
requirements for the Group’s development.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and conducts its operations
mainly in Renminbi. The Group closely monitored the fluctuations of
the Renminbi exchange rate and gave prudent consideration as to
entering into any currency swap arrangement as and when appropriate
for hedging corresponding risks. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had not engaged in hedging activities for managing foreign currency
risk.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the Reporting Period, purchases from the Group's largest supplier
and five largest suppliers accounted for 15.07% and 37.54% (2021:
19.63% and 39.33%) of the Group's total purchases, respectively.

For the Reporting Period, the Group's sales to its largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for 0.88% and 3.09% (2021: 0.51%
and 1.57%) of the Group's total revenue, respectively. Sales to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the
Group's revenue in the year.
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None of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) or any of their
associates or any shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
(who, to the best of the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers.

Relationship with Customers and Suppliers

We are committed to maintaining sound relationship with customers
and improving their satisfaction. By providing continuing training
and putting forward strict requirements, our front-line receptionists,
sales persons, and property management personnel, etc. are able
to continuously promote the level of communication and service for
customers. Also, we keep focusing on user experience, collect and
respond to customers’ feedback and therefore the Company and its
brand remain to be highly recommended among customers.

We have adopted a just, fair and transparent purchasing system which
enables us to obtain competitive price and terms and to avoid the
impact of changes in prices of other regions or items. In general, we
may purchase raw materials from different local suppliers, and we may
obtain all sorts of raw materials from different sources to impair our
reliance on one supplier. The time of payment provided by suppliers is
subject to various factors, including our relationship with suppliers and
the transaction scale.

The Group has a diversified customer base, majority of which are
individual property buyers. The Directors consider that the Group is
not reliant on any single customer. The largest supplier of the Group
engages in property construction, with which the Group has had
business relationship for over 10 years.

Property and Equipment

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the Company
and the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Company
and the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of changes in the Company's share capital for the Reporting
Period are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
Except for the abovementioned disclosure regarding repurchase
of shares, as at the year ended 31 December 2022, the authorized
share capital or the issued share capital of the Company have no any
movement.
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Professional Tax Advice Recommended

The Shareholders of the Company are advised to seek professional
advice if they are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing,
holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation
to the shares of the Company.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out on pages 127 to 128 in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, details of the reserves available for
distribution of the Company are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The Directors holding office from 1 January 2022 up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yi Xiaodi (Chairman) (appointed on 20 September 2007, and re-
elected on 24 June 2020)

Mr. Fan Xiaochong (Vice Chairman) (appointed on 20 September 2007,
and re-elected on 25 June 2021)

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Xiaohua (appointed on 20 September 2007, and re-elected on
24 June 2020)

Mr. Wang Gongquan (appointed on 1 August 2015, and re-elected on
25 June 2021)
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gu Yunchang (appointed on 17 February 2014, and re-elected on
24 June 2020)

Mr. Ng Fook Ai, Victor (appointed on 17 February 2014, and re-elected
on 21 June 2019)

Mr. Li Chunping (appointed on 31 December 2021)

According to articles 83(3), 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, and the provisions in the CG Code (as defined below) -
Mr. Yi Xiaodi, Ms. Fan Xiaohua, Mr. Gu Yunchang, Mr. Ng Fook Ai,
Victor, and Mr. Li Chunping will retire from office, and being eligible,
have been recommended by the Board for re-election as Directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") to be held in 2023.
The proposals for the re-election of the aforementioned Directors will
be put forward at the AGM.

Board of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 49 to 57 of this annual report.

Confirmation of Independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”) from each of the
independent non-executive Directors for the Reporting Period. The
Company considers that all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of
Appointment

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

For the details of the service contracts and the appointment letters
of each of the Directors, please see the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.
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Directors’ Significant Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the Reporting Period or as at 31 December 2022.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Emolument Policy

A remuneration committee of the Board (the "Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy
and remuneration structure of all the directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
of other positions in the Group. The remunerations of the Directors
were determined by the Board with reference to the duties and
responsibilities of the individual Directors, the performance of the
Company and the prevailing market conditions, and after taking the
advice from the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme") as incentive to eligible participants, details of which are set
out in the sub-section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals
with Highest Emoluments

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
Directors’ remuneration policy and five highest paid individuals are set
out in Notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during
the Reporting Period.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

From 1 January 2022 and up to the date of this annual report, change
in the information that is required to be disclosed and has been
disclosed by the Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules was as follows:

EEREXRS RUREXSWNE
Kiga

REREHAR R EHE20229F12 8318 » EFHENK
ARRETH B AR LA EEEL S BE
AWEARS TG NP EESEEREERE

Bl
E

e

EReRTHHMZES(FHRAE)NRIEER
BREBARXNNFE - HHAORRERBENARASE
I P LA BB ) {8 PR AR A AR AN SR B M S IR 3R %
MEEERSREEBNFHMEE - EZHIH2ZE
BEERARBZBE  ARRZKRBARERTR
mFHEEENESTSFLES  RREFSELR

.
TE °

ARREERA—RBRE S (RERAD)) - (5
HeER2EENRE  BREFSFEHARTX
(BRI D&

EREFMRARSHFMAL
RIBCEEATAMTRNEXEE 1K BEHES
FER R AU SRS FMA TS FIBEHRGEAY
ERER M E8 I o

AHERA - BEEEHRARBHREEAME -

ESRITHRAEARTHES

B2022F 1 A1 BREEAFHRAY  EFREL™
HEIF13512QEF@QEEBEFEQBRATHERE
WERHEREEHETIWT

2022 EEHE  BRI00FEZEKERAT 65



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

Mr. Ng Fook Ai has served as an independent chairman, and the
chairman of remuneration committee, a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of QT Vascular LTD (listed on
the main board of the Singapore Stock Exchange, stock code: 510.SI)
since January, 2022.

Mr. Ng Fook Ai, Victor has served as an independent director of
Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd. (listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange Mainboard, stock code: S7P.Sl) since April 2022.

Mr. Ng Fook Ai, Victor has served as an independent chairman, and the
chairman of the remuneration committee, and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of Quantum Healthcare Ltd.
(listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange — Catalist, stock code: V8Y.SI)
since May 2022 (The listing status of QT Vascular Ltd. was transferred
to Quantum Healthcare Ltd. on 28 July 2022).

On 2 May 2023, a winding-up order was granted by the High Court of
The Hong Kong Special Administrative for the winding up of Jiayuan
International Group Limited. Mr. Gu Yunchang is an independent non-
executive director of Jiayuan International Group Limited. Mr. Gu
Yunchang has provided the following confirmations to the Company:
(i) he has no connection with and no involvement in the petition; (ii)
he is not a respondent of the petition nor a party of the winding up
proceedings of Jiayuan International Group Limited, and is not aware
of any actual or potential claim that has been or will be made against
him because of the petition; and (iii) save and except the order, there is
no other matter which is required to be disclosed by Mr. Gu Yunchang
pursuant to Rules 13.51(2) (h) to (v) of the Listing Rules, and there is no
other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of the Company
and its shareholders. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 19 May 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information in respect of
the Directors and the Chief Executive Officer required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Relationship with Employees

We believe that employees are the most valuable asset of the
Group, and our human resources management aims to recognize
and give back to our employees’ contribution. By means of providing
competitive remuneration and implementing appraisal system with
appropriate incentives as well as providing adequate training and
opportunities, we endeavor to promote the career development of the
Group's employees. Approximately 318 employees have been serving
for the Group for over 10 years.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of Directors
or chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the”"SFO")) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or (ii) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the
register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code") were as follows:

(i) Interests in the Company

ESREERTHRARRKG - tHMARG
RRGPHERRXE

R2022F12H31H  EERARAETETHAE
RAR R R EFMARE LB (FERES MBAEED
((BERMBEH ) EXVID MG, - BRI, k&
HFHER()VEREESRAEKRIEXVEET7RED
o BHEARAT RERZANERSAR (BIEIRE
BHRAEGROABEXEEIESR R E R
KA - SR IEEH REAE GHIF352{FBELRA
AEIGFEMERMANERIOAR - RGIBELT
NEIEEHEITESF R HMIRLEST A (PR ) B
GARNA] RERZMOERIORBIAT ¢

(i) RFELFHER

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Capacities in which Interests in capital of the
Name of Director interests are held Shares Company Notes
EENSR BRESNSN BiniER BFEHaSTL i e
Yi Xiaodi Persons acting in concert 1,712,056,906 (L) 67.12% 1,2,3
SN —BUTEIAT

Interest of a controlled corporation

RIEH AR E R

Founder of a discretionary trust

PREEEEIZA
Fan Xiaochong Persons acting in concert 1,712,056,906 (L) 67.12% 1,2, 4
SNy —BITEIAT

Interest of a controlled corporation

Rt EEE R

Founder of a discretionary trust

EREEFEEIZA
Fan Xiaohua Persons acting in concert 1,712,056,906 (L) 67.12% 1,2,5
Pl —BITEIA T

Interest of a controlled corporation
Rt EE R

Founder of a discretionary trust
REEEEIZA
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Notes:

(1)

(2)
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The letter “L"” denotes the person’s long positions in the
Shares.

40% of the issued share capital of Joywise Holdings Limited
("Joywise") is held by Ming Fai International Limited (“Ming
Fai”) and 60% of the issued share capital of Joywise is held
by Harvest Well Holdings Limited (“"Harvest Well”). Both
Ming Fai and Harvest Well are deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the Shares held by Joywise. 72.4% of the issued
share capital of each of Ming Fai and Harvest Well are held by
Fantasy Races Limited. In light of the above, Fantasy Races
Limited is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the
Shares held by Joywise.

As at the date of this report, 1,418,859,855 ordinary shares
of the Company held by Joywise have been charged, which
represents approximately 55.62% of the total issued shares of
the Company.

Mr. Yi Xiaodi is the founder of a discretionary family trust, the
discretionary beneficiaries of which are Mr. Yi Xiaodi, his family
members and other persons who may join in from time to time
(the “Yi Family Trust”). By virtue of the SFO, he is deemed to
be interested in the Shares which Fantastic Magician Limited is
interested in.

Mr. Yi Xiaodi is also one of the founders of a discretionary
investment collective trust established by Mr. Yi Xiaodi, Mr.
Fan Xiaochong, Ms. Fan Xiaohua, Mr. Jin Xiangfei, Ms. Liu
Chaohui, Mr. Tian Feng, Mr. Li Minggiang (the “Individual
Controlling Shareholders"”), the discretionary beneficiaries
of which are the Individual Controlling Shareholders and other
persons who may join in from time to time (the “Sunshine
Trust 1”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yi Xiaodi is deemed to
be interested in the Shares which Fantasy Races Limited is
interested in.

Mr. Yi Xiaodi is one of the parties to each of the concert
party agreement dated 12 August 2010 entered into among
Mr. Yi Xiaodi, Mr. Fan Xiaochong, Ms. Fan Xiaohua and Mr.
Liao Chimei (the “2010 Agreement”) and the concert party
agreement dated 1 August 2013 entered into among the
Individual Controlling Shareholders (the “2013 Agreement”).
By virtue of the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in the
Shares which the other parties to each of those agreements
are interested in.

In light of the above and the other notes, Mr. Yi Xiaodi is
deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by
Joywise.

Mr. Yi Xiaodi has the control of Delight Grandeur Limited (18
ZHBMR AT (“Delight Grandeur”) which holds 18,857,000
Shares, accounting for 0.74% of the issued share capital. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yi Xiaodi is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Delight Grandeur.
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Mr. Fan Xiaochong is the founder of a discretionary family
trust, the discretionary beneficiaries of which are Mr. Fan
Xiaochong, his family members and other persons who may
join in from time to time (the "FXC Family Trust”). By virtue
of the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in the Shares which
True Passion Limited is interested in.

Mr. Fan Xiaochong is also one of the founders of the Sunshine
Trust |. By virtue of the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in
the Shares which Fantasy Races Limited is interested in.

Mr. Fan Xiaochong is also one of the founders of a
discretionary collective trust established by the Individual
Controlling Shareholders, the discretionary beneficiaries of
which are three persons and other persons who may join in
from time to time (the “Sunshine Trust Il”). By virtue of the
SFO, he is deemed to be interested in the Shares which Floral
Crystal Limited is interested in.

Mr. Fan Xiaochong is one of the parties to each of the 2010
Agreement and the 2013 Agreement. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Fan Xiaochong is deemed to be interested in the Shares which
the other parties to each of those agreements are interested
in.

In light of the above and the other notes, Mr. Fan Xiaochong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Joywise under
the SFO.

Ms. Fan Xiaohua is the founder of a discretionary family trust,
the discretionary beneficiaries of which are Ms. Fan Xiaohua,
her family members and other persons who may join in from
time to time (the “FXH Family Trust"”). By virtue of the SFO,
she is deemed to be interested in the Shares which Glorious
Glory Limited is interested in.

Ms. Fan Xiaohua is also one of the founders of the Sunshine
Trust |. By virtue of the SFO, she is deemed to be interested in
the Shares which Fantasy Races Limited is interested in.

Ms. Fan Xiaohua is one of the parties to each of the 2010
Agreement and the 2013 Agreement. By virtue of the SFO,
she is deemed to be interested in the Shares which the other
parties to each of those agreements are interested in.

In light of the above and the other notes, Ms. Fan Xiaohua is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Joywise under
the SFO.
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(i)
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Interests in associated corporations

Name of
Director

SRS

Capacities in which
interests are held

HRERNS 7

Name of
associated
corporation

HEBEEBE

(i) REBEENER

Interests in
Shares

BRER

Percentage of
shareholding
FRAESL

Yi Xiaodi
v

Fan Xiaochong
B

Fan Xiaohua
++ s
Bl

Yi Xiaodi
ZNE

Fan Xiaochong
B/

Fan Xiaohua
B

Yi Xiaodi
S8

Fan Xiaochong
3B/

Persons acting in concert
—BITBAL

Founder of discretionary trusts
2HEERAIZA

Persons acting in concert
—STBAL

Founder of discretionary trusts
HEEFERIA

Persons acting in concert
—BITBAL

Founder of discretionary trusts
PREEFERIZA

Persons acting in concert
—SITBAL

Interest of a controlled corporation
T EEER

Founder of discretionary trusts
FREFRIZA

Persons acting in concert
—BITBAL

Interest of a controlled corporation
AR R

Founder of discretionary trusts
2REEFAIZA

Persons acting in concert
—BITBAL

Interest of a controlled corporation
AR

Founder of discretionary trusts
HEEFERIZA
Persons acting in concert

—HITBHAL

Founder of discretionary trusts
REEFERIZA
Persons acting in concert

—HIIBHAL

Harvest Well
ER

Harvest Well
EE

Harvest Well
EE

Joywise

eSS

Joywise

]

Joywise
85

Ming Fai
i

Ming Fai
i

50,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Name of

Name of Capacities in which associated Interests in Percentage of
Director interests are held corporation Shares shareholding Notes
EERS FREEGHSR HEEERE BRizES HERESL [ef:
Fan Xiaohua Founder of discretionary trusts Ming Fai 50,000 100% 3
BREE 2REEFAIZA e

Persons acting in concert

—BITBAL

Founder of discretionary trusts

2HEEFEAIZA
Yi Xiaodi Beneficial owner Delight Grandeur 50,000 100% 1
5\ ERBEAA g

Person acting in concert

—HITBAL
Fan Xiaochong Beneficial owner Delight Grandeur 50,000 100% 2
BN ERBEAA iz

Person acting in concert

—BITBAL
Fan Xiaohua Beneficial owner Delight Grandeur 50,000 100% 3
SO ERBEAA iz

Person acting in concert

—FITBAL
Notes: Mz -
(1) Please refer to Note (3) in the sub-section above headed “(i) (1) B2BEEXTREARBMNER] DM

Interests in the Company”.

(2) Please refer to Note (4) in the sub-section above headed “(i)
Interests in the Company”.

(3) Please refer to Note (5) in the sub-section above headed “(i)
Interests in the Company”.

(4) Please refer to Note (2) and (3) in the sub-section above

headed “(i) Interests in the Company”.
(5) Please refer to Note (2) and (4) in the sub-section above
headed “(i) Interests in the Company”.

(6) Please refer to Note (2) and (5) in the sub-section above
headed “(i) Interests in the Company”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded
in the register of the Company required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

(3) e

N

2 H2ELEXTORAE
(4) °

A HY R ER | o B Y A

B F2BEXTORARRMES] D HHE

(5) °

@) FH2HLEXTORARR R D EBHEEQ2)
)c

=
@

(6)  F2BLEXTORARBNER |5 &K Q)
K(4) »

6) FH2HLEXORARRMER D)
K(5)

B EXFTEESIN - 20224128318 @ #EARD
RIEEREBITHAERARA RIS AE (X
BEHRHBEEOEXVED) ARG - HERGOKE
FHEBRIBEEHF KR GHEXVEELARRR
RIEEA L EENF 362577 E NS R MEOE M
HMERSAR  IRBEETAESITAEERR
AR T A S sk R o .
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights
in any other corporate body.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests or Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2022, to the best of the knowledge of the directors, the
following persons (not being a director or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

EFRERGORASFHER

BAFEREMWEEIN  ARMEHARERRR - 85
ERTENEFHRES BRBIARM 8RN FLE
BEARRRIRO HEFAT A MEROER - A
WETEEMZZER - IRE AR R S E M E
RAMEHLZHIASES @ HRFEZBRBRIARR185
B F Z IR EAE A B R ESZ SRR -

FRERRRERGRARKRMHERNRE

R2022F 128318 » BESHTRM © AR BBRE
BELEEIENE336IEBTHFEENELMATEE -
ARATQEFEEZSARREBITHAL) RIRG K
R P A RIEEER I EKHIEXVIFE2R3
DEREARARR R BEZSTAE

Approximate

Name of Capacities in which percentage of
shareholder interests are held Interests in Shares Shareholding Notes
BREE BRGNS RizEG FREHESL e f
Joywise Beneficial owner 1,458,144,906 (L) 57.16% 1,213
25 ERBEAA
235,055,000 (L) 9.21%

Ming Fai Interest of a controlled corporation 1,693,199,906 (L) 66.38% 1.3
A Rt AR R
Harvest Well Interest of a controlled corporation 1,693,199,906 (L) 66.38% 1.4
ER AR
Fantasy Races Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 1,693,199,906 (L) 66.38% 1,6

AR
Jin Xiangfei Persons acting in concert 1,712,056,906 (L) 67.12% 1,6
AR —BITBAL

Interest of a controlled corporation

AR

Founder of a discretionary trust

2HEEFERIZA
Liu Chaohui Persons acting in concert 1,712,056,906 (L) 67.12% 1.7
EE e —BITBAL

Interest of a controlled corporation
R EE R

Founder of a discretionary trust
EREETEIZA
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Name of
shareholder
BREE

Capacities in which
interests are held

BRERNS R

Interests in Shares

RiniEa

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding
BREHESL i

Notes

Tian Feng

me

Li Minggiang
L

Cititrust Private Trust
(Cayman) Limited

Beyond Steady Limited

Huarong International Financial
Holdings Limited

Persons acting in concert
—HITBAL

Interest of a controlled corporation
AR

Founder of a discretionary trust
PREEFEIZA

Persons acting in concert
—BITBAL

Interest of a controlled corporation
SR EE R

Founder of a discretionary trust
2HEEFAIZA

Trustee

A

Interest of a controlled corporation
AR

Beneficial owner
EnlEBA

Person having a security interest in
shares

RABMREEDZHAL

Interest of a controlled corporation
AR R

1,712,056,906 (L)

1,712,056,906 (L)

1,693,199,906 (L)

235,055,000 (L)

235,055,000 (S)
1,066,619,774 (L)

1,301,674,774 (L)

235,055,000 (S)

67.12% 1,8

67.12% 1,9

66.38% 1,10

9.21% 1,11

9.21%
41.81%

51.03% 1,1

9.21%
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Approximate

Name of Capacities in which percentage of
shareholder interests are held Interests in Shares Shareholding Notes
BRBE BFHERNSH BipER FREHESL P&k
China Huarong Asset Interest of a controlled corporation 1,301,674,774 (L) 51.03% 1,11
Management Co., Ltd. Rt EEER
HREREEEEROERAR
235,055,000 (S) 9.21%
Central New Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 310,263,000 (L) 12.16% 112,13
ERBEAA
Shanghai Libo Investment Interest of a controlled corporation 310,263,000 (L) 12.16% 1,12
Center (LP) ST EEEE
EEBERERLERER)
Beijing Fudingxin Investment Interest of a controlled corporation 310,263,000 (L) 12.16% 1,12
Management Co., Ltd Rt EEER
IREREREERERLT
FDH Private Equity Investment Interest of a controlled corporation 310,263,000 (L) 12.16% 1,12
Fund Management (Tianjin) ST EEEE
Co., Ltd.
ERAREREESER(KE)
BRAT
So Man Chun Interest of a controlled corporation 971,335,000 (L) 38.08% 1,13
#r X & Ry EE R
JONG Yat Kit Interest of a controlled corporation 971,335,000 (L) 38.08% 1,13
HARG Ry EE R
Notes et -
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. The (1) FRLIREXBEEAATHENEOETFE - TR[SIH

Letter “S" denotes the person’s short position in the Shares.

RIBBEALPIRNRD%KRE -

Joywise holds 66.38% of the issued share capital of the Company,
including 9.21% of derivative interests. As at the date of this report,
1,418,859,855 ordinary shares of the Company held by Joywise have
been charged, which represents approximately 55.62% of the total

40% of the issued share capital of Joywise is held by Ming Fai. Ming
Fai is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by

60% of the issued share capital of Joywise is held by Harvest Well.
Harvest Well is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by

(2)
issued shares of the Company.
(3)
Joywise.
(4)
Joywise under the SFO.
74 SUNSHINE 100 CHINA HOLDINGS LTD
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(2) #FHEABADNFOE6.38%EEHITRA - EFBE
9.21%PTERER - HEARESBH X %23#FH
1,418,859,855 % LMW EH - A ARRRIE T
& A H)55.62% °

(3) MAEFBEEFI0%DEITRAE - REEFKBE K
] BRIER AR AR PR AR MR
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(5)

(6)

(7)

72.4% of the issued share capital of each of Ming Fai and Harvest
Well are held by Fantasy Races Limited. In light of the above and
notes 2 and 3, Fantasy Races Limited is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Joywise under the SFO.

Mr. Jin Xiangfei is the founder of a discretionary family trust, the
discretionary beneficiaries of which are Mr. Jin Xiangfei, his family
members and other persons who may join in from time to time
(the “Jin Family Trust”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Jin Xiangfei is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which Creative Goal Limited is
interested in.

Mr. Jin Xiangfei is one of the parties to the 2013 Agreement. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Jin Xiangfei is deemed to be interested in the
Shares which the other parties to that agreement are interested in.
Out of the other parties, three of them, namely, Mr. Yi Xiaodi, Mr.
Fan Xiaochong and Ms. Fan Xiaohua, are deemed to be interested
in the Shares which Mr. Liao Chimei is interested in by virtue of the
2010 Agreement.

In light of the above and the other notes, Mr. Jin Xiangfei is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Joywise under the SFO.

Ms. Liu Chaohui is the founder of a discretionary family trust, the
discretionary beneficiaries of which are Ms. Liu Chaohui, her family
members and other persons who may join in from time to time
(the “Liu Family Trust”). By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Liu Chaohui is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which Butterfly Fairy Limited is
interested in.

Ms. Liu Chaohui is one of the parties to the 2013 Agreement. By
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Liu Chaohui is deemed to be interested in the
Shares which the other parties to that agreement are interested in.
Out of the other parties, three of them, namely, Mr. Yi Xiaodi, Mr.
Fan Xiaochong and Ms. Fan Xiaohua, are deemed to be interested
in the Shares which Mr. Liao Chimei is interested in by virtue of the
2010 Agreement.

In light of the above and the other notes, Ms. Liu Chaohui is deemed
under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Joywise.

(5)

(6)

(7)

2022 FERE

Fantasy Races Limitedis B RRIEEEFE72.4%
BETIRA - BEBEU ERMF2RIEFFRPE K
il - Fantasy Races Limitedi® &i%H 25 s ik (m
R e

FAMMELERBZERRETNAETIA  Z2ERK
ERNEESIBABTPREE ERERBRA
BETEE AN EMA T ((HRREREE]) - RIEE
F ARG - BRI E1R A5 Creative Goal
Limited ¥ AR I #E 52 o

FARLCER2013F BRI NI Z2— - REEHK
HERY - FARELER/BAEZMEEMBETH
TR R - RIE2010F i - =BHMETR
TG IEEE - BN EEREBRELR TR AR
BRERBEEMFRODER -

BB EREMEEESRRREGD - FARE
ERBRBEAMEROER -

Rl A T RS ERIRELNEIZA  Z2ERK
ERMNEEZEAAIEBLZL EREKERA
REREE AR EMA T ((BIRFEMEED) - BIEE
A REFEIED - BIBFIE 2 18 BB Butterfly Fairy
Limited ¥ AR I #E 25 ©

BIAEL T R2013F BRI NI 2 — - REBEFFR
HEGRY - BNELLBRBARMEEMETTH
TR R - REE2010F s - =BHMETR
FENGNaKE - BAREEREBREL TR AR
BEFRBEREMFROER -

RIB A E RO ERES REE P - 2P
TR BRE R RS -

iE¥100hERRERAT 7D



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

(10)
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Mr. Tian Feng is the founder of a discretionary family trust, the
discretionary beneficiaries of which are Mr. Tian Feng, his family
members and other persons who may join in from time to time (the
“Tian Family Trust”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tian Feng is deemed
to be interested in the Shares which Happy Sunshine Limited is
interested in.

Mr. Tian Feng is one of the parties to the 2013 Agreement. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Tian Feng is deemed to be interested in the Shares
which the other parties to that agreement are interested in. Out
of the other parties, three of them, namely, Mr. Yi Xiaodi, Mr. Fan
Xiaochong and Ms. Fan Xiaohua, are deemed to be interested in the
Shares which Mr. Liao Chimei is interested in by virtue of the 2010
Agreement.

In light of the above and the other notes, Mr. Tian Feng is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Joywise under the SFO.

Mr. Li Minggiang is the founder of a discretionary family trust, the
discretionary beneficiaries of which are Mr. Li Minggiang, his family
members and other persons who may join in from time to time
(the “Li Family Trust”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Minggiang
is deemed to be interested in the Shares which Ultimate Triumph
Investments Limited is interested in.

Mr. Li Minggiang is one of the parties to the 2013 Agreement. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Minggiang is deemed to be interested in
the Shares which the other parties to that agreement are interested
in. Out of the other parties, three of them, namely, Mr. Yi Xiaodi, Mr.
Fan Xiaochong and Ms. Fan Xiaohua, are deemed to be interested
in the Shares which Mr. Liao Chimei is interested in by virtue of the
2010 Agreement.

In light of the above and the other notes, Mr. Li Minggiang is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Joywise under the SFO.

Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee”) is the trustee
under the Yi Family Trust, the FXC Family Trust, the FXH Family
Trust, the Jin Family Trust, the Tian Family Trust, the Liu Family
Trust, the Li Family Trust, the Sunshine Trust | and the Sunshine
Trust Il. For details of these trusts, see “History, Reorganization and
Group Structure — Establishment of Offshore Trusts” from page 121
to page 122 of the prospectus (the “Prospectus”).

In light of the above and notes 2 and 3, the Trustee is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Joywise under the SFO.

2022 Annual Report
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B - RIF2010F a5 - = BEMFTATAD
Z/NEESE BIRRERERERIRRITAR
TRB PR e

RIBA LR EMNTEELRRBEEN - BEELE
BARBBLEI MBI R -

FTHREERERRIKETEMRIZA  Z2EX
BREANEEIBEARTHRLE  HREKE
KA NI IMAR EM A+ (TEEREEE]) - R
EREFMEGD - FHREERBFEUIimate

Triumph Investments Limited i p&{p iz -
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(11)  100% of the equity interests of Beyond Steady Limited are indirectly
held by Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited and
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. Therefore, Huarong
International Financial Holdings Limited and China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. are deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Beyond Steady Limited under the SFO.

(12) 60% of the equity interest of Central New Ventures Limited is
held by Shanghai Libo Investment Center (LP). Beijing Fudingxin
Investment and Management Co., Ltd., wholly owned by FDH Private
Equity Investment Fund Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd., is the
general partner of Shanghai Libo Investment Center (LP). Therefore,
Shanghai Libo Investment Center (LP), Beijing Fudingxin Investment
and Management Co., Ltd. and FDH Private Equity Investment Fund
Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. are deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Central New Ventures Limited under the SFO.

(13) SO Man Chun and JONG Yat Kit have been appointed as the
joint and several receivers over the 971,335,000 shares of the
Company, 492,947,000 shares of which was pledged by Joywise and
310,263,000 shares of which was pledged by Central New Ventures
Limited. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 4 August 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the directors were not
aware of any persons (who were not directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

No controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or its subsidiary
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance, whether for the provision of services or otherwise, to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the Reporting Period

(11) EHNERSRERERARMTHEREEETER
BB R A FIEE T ABeyond Steady Limited 100%
iR - it - REBEFHFRBEERD - EBERS
BIZRERAFRTREREETERHBRA A
W R E¥ B Beyond Steady Limited s i&n s -

(12) EEBERERL(BEREZ)FAFCentral New
Ventures Limited 60%#% - It R E R{EIREER
ERAGI(AERMREREESEEXRBERA
Al—2EMBAR) I LEEEIRERL(ERER)
MEBAEA Bt BEEHFREEKD - L8
BERERL(EREAE)  EREREREAEES
BRARRESMREREESEER(RE)ERAA]
%18 E¥5 B Central New Ventures Limited T %
e ©

(13) #®HMXERHFARBEHZEAE971,335,0000 A A A
BROMERREREE A + 492,947,000 8%
3 R4 F K - 310,263,0008% A% {5 B Central New
Ventures Limited#&# - F BB 2M QA RIN2022F
SR4REMH AL -

B EXFWBEESIN - R2022612A318 » BFL L
FERALTAIFEERARFAEZITRAL) RIRH KRR
RDFPHEBIREFES KRB KO EXVEE2R3ID BHREE
FHEMEDZNAR  NARBEEFRPEENIFE3361F
ERRZIGFT B DM ERSAR -

ERERREXSHNER

RBEHA - ERRRCEER LR RENE Q5
ERARRLEEMNE AR L HAREESH =B
BARNEMEH(THARKREAEMER PERLMHE
EHEBEAER -
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Purchase, Sale and Redemption of The Listed
Securities of The Company

Events of Default under the 6.50% Convertible Bonds Due
2021 (the “2021 Bonds”), the 10.5% Senior Notes Due 2021
(the “2021 Notes”), the 2022 Notes and the 2023 Notes

On the maturity date of the 2021 Bonds, i.e. 11 August 2021, the Company
failed to pay the principal and the premium in the sum of USD50,866,100
and the last instalment of interest of USD1,475,500. As such, an event of
default under the terms and conditions of the 2021 Bonds occurred. The
2021 Bonds was also delisted from the Stock Exchange on 11 August 2021.

On the maturity date of the 2021 Notes, i.e. 5 December 2021, the
Company failed to pay the principal of USD170 million and the last
instalment of interest of USD8,925,000. As such, an event of default under
the terms and conditions of the 2021 Notes occurred. As of the date of
this report, the Company has repaid approximately USD31.9 million of
the principal and approximately USD138.1 million of the principal remains
outstanding.

On the maturity date of the 2022 Notes, i.e. 29 June 2022, the Company
failed to pay the principal of USD219,600,000 and the total accrued and
unpaid interest of USD28,468,700. As such, an event of default under the
terms and conditions of the 2022 Notes occurred. The 2022 Notes were
delisted from the Stock Exchange on 29 June 2022.

On the maturity date of the 2023 Notes, i.e. 3 October 2023, the Company
failed to pay the principal of USD120,000,000 and the total accrued and
unpaid interest of USD38,400,000. As such, an event of default under the
terms and conditions of the 2023 Notes occurred (together with the event
of default under the terms of conditions of the 2021 Bonds, 2021 Notes
and 2022 Notes (the “"Events of Default”).

Such Events of Default will trigger cross default provisions under certain
other debt instruments entered into by the Group, which may become
immediately due and payable if the creditors choose to accelerate.

The Company has been proactively communicating with the relevant
creditors. As at the date of this report, the Company has not received any
acceleration notices from any creditors. The Company is using all efforts to
raise the necessary funds to repay the outstanding amount and to remedy
the Events of Default as soon as possible. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 11 August 2021, 25 August 2021, 6
December 2021 and 29 June 2022 and 3 October 2023.
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R2021EZHEHBIHA R (BN12021412 A58) » AR FIKREE
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Events of Default under the 8.50% Corporate Bonds Due 2022
(“2022 8.50% Bonds”), the 9.0% Corporate Bonds Due 2022
(the “2022 9.0% Bonds”) and the 8.4% Corporate Bonds Due
2023 (the “2023 Bonds”) (together, the “Onshore Bonds”)

On the maturity date of the 2022 8.50% Bonds, i.e. 22 September
2022, the Company’s subsidiary, Guangxi Vantone, failed to pay the
principal of RMB582,000,000 and the total accrued and unpaid interest
of RMB49,470,000.00. As such, an event of default under the terms and
conditions of the 2022 8.560% Bonds occurred.

On the maturity date of the 2022 9.0% Bonds, i.e. 30 October 2022,
Guangxi Vantone failed to pay the principal of RMB120,000,000 and the
total accrued and unpaid interest of RMB10,800,000.00. As such, an
event of default under the terms and conditions of the 2022 9.0% Bonds
occurred.

On the maturity date of the 2023 Bonds, i.e. 24 February 2023, Guangxi
Vantone failed to pay the principal of RMB1,500,000,000 and the total
accrued and unpaid interest of RMB252,000,000. As such, an event of
default under the terms and conditions of the 2023 Bonds occurred.

Guangxi Vantone has been proactively communicating with the relevant
creditors regarding the repayment of principal and interests with a view
of reaching a solution acceptable to the creditors as soon as possible. As
at the date of this report, the 2022 8.50% Bonds and 2022 9.0% Bonds
remain listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the 2023 Bonds remain
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and the Company and Guangxi
Vantone have not received any acceleration notices from any creditors.
The Company is using all efforts to raise the necessary funds to repay the
outstanding amount and to remedy the defaults of the Onshore Bonds as
soon as possible.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of
the Company'’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law or the laws of the Cayman Islands
where the Company was incorporated which would oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

1?2022 B HIHY8.50% A FEH ([20225F8.50%
BF]) » 2022F B HARY9.0% A FEF ([2022%F
9.0%f&% 1) * 2023F E| Hin18.4% L EIE %2023
E£RBE]) (FBIL2FESF)ETHENEMS

20224 8.50% EHAEIHIH (B12022F9A722H) * AR
AT RAIEREBARES SRS ARKESS2,000,0007T
Mg RAMFEAF ARYA9,470,000.007T ' At - B
202278 50% BEHERRIGHETHELNEM

M2022F9.0%EFMEIHA (BN20224F10A30A) * &
mEEREL N AE AR 120,000,000 & EH KA
MEAEF ARK10,800,000.007T © At © B 3420224
9.0% EHIEHRIKHF B THELNEM -

R2023FEEHMBIHAR (BN12023F28248) - EAE®A
BE RS AR 1,500,000,0007T & ERT R AN FIE AT
AR#252,000,0007T © At - BEE2023F EHIEHR K
EHETRELSEM -

EAEB HEEBRBHRAREFABENFEEEESRFE
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Non-competition Undertaking

Each of the Individual Controlling Shareholders, Joywise, Ming Fai,
Harvest Well (together with the Individual Controlling Shareholders, the
“Controlling Shareholders”) has, under the deed of non-competition
dated 17 February 2014 (the "Deed of Non-Competition”), undertaken
and covenanted with the Company that for so long as they and/or their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), directly or indirectly,
whether individually or taken together, remain the Controlling Shareholders
of the Company, each of them will not, and will procure his associates
not to directly or indirectly, (including through any controlled company,
associate, corporate body, partnership, joint venture or other contractual
arrangement) carry on, engage, invest, participate or otherwise be
interested in the property development business in the PRC.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the Company of
their compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition for disclosure in this
annual report during the Reporting Period.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors (other than Independent
non-executive Directors) or their respective associates had engaged in or
had any interest in any business which, directly or indirectly, competed or
might compete with the businesses of the Group.

Connected Transactions

Save as the disclosure in “Financial Assistance to a Connected Person” in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section in this report, the Group
did not enter into any other connected transactions not exempted under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period. A summary
of material related party transactions, made during the Reporting Period
is disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. The
material related party transactions as set out in the consolidated financial
statements do not constitute (or are fully exempt) connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions. The Company also confirmed that it
had complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Ongoing Litigations

Litigation Related to Chengdu Primary Land Development
Project

In 2005 and 2007, the Group entered into a series of co-operation
agreements with Chenghua District, Chengdu and local government
authorities under it to conduct primary development of a parcel of land
located in the district. Pursuant to these frame agreements, the Group
was responsible for providing assistance to the local government in overall
project design and planning, relocation and resettlement of incumbent
residents and businesses, as well as clearance and delivery of land. It was
agreed that if the land is sold at a premium greater than the cost the Group
have incurred to prepare it and if the Group win the bid at the auction, the
Group will be entitled to deduct its incurred cost from the land premium to
be paid; if, however, another developer wins the bid at the auction, the local
government shall, within seven days it receives the land premium from the
purchaser, pay the same to the Group (after deduction of an agreed fixed
amount as the government’s share of the profit from the land sale).

The project consists of four phases with site areas of approximately
244,361 square metres, 59,967 square metres, 14,667 square metres
and 109,334 square metres respectively. Phase | was completed and the
underlying land was sold through a public auction to a third party in July
2007. The land premium was paid to the Chenghua district government in
2008, and it began to make payments to the Group pursuant to the frame
agreements with the Group. The Group cumulatively received approximately
RMB1,927.0 million from the Chenghua district government out of such
land premium proceeds. A remaining land premiums that the Group is
entitled to, in the amount of RMB581.1 million, however, remained unpaid
and stayed on the Group's balance sheet as an overdue trade receivable.

On 28 January 2015, the Group commenced proceedings at the Sichuan
Higher People's Court (the “Higher Court”) against the Government of
Chenghua District, Chengdu and Reconstruction and Development Office
of Dangerous Buildings of Chenghua District, Chengdu (X #m K E R B E
chiEFIZE P A=), for the payment of the Land clearance income and the
management fees of RMB15 million, which totaled RMB596.1 million. The
Higher Court accepted the case on 10 February 2015 and commenced the
court session for the case in June 2015.

During the trial of the Case, the Group had negotiated with the Government
of Chenghua District for several times in the hope of reaching a settlement.
As part of the settlement agenda, the Group filed an application for
withdrawal of the Case (the "Withdrawal Application”) to the Higher
Court on 24 July 2018, and the Higher Court has accepted and approved the
Withdrawal Application. Both parties wish to reach a settlement agreement
in respect of the Case and determine the amount of settlement as soon
as possible. As at the date of this report, both parties had not reached a
settlement agreement in respect of the Case. The Company will publish
relevant announcements on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company’s website when there is any material development in respect of
the case.
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Litigation Related to the Loan to Baijiarui

The Group, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, filed a lawsuit
before the No. 3 Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing Municipality (3t /=1

=& ARERT) for a dispute arising from a private lending. The lawsuit
has been formally accepted by the No. 3 Intermediate People’s Court of
Beijing Municipality.

The lawsuit relates to a loan in the principal amount of RMB250.0 million
granted by the Group to Shenzhen Baijiarui Investment Co., Ltd. (&I
AERIEE AR AR]) (“Baijiarui”) with an interest rate of 12% per annum
and a renewed term up to 31 December 2018 pursuant to the loan contract
(the “Loan Contract”) entered into with Baijiarui on 28 January 2016 and
several supplementary contracts signed subsequently. To guarantee the
performance of the Loan Contract, Shenzhen China Create City Renewal
Group Co., Ltd. (RINITTHRBIEIH T EFEEHBRAF) (“China Create City
Renewal”) has provided a pledge guarantee for the full settlement of
obligations under the Loan Contract by pledging the 100% equity interest
in Baijiarui and derivative interests thereof held by it, and Shenzhen
China Create Asset Management Co., Ltd. (RYITTRRIAIEEEEARA
7]) (“China Create Asset"”) has provided a joint liability guarantee. Upon
maturity of the loan, the borrower failed to repay RMB250.0 million out of
the loan principal and interest accrued thereon, and neither China Create
City Renewal nor China Create Asset performed their respective guarantee.
Sunshine 100 Group filed a lawsuit before the No. 3 Intermediate People’s
Court of Beijing Municipality, requesting that (1) Baijiarui should repay
the principal of the loan of RMB250.0 million; (2) the Group should be
compensated with priority from the proceeds from disposal, discount,
auction or sale, of 100% equity interest in Baijiarui and derivative interests
thereof pledged by China Create City Renewal; and (3) China Create Asset
should undertake joint guarantee liability for the first request.

The Group has applied to the No. 3 Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing
Municipality to take interim measures against the property of the defendant
worth RMB250.0 million. The court has issued a civil ruling to freeze the
30% equity interest in China Create City Renewal held by China Create Asset
up to RMB250.0 million.

On 29 September 2019, the No. 3 Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing
Municipality issued a first instance judgement in favour of the Group,
whereby Baijiarui should repay the principal of the loan of RMB250.0 million
and pay the legal costs of RMB400,000 to the Group. The judgement was
issued via notice and took effect on 4 January 2020.

As the Group obtained the judgment in respect of the principal of the loan,
the Group separately filed a lawsuit before the No. 3 Intermediate People’s
Court of Beijing Municipality (1t R 58 =F & A REFT) for the loan interest
and penalty interest. In accordance with the notice received by the Group
on 18 March 2020, the lawsuit has been formally accepted by the No. 3
Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing Municipality.

82 SUNSHINE 100 CHINA HOLDINGS LTD 2022 Annual Report

B ER{AE S & MAYERAL

KEH  ARBZ2EWMBRA - IEFW B AEE
FIERTE =P RAREGIREFD - DRFAD LI R
MHEZPRAREREAZRE -

AR EAAAEEREN20165F1 A28 8 & FIITEE
HEREFRAR(MAERD T IOEZRAR) (ERER)
REZEBHBRITTEOEAAR  MAERZEROESAEA
R#2 68T - FRERBE12% ~ ERERLEELH%EZE2018
F12A31BMER - BERERARNET - RINTF
MeammEREEERAR((RHAAMTER USRS
ﬁ&%mO%M%%&MWﬁ$%¥%ﬁ&%EEHQ
ﬁngﬁﬁﬁkVAﬁrﬁ YR RIEIEEERE

AEl([REEEE]) RZitE maEﬁﬁo it A& R 2 H
& BRAMEEREE ARE25ETEFEEAKEE -
FRAETEN  FHRHEAEECKBITERET - BX
10056 EAILEME=ZFRARERIREFRA » B3k (1)
BEREEREZRASARK2LET : Q)RNERETRA
YT ST IR AL RN (E 55100 % B HE Ko 5% AR HE T AR D IR
i%é%ﬁjmﬁ‘kgmﬁmﬁﬁxﬁ~&ﬁ¢ﬂ@
EY FlE —BEERAREETREST -

AEECALERTE—PRARZEZEPHFERSEBEAR
B2 6BTMPERDRERRER ZRECHARZHES
REPHBIEERANT AT ERN0%MEE - £
THBARE25ET -

M2019F9A29H @ Ak EME=ZFRRARERIEL —FH
RoHEAREBBF  HLAERAALSEEERERAS
AR¥250.08 BT kFAE ARKA00,0007T © ZHIHRE
BBANEE IR 202051 HAB AR ©

EHEA$'§I§I75’\7§?@§ A& 2 AR BT - AEERER
Fa SRt ETE =R RARER BITIREHFA ° B
#mﬁlﬂmw¢3ﬂw5Wﬂmﬂﬂ FZFAB WL R
ME=ZFRAREREXNTE o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

The Group requested for the following rulings that: (1) Baijiarui should repay
the loan interest of the loan principal of RMB250.0 million to the Group,
amounting to approximately RMB80.9 million; (2) Baijiarui should repay
the penalty interest and compound interest of the loan to the Group until
the date that all principal and interests of the loan have been repaid in full
(the penalty interest and compound interest being approximately RMB60.4
million which is calculated temporarily up to 31 December 2019); (3) where
Baijiarui could not repay the interest, penalty interest and compound
interest of the loan in full, the Group is entitled to be compensated with
priority from the proceeds from discount, auction or sale, of 100% equity
interest in Baijiarui and derivative interests thereof (including dividend,
allotment and rights incurred from bonus issue) pledged by China Create
City Renewal; (4) China Create Asset should undertake joint guarantee
liability for the abovementioned request of the interest, penalty interest
and compound interest of the loan; and (5) Baijiarui, China Create City
Renewal and China Create Asset should undertake the court costs, property
protection fee and legal fees incurred from the case.

On 8 December 2020, the No. 3 Intermediate People's Court of Beijing
Municipality (3t = E=FHZARZERT) issued a first instance judgement
in favour of the Group, whereby Baijiarui should repay the interest of the
loan of RMB80.8 million, the penalty interest and compound interest of
the loan of RMB120.9 million (the penalty interest and compound interest
was calculated temporarily up to 31 December 2020) and pay the legal
costs of RMB400,000 to the Group. The judgement was issued via notice
and took effect on 14 March 2021. However, Baijiarui, China Create City
Renewal and China Create Asset did not perform any payment obligations
according to the judgment. The Group submitted the Application for
Compulsory Enforcement to the Third Intermediate People’'s Court of
Beijing on 5 February 2021. Since the person subject to enforcement has
no property available for enforcement, the Group received the ruling of
the Third Intermediate People’'s Court of Beijing on 30 December 2021 to
terminate this enforcement. The Group submitted an application to the
Third Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing on 2 August 2022 to add Zhang
Wei as the person to be enforced.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries was engaged in any litigation or claim of material
importance, and no other litigation or claim of material importance was to
be pending or threatened against the Company nor any of its subsidiaries.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 17 February 2014.

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to enable the Company to grant options to the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below) as incentives or
rewards for their contribution they had or may have made to
the Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible
Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company
with the view to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group.

Eligible Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph 5 below to:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors
and agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv) any such other persons who in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
(or an equivalent amount in RMB) to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. Any offer to grant an option to subscribe
for Shares may be accepted in respect of less than the number of
Shares for which it is offered provided that it is accepted in respect
of a board lot of dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an
integral multiple thereof and such number is clearly stated in the
duplicate offer document constituting the acceptance of the option.
To the extent that the offer to grant an option is not accepted by
any prescribed acceptance date, it shall be deemed to have been
irrevocably declined.
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Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue immediately
following the completion of the Global Offering (as defined in the
Prospectus), being 200,000,000 Shares.

Maximum number of options to any one individual

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible
Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such
price will be at less the higher of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open
for the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.
Granting options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
is required to be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive Director who is
the grantee of the options).
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Restrictions on the times of grant of options

A grant of options may not be made when inside information has
come to the knowledge of the Company until such inside information
has been announced pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. In particular, no options may be granted during the period
commencing one month immediately preceding the earlier of:

(i) the date of the Board meeting (as such date to first notified
to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules)
for the approval of the Company’s annual results, half- year,
quarterly or other interim period (whether or not required
under the Listing Rules);

(ii) the deadline for the Company to publish an announcement
of results of the Company for (i) any year or half-year period
in accordance with the Listing Rules; and (ii) any quarterly or
any other interim period, where the Company has elected to
publish such results (whether or not required under the Listing
Rules), and ending on the date of actual publication of the
results for such year, half-year, quarterly or interim period (as
the case may be),

and no options shall be granted where the grant of options is to a
Director:

(iii)  during the period of 60 days immediately preceding the
publication date of the annual results or, if shorter, the period
from the end of the relevant financial year up to the publication
date of the results; and

(iv)  during the period of 30 days immediately preceding the
publication date of the quarterly results (if any) and half-year
results or, if shorter, the period from the end of the relevant
quarterly or half-year period up to the publication date of the
results.

Rights are personal to grantee

An option is personal to the grantee and may be exercised or treated
as exercised, as the case may be, in whole or in part. No grantee
shall in any way sell, transfer, charge, mortgage, encumber or create
any interest (legal or beneficial) in favour of any third party over or in
relation to any option or attempt so to do.
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Time of exercise of option and duration of the Share
Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of ten years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than ten years
after it has been granted. No option may be granted more than ten
years after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject
to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by the
Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years from the date of its adoption.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme does
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the date of Listing.
The Company may at any time refresh such limit subject to the
Shareholders” approval and issue of a circular in compliance with the
Listing Rules, provided that the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company does
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the time.

As at the date of this annual report, no option under the Share Option
Scheme has been granted by the Company. Therefore, the total
number of options available for grant under the Share Option Scheme
as at 1 January 2022 and as at 31 December 2022 respectively are
200,000,000 options. The total number of 200,000,000 shares are
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme as at the date of
this annual report, representing approximately 7.84% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual report. As at 31
December 2022, the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
approximately one year and ten months.

Equity-linked Agreement

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has not entered into
any other equity-linked agreements.
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Environment Policies and Performance

It is the Group's enterprise and social responsibility to promote sustainable
development and conservation to the environment. The Group commits
itself to saving energy consumption and carrying out company affairs in
sustainable ways so as to minimize our impact on the environment.

The Group has been implementing the idea of energy saving and pollution
prevention, taking active actions (such as conserving water and power
and reducing pollution and emission in the process of construction) and
formulating emergency and controlling procedures as prevention measures
against unexpected environmental pollutions. For details, please refer to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be published separately by
the Company on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Permitted Indemnity and Directors’ and Officers’
Liability Insurance

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the provisions
of the Companies Law, every Director, auditor or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits
of the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or other
officer of the Company, other than for any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to any such persons. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Company during the Reporting Period in
respect of any legal liabilities which may be assumed by the Directors and
officers in the execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto

Compliance with Laws and Regulations which
Have Significant Effect on the Company

The Group is operated principally by subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC
which itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our operation is subject to the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC and Hong Kong. For the Reporting
Period and up to the date of the annual report, we have complied with all
the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC and Hong Kong in all material
respects.

Post Balance Sheet Events
Events after the Reporting Period of the Group are set out in the sub-
section “Events after the Reporting Period” of Management Discussion

and Analysis on pages 45 to 48 of this annual report.

Save as foregoing, the Group has no material post balance sheet events
which are required to be disclosed in the audited financial statements.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) has reviewed
together with the management and external auditor the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year.

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. Since the Listing Date, the Company has
adopted and complied with all the applicable provisions under the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code") contained in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, except for deviations from Code Provision C.2.1 which is
described in further details in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” in this annual report. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 90 to 116 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on public information available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float in
compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules for the Reporting
Period and as at 16 November 2022, being the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this annual report.

Auditor

KPMG resigned as auditor of the Company on 7 May 2022. On the same
day, Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”) was appointed as the auditor of the
Company to fill the vacancy.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been audited by Mazars. Mazars will retire at
the AGM. The resolution regarding the re-appointment of Mazars as the
Company'’s auditor will be proposed at the AGM.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no other changes in the
Company's auditors in the past three years.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 10 May 2022 and
22 July 2022 for details of the Company’s change of auditors.

On behalf of the Board
Chairman and Executive Director

Yi Xiaodi

Beijing, the PRC
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERELGHS

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report in the
annual report of the Company for the Reporting Period.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enhance corporate value and accountability of the
Company. During the Reporting Period, the Company adopted and
complied with all applicable code provisions under the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) as set out in Part 2 of Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, except for the following deviation:

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Yi Xiaodi has served as the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company since 11 May
2018. This arrangement deviates from the requirement that the
two positions should be held separately by different individuals as
prescribed in the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code. However, the
Board is of the view that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer assumed by Mr. Yi Xiaodi will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of
the Company. The balance of power and authority is ensured by the
operation of the Board as the majority of the Board are non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors. Moreover, the
Board comprises experienced and high caliber individuals and meets
regularly to discuss major issues affecting operations of the Company,
and all directors are properly and promptly briefed on relevant matters
with adequate, complete and reliable information.

The Board
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs, the Board has established three Board committees
including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee (together, the “Board Committees”). The
Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set
out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

90 SUNSHINE 100 CHINA HOLDINGS LTD 2022 Annual Report

EFEMAZHENA R R ARERANFRNKBE
= ==,

AEEBHNEFSRENEEER  BREREALR
AIRCRIER SR A AR CEEEREEN - ARE
HiR - ARRIERSAE T LT AR RIS+ —F
eREATA(REERFU) M ZAMEER TR
1632 - HELAT IR BRERR S -

STRMEXEC 2. MGRTHR - TRRITHRARZ AEE
ZEn R EHRE—AFRE - H/NEEER201855
AV BRA/ARREFERITHAER - th 2 HEREET R
X C.2. 1 FRETRA M BB R 7R 20 Bl i A 5 A £ HEAEEY
RE - BEFERARFG/NVATEREITERITRER
ZAETEESSEARNRERERNES REE T
- OREEVEVBAEFTSEFSIRE - M
EFTEAMNESRIFNTEST B FNTES
WHEREEREEBHNALTAK - WEBRE R
EXNRZEREGREZEATR  BEFEUR
7 EBRAEZEEE RN BAZEBESAR
BHER-

EFE
L3

EXESRRAKENERRE  WEEAKERNRE
HERENREREHERERE - EFECAAKER
REEERERHUASEREEEREENEILE
- REBAAREHENBESHE  EFEEKIL=
FEEZE8E  BREZZES  FHRESREA
ZEeWEEERAR) EFeNESREER
HZREL  ARARTHNESENBESES -

PRESARRRENAREEBITRE - WETE
RIEDI RS - BN AR AR REBR R
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Yi Xiaodi and Mr. Fan Xiaochong, two non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Fan Xiaohua, Mr. Wang Gongquan and three Independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Gu Yunchang, Mr. Ng Fook Ai, Victor
and Mr. Li Chunping. The biographies of the Directors are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

Since 1 January 2022 up to the date of this annual report, the Board at
all times met the requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. Of the three Independent non-executive Directors appointed,
which represents at least one-third of the Board, one Independent
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Ng Fook Ai, Victor, is equipped
with appropriate professional qualifications or adequate accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
Independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out under
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report, none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship), with
any other Director.

All Directors, including Independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve
on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.
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Board Diversity Policy

In order to enhance the efficiency of the Board and corporate
governance standard of the Company, the Board should maintain
a balanced mix of executive Directors and non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) so that the Board
is highly independent and is able to make independent judgments
efficiently. The Company has adopted a policy on Board diversity (the
"Board Diversity Policy”) to ensure that the Company will, when
determining the composition of the Board, consider Board diversity
from various criteria, including but not limited to the gender, age,
cultural and education background, race, professional and industry
experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualifications
that are essential to the business of the Company, will be applied so
that the candidate can bring advantage and make contribution to the
Board.

The selection of candidates will be based on the Company's
Nomination Policy while taking into account the Board Diversity Policy.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board and the needs of the Board without
focusing on a single diversity aspect.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven directors.
Three of them are independent non-executive Directors who are
expected to promote critical review and control of the management
process and one of the non-executive Directors is a female director.
The Company considers that the Board has achieved gender
diversity and will continue to maintain at least one female director
in the Board. The Board is also characterized by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. In the
future, the Company will increase or maintain the proportion of female
directors on the basis of comprehensive consideration of the talents,
skills and experience levels required for the overall operation of the
board of directors. The gender ratio in the Group's workforce, including
senior management, as at 31 December 2022 is 37.4% (female):
62.6% (male). The Company has been taking, and will continue to
take, steps to promote gender diversity across the workforce, with
the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Board has not been made aware of any factor or
circumstance that make it more challenging or less relevant for staff,
including senior management, to achieve gender diversity.

92 SUNSHINE 100 CHINA HOLDINGS LTD 2022 Annual Report

EEESTIRE

RRERAEEGHRERARTLEE KT  EFF
ERIBFITEIEMITE R (BREBIFNITES) Y
BHG  RESESEBIULM A AREIEBE LN A
B - ARFERM—HEETE L UEMBER ((EE
BETABER)  ERAQRRERTEEEXNEALS
B gt TREEERESFERES T EREE
TR - Fik - MERBEER - Bk - BXR
TTEZR - BEE - AR RGEH B RN R ERE
BENEMRE  UERBALRESEHRNED
NER

ERHNEZAESSREARRNERBERET A
FNZEEFELITLBR - KRTHEREEM
AENEREMEARESEMENER  ETEEE
HEFGNEZTICHEAANETSNFE - T2
RAIBE—-mMZTCEm °

RAHmERHR  EZSRERELREST - HP =%
BEMIENITES B EETERRBCEEERR
ZHl e HR—Z AL HIERTES - RARAESES
BEHRMRZt WHEEBRIFEESETFELE—
BEMES - BRNEEMR - Fit - HEBEE &
EKE - BEE - MERRBEEIE  EEgER
BREZTE - KRR ARAIBELEEEEEFE
BBEMEEM A 88 - RRas A BK AR = - 380
SR LMESNG - R20229F12H31H &%
EET(BIEESATEAB)NMRILLEA37.4% (KL
M) 0 62.6% (BM) o AR —E WG EBFEFEHE -
RBESTIHAEPHERZEE  REEEATRER
T2 - B E2022F12A831BILEE - EFS W ARE
FERET(PESATER ABRERZTEER
DB S N ARABRA R T E =SB



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERETARE

As regards the Code Provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as their identity and
the time involved to the issuer, the Directors will disclose their
commitments to the Company annually.

Training and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The
Company will also arrange regular seminars to provide Directors with
updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and
other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company's
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties.
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Mr. Wang Gongquan
FIniERE
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During the Reporting Period, the individual training record of each
Director is set out as follows:

(A)  Attended the training courses organized by the Company and
delivered by Morrison & Foerster

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the current organization structure of the Company, Mr. Yi
Xiaodi is the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer.
The Chairman leads the Board and is responsible for formulating
corporate and business strategies of the Company and making
major corporations and operations decisions of the Company. The
Chief Executive Officer focuses on the business development of the
Company and is responsible for the daily operation and management.
He is also taking part in formulating and implementing the overall
corporate and business strategy of the Company. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company under which they have agreed to act as Executive
Directors for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either the Executive Director or the
Company. Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a new
service contract with the Company for a term of three years since 1
March 2023 (subject to the requirements in relation to the re-election
by rotation of Directors set out in the Articles of Association).

Ms. Fan Xiaohua, a Non-executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company under which she agreed to act as a Non-
executive Director for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three
months' notice in writing served by either Ms. Fan or the Company. Ms.
Fan has entered into a new service contract with the Company for a
term of three years since 1 March 2023 (subject to the requirements in
relation to the re-election by rotation of Directors set out in the Articles
of Association).
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Mr. Wang Gongquan, a Non-executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company under which he agreed to act as a
non-executive Director for a term of three years commencing from 1
August 2022, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either Mr. Wang or the Company (subject to
the requirements in relation to the re-election by rotation of Directors
set out in the Articles of Association).

Mr. Gu Yunchang and Mr. Ng Fook Ai, Victor, the Independent non-
executive Directors, have signed appointment letters with the
Company for a term of three years with effect from the Listing Date.
Each of Mr. Gu and Mr. Ng has entered into new appointment letters
with the Company for a term of three years since 13 March 2023
(subject to the requirements in relation to the re-election by rotation of
Directors set out in the Articles of Association).

Mr. Li Chunping, an independent non-executive Director, has signed
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years with
effect from 31 December 2021.(subject to the requirements in relation
to the re-election by rotation of Directors set out in the Articles of
Association).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire by rotation at each annual
general meeting of the Company but every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and, being
eligible, can offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting.
Any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy is
subject to re-election by the Shareholders at the first annual general
meeting of the Company after appointment. Any new Director
appointed as an addition to the Board is subject to re-election by
Shareholders at the next following annual general meeting of the
Company after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring the appointment, re-election and succession planning of
Directors.
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Board Meetings and General Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly.
During the Reporting Period, four Board meetings were held. Notices
of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular Board meetings
to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include
matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. For other meetings of the
Board and the Board Committees, reasonable notice is generally given.
The agenda and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or members of the relevant Board Committees at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to
review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
Directors or members of the relevant Board Committees are unable to
attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed
and given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman
prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary with copies circulated to all Directors for information and
records.

Sufficient details of the matters considered, decisions reached and
concerns raised by any Directors are recorded in the minutes of the
meetings of the Board and Board Committees. Draft minutes of each
meeting of the Board or Board Committees are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, no general meeting was held and five =~ RAREHRR - RERHABREAS  BRITANES
Board meetings were held and the attendance is set out in the table ~ €&  HEBRWOT ¢
below:

2021 Annual The Second The Third The Fourth The Fifth
Results meeting meeting meeting meeting

2021 FEERIBE LR | BZREMW Lyl | BEREH

Executive Directors
HIiTEE
Mr. Yi Xiaodi v v v v v
S/NaSE
Mr. Fan Xiaochong v v v v v
B SEAE
Non-executive Directors
FRITEF
Ms. Fan Xiaohua v v v 4 v
BEEEL T
Mr. Wang Gongquan v v v v v
EIERE
Independent non-executive

Directors
BUFRTEF
Mr. Gu Yunchang v v v v v
BEELLE
Mr. Ng Fook Ai, Victor v v v v v
HIEREE
Mr. Li Chunping v v v v v
FHETRE

v/ represents attending the meeting v REREFESH

During the Reporting Period, apart from regular Board meetings, the ~ RAREHAN - BREHEFES I TETEEHR
Chairman also held meetings with the independent non-executive ~ {TEFRMIERTEEHEFR TRBIFNTESA
Directors without the presence of executive Directors and non- -

executive Directors.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries with all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves its rights of decision over all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. Directors have
the option to obtain independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions are
entered into by the management.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and delegated the corporate
governance duties to the Audit Committee which include the following:

° to develop, review and implement the Company’s policy and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the Board;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Independent opinions and suggestions obtained by the Board
of Directors

The Company has in place mechanisms to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board. The Board shall at all times
comprise at least three independent non-executive Directors that
represent at least one-third of the Board, such that there is always a
strong element of independence on the Board which can effectively
exercise independent judgement. Each independent non-executive
Director is required to provide an annual confirmation of his/her
independence to the Company and the Nomination Committee is
responsible to assess the independence and time commitment of each
independent non-executive Director at least annually.

The Directors are free to inquire and request further information from
the management. If the directors raise questions, the management
is responsible for timely and comprehensive response. The Directors
may also, where appropriate, seek independent professional advice to
perform their duties to the Company at the expense of the Company.
All Directors are free to require the company secretary to provide
advice and services, and the company secretary’s responsibility is
to ensure that the board of directors receives appropriate and timely
information to make decisions, and ensure that the procedures of the
board of directors are followed.
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Board Committees
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Yi Xiaodi (chairman), Mr. Gu Yunchang and Mr. Li
Chunping, and the majority of them are independent non-executive
Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

° to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° to make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive; and

° to review the Board Diversity Policy and any measurable
objectives for implementing such Board Diversity Policy as may
be adopted by the Board from time to time and to review the
progress on achieving the objectives; and to make disclosure of
its review results in the annual report of the Company annually.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, reviewed
the Company’s Board Diversity Policy and the measurable objectives
and progress in meeting the targets set for the implementation of the
policy, discussed and recommended to the Board the re-election of the
retiring Directors.
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The Company has adopted the nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy"”). Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or the incumbent diversity in
all aspects, including but not limited to the gender, age, cultural and
education background, race, professional experience, knowledge
and length of service, etc.. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. The written
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, two meetings was held by the
Nomination Committee and the attendances are set out in the table
below:

2021 Annual Results

ARBEHRMREEBR(REBHE)) - REREAK
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The Second meeting

2021 FEEERTE B_REE
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Mr. Yi Xiaodi v 4
S/NESTE
Independent non-executive Directors
BHIIHTEE
Mr. Gu Yunchang v v
BEELLE
Mr. Li Chunping v v
FHRTEE
v/ represents attending the meeting v RELFEEH
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Li Chunping (chairman), Mr. Fan Xiaochong and Mr. Gu Yunchang, and
the majority of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include but not
limited to the following:

° to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure of all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

° either: (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility
by the Board, the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management; or (ii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management;

° to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

° to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

° to review and approve the management’'s remuneration with
reference to the Board's corporate policies and objectives; and

° to consider and approve the granting of share options to eligible
participants under the Share Option Scheme.

The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for ensuring that
no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, whose
remuneration will be determined by reference to salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group. The written terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the Reporting period, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the Company's policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management, reviewed the remuneration
of all executive Directors and senior management of the Company
and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages, reviewed the remuneration of all non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors and confirmed the relevant
directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment.

During the Reporting Period, two meetings was held by the
Remuneration Committee and the attendances are set out in the table
below:

2021 Annual Results
2021EEEEDTR

RAHERA - FHZEEGCBRAARREETRSR
EEABNHMERRRE  REARRZBNTE
ERSREEENHFIGTEL RIS BREZH -
B 2 RIEMITEE B FRITESNHEB - 0k
RIEREZRS R R RER -

RARERA - FHZEERTMAER - BHFER
SR

The Second meeting

E_REH

Executive Directors

HiTEE

Mr. Fan Xiaochong

SRS AE

Independent non-executive Directors
HUHBTEE

Mr. Gu Yunchang

BEELLE

Mr. Li Chunping

FHRTEE

v represents attending the meeting

Pursuant to Code E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the remuneration
payable to 12 members of senior management by band, whose
biographies are set out on pages 49 to 57 of this annual report, for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Remuneration band (RVIB’000)

v REHFEH
RIBEFEERTAEEHENRTE - BE2022512

ABTALFE  mREEE+-_2XKE(HEEHR
RERFAOREL7R)NFMEEF BRI T

Number of individuals

FMEE(AE®TT) A
Below 1,000

1,000 AT~ 7
1,000 to 2,000

1,00022,000 B
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng Fook Ai, Victor (chairman), Mr.
Li Chunping and Mr. Gu Yunchang. The main duties of the Audit

Committee include the following:

° to deal with the relationship with the Company's external
auditors;

° to review the Company's financial information;

° to oversee the Company's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control procedures; and

° to perform the Company’s corporate governance functions.

FREAT

ERZBEH-E2BFRTEREIEEELALE(Z
B)  FEVPEERBEERD)EAK - BREZEEN
IERERETIISRA:
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EEiERF &
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The First Meeting 2021 Annual Results The Third Meeting The Fourth Meeting  The Fifth Meeting

F-REl 02 FEEXESR F=REl EAUPS-| FRREH
Independent non-executive Directors
BUHHTEE
Mr. Gu Yunchang v/ v/ v/ v
BEELE
Mr. Ng Fook Al, Victor v v/ 4 v/
ERELE
Mr. Li Chunping v/ 4 v/ v/
FEVEE

v represents attending the meeting
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The Audit Committee reviewed the financial control system, crisis
management, risk management and internal control processes,
discussed with the management with regard to the risk management
and internal control systems and assessed their effectiveness for the
Reporting Period, considering the factors including the adequacy of
resources for financial reporting, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and the budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function. The Audit Committee also reviewed the
state of the Company’s corporate governance against the criteria set
out in the CG Code and considered the reappointment of the external
auditor. The Board had not deviated from any recommendation given
by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

The members of the Audit Committee also reviewed the preliminary
results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the Reporting Period
as well as the audit report prepared by the external auditor relating
to accounting issues and major findings in course of audit. There are
proper arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management, internal control
and other matters in confidence.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting
in Respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the Reporting Period which give a true and fair
view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group's
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.
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THE BOARD'’S RESPONSE TO THE AUDITOR'’S
OPINION

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

The auditor of the Company, being Mazars CPA Limited, issued
a disclaimer of opinion (the “Disclaimer of Opinion"”) on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022 in relation to going concern of the Company,
details of which are set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements contained in this report.

With respect to the Disclaimer of Opinion, the Directors are of the
opinion that the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations for at least the next
12 months from the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, after taking into consideration of the measures (the
“Measures”) set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
contained in this report.

However, as stated in the independent auditor’s report contained in
this annual report, the auditor is of the view that it has not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the use of going
concern assumption in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

Board’s Response to “Disclaimer of Opinion — Going Concern”

As set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements contained
in this report, the board of Directors (the “"Board”) is taking below
plans and measures:

1. Negotiation with a number of creditors and lenders for renewal
and extension of interest-bearing borrowings which would be
due within 12 months;

2. Negotiation with a number of creditors and lenders for debt
restructuring of interest-bearing borrowings;

3 Negotiation with various financial institutions and potential
lenders/investors to identify various options for financing;

4. Accelerating the pre-sale and sale of its properties under
development and completed properties held for sale;

B Disposing several investment properties instead of generating
rental income;
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6. Speeding up the collection of outstanding sale proceeds and
loans to third parties;

7. Tightening cost controls over various operating expenses;

8. Looking for larger property development enterprises and
cooperating with investors to develop properties under
development of the Group through joint effort;

9. Procuring and negotiating the preliminary terms with larger
property development enterprises for the sale of property
development projects at a price deemed appropriate; and

10. Negotiation with the local tax authorities to postpone the
finalisation and payment of Land Appreciation Tax of the property
development projects which had already met the requirement of
finalisation of Land Appreciation Tax.

The Board would like to provide certain additional and update
information in relation to the above plans and measures up to the date
of this report.

Up to the date of this report, the Group had actively negotiated with
the creditors and lenders, and successfully extended certain defaulted
or overdue loans and borrowings for approximately 1 to 4 years.

In addition, the Group actively faced the debt pressure from various
financial institutions, negotiating for debt extension and other ways
to extend the debt. The Group had also reached a certain level of
understanding with important creditors, buying time for the Group to
resolve its difficulties. For the construction partners, the Group had
actively negotiated with them to stabilize their emotions by offering
repayment with real estate or goods, and installment payments,
ensuring the consistent completion of construction and delivery.

Moreover, the Group had actively negotiated with different parties
and successfully obtained additional loans and borrowings in total of
approximately RMB491 million up to the date of this report.
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Regarding the operation, during the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group had adopted the selling promotion activities, but due
to the continuous downturn of real estate market and outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic throughout the year, the sales of properties
were significantly decreased. In this circumstance, the Group had
immediately implemented the operation management of Commercial
Street, Himalaya Apartments project and other operating plans to
utilise the owned properties of the Group, which maintained the
continuously operation of the Group under the situation of short
of operating funds. At the meantime, the Group had successfully
negotiated and agreed with the local tax authorities to delay the timing
of clearance of Land Appreciation Tax for certain projects.

On the other side, the Group had also actively and continuously
implemented and strengthened cost control policy, while the Group
still maintained the stability of key personnel and the personnel
streamlining plan for each project was carried out in an orderly manner.
At the same time, the Company also strengthened the front-line
operational staff, ensuring further reinforcement in project leasing and
sales operations and preparing for further development in the future.

The Group had still actively implemented the above plans and
measures to ensure the Group can have sufficient working capital
to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the next twelve months from the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Directors had reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by the management that covered a period of not less than
12 months from 2 November 2023, being the date of approving this
annual report. Having taken into account the above-mentioned plans
and measures, the Directors were of the opinion that the Group would
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within the next twelve
months from the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors have explained the above plans to the auditor that the
Group is able to operate as a going concern and will be able to have
sufficient working capital in the next twelve months from 2 November
2023 after taking into consideration of the factors in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this report.

Despite the evidences and explanations provided to the auditor
in relation to the Group’s ability of going concern, the auditor still
regarded that due to the uncertainty of the Group's ability to maintain
adequate future cash flows, it was unable to ascertain whether the
assumptions made by the Directors in preparing the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis were proper and
appropriate.
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The Directors have used their best endeavour to provide information
and has explained the situation of the Group to the auditor. In view
of the financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022, adverse impact caused by the continuous and
repeated outbreaks of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that the
overall real estate market was in a downward trend, the Directors
understood the view of the auditor.

The Audit Committee understands the audit modification on
going concern raised by the auditor and has discussed it with the
management and the auditor. The Audit Committee shared the same
view with the management.

Risk Management And Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
for maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s assets
and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and could only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks to be assumed by the Company in
achieving its strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in management and
overseeing the formulation, implementation and supervision of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control of the Group are conducted
through each department’ daily operation, including a sound corporate
structure and defined terms of reference, such as authorization
approval, validation, and segregation of duties. By reference to any
changes in the external environment and the Company’s business
development mode, the management and the officers of key
competent departments will jointly continue to assess major risks and
the possibility of their occurrence, to provide solutions and monitor
the progress of risk management. The Company also actively carry out
the informatization construction, including the continuous optimization
of collaborative office system (OA/Portal), Oracle accounting system,
Hyperion budget system and customer relationship management
system (CRM), and provide timely and accurate data to the
management to strengthen the Company’s risk control in decision-
making.
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In addition, we seek to proactively identify any concerns and issues
relating to potential non-compliance by providing training (organized
by our administrative and legal department) to the management of
all departments regarding the need for preventive and self-check
measures, ensuring that all applicable laws and regulations are
complied with and material internal control deficiency is identified and
addressed timely. In the meantime, the direct supervision departments
or our management would inspect relevant departments on a regular
or irregular basis and conduct internal control assessment regularly
to identify risks that have potential impact on the business and all
aspects (including key operational and financial processes, regulatory
compliance and information security) of the Group.

The Group has established a reporting channel including email account
and telephone hotline through which an employee and external third
parties can report potential non-compliance exposures and raise
concerns over possible improper behaviors in financial reporting,
internal control or other aspects, so that we could promptly detect
problems and undertake corrective measures.

The Group has developed its disclosure policy and process which
specifies in detail the process and monitoring measures to assess,
handle and disclose potential inside information, including notify the
relevant Directors and employees about the blackout period and
restriction in security trading.

The Group has set up an internal audit department, conducting
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems annually. Internal audit
department examines key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provides its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.

The management monitored the assessment of risk management
and internal control and have reported/confirmed to the Board and the
Audit Committee on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems for the Reporting Period.

The Audit Committee confirmed that it has reviewed the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the Company
according to its term of reference for the Reporting Period and is of
the view that the risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate. The Audit Committee will continue to conduct
regular review on risk management and internal control systems in the
future.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee, assessed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems by
reviewing the management report. The Company considers that the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company for the
Reporting Period are effective and adequate.
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Enhanced Internal Control

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 20
September 2023. In September 2022, the Company engaged an
external internal control consultant (the “Consultant”) to conduct an
internal control review and assist the management to improve the
Company's internal control system. The review period covered from
19 Oct 2022 to 5 Dec 2022 and 2 May 2023 to 31 May 2023.

Below are the key deficiencies of internal control review identified by
the Consultant:

Key deficiencies of internal control review identified

1 Procedures for notifiable transactions and connected transactions
under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

The Company's previous auditor noted that the Company
had receivables amounting to RMB1,389.9 million as at 31
December 2021. Out of this, RMB838.1 million related to certain
term loans (being the Loans), which had been granted by the
Company to certain third parties between December 2020 and
April 2021, and RMB551.8 million was finance costs (comprising
interest expense and financial advisory fees) paid to certain third
parties between April 2021 and July 2021 under various loan
agreements and financial advisory agreements. The Company’s
previous auditor had further noted that the Loans may potentially
constitute notifiable transactions and/or connected transactions
of the Company under Chapters14 and 14A of the Listing Rules.

However, the Company did not comply with the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Consultant recommended that a designated responsible
personnel should be assigned to perform size test before
entering into material transactions. It is also recommended
that the record of size test should be properly kept for future
reference. The Company has published a Chapter 14 notifiable
transaction announcement in respect of the Loans on 20
September 2023. Please refer to the announcement for details.
The above recommendations have been implemented by the
Company.
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Payment cycle

No upper limit in relation to payment approval was set for
each approver of the Company and Sunshine 100 Real Estate
Group Co., Ltd. ((FRAEBEEESEERAF]). The Consultant
recommended that an upper limit in relation to payment approval
should be set for each approver in the authorization matrix. The
Company has updated its approval policy and an upper limit has
been set for approver. When the payment amount exceeds the
maximum threshold, approval from two executive Directors
would be required.

Loan cycle

No upper limit in relation to loan contracts approval was set for
each approver of the Company and Sunshine 100 Real Estate
Group Co., Ltd. The Consultant recommended that an upper
limit in relation to loan contracts approval should be set for
each approver in the authorization matrix. The Company has
updated its financing management policy and approval policy and
an upper limit has been set for each approver. When the loan
amount exceeds the maximum threshold, approval from two
executive Directors would be required.

The Consultant has provided other recommendations for
addressing the identified deficiencies and risks, and the
Company has taken proactive measures to implement these
recommendations. These actions include providing training to
the Company's directors, senior management and employees,
enhancing and developing appropriate internal control and
corporate governance policies. The rectification plan was
carried out in an orderly manner and has been completed.
Several Company's governance policies have been amended
and approved, including payment policy and financing policy.
The list of connected persons has been updated, approved and
circulated amongst the senior management. Several trainings for
senior management, financial personnel and employees are also
completed.

The Company has further engaged an external internal controls
consultant to conduct internal control review of the Company
over (i) procedures for notifiable transactions and connected
transactions under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, (ii) payment cycle; and (iii) loan cycle, on a regular basis.

Based on the above, the Company and the Audit Committee
consider that the Company has in place adequate internal
controls and procedures to meet its obligations under the Listing
Rules.
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A further review by the Consultant has been undertaking
since October 2023. The Consultant has obtained the revised
documents of the systems and processes involved in the above
rectification, the approval records and the circulation records of
the relevant documents, the training records for key personnel
such as the senior management and employees, etc.. The
Consultant has also obtained a certain number of samples in
respect of the above three cycles. As at the date of this report,
the review of the Consultant was in progress and no conclusion
had been reached.

The Audit Committee confirmed that it has reviewed the
effectiveness of the enhanced internal control systems of the
Company and is of the view that the enhanced internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

The Board assessed the effectiveness of the enhanced internal
control systems. The Company considers that internal control
systems of the Company are effective and adequate.
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Auditor’'s Remuneration and Auditor Related R Eh B R TR EE
Matters
Service fees paid/payable by the Group to Mazars, the external auditor, ~ RNEBRARREHRNEN BN FINEZEMPER
for the Reporting Period are set out as follows: RAARIBE AT ¢
Service rendered FriR (B9 ER T RMB’000
AR®TT
Audit services: i
Annual audit FEFEZ 4,000
Non-audit services: IEEF R
Review of the interim financial report R EA B T R 5 2R 687
Others HAtb 322
Total #ast 5,009
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Company Secretary

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules, with effect from 1 December 2019, the
Company has engaged Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (“Mr. Tsang”), a partner of
Stevenson, Wong & Co. as its company secretary.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Tsang was responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board complies with the applicable policies and procedures, and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The primary contact person
of the Company is Ms. Zeng Youyang (Head of International Finance
Department of the Company as of June 2023) and Ms. Tao Tiantian (an
employee of the International Finance Department).

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tsang has
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the Reporting Period.

Communication With Shareholders And Investor
Relations

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions. The primary
contact person of the Company is Mr. Han Bin, the chief financial
officer of the Company. The Board has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy of
the Company and is of the view that the current shareholders’
communication policy is effectively implemented via the following
channels and means.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides an opportunity
for shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairman of the Company and the Chairman of the Board committees
of the Company will attend the annual general meeting to answer
shareholders’ questions. The external auditor of the Company will
also attend the annual general meeting to answer questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and its
Shareholders and maintains a website at www.ss100.com.cn, where
up-to-date information on the Company's business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the principal place
of business for the Company in Hong Kong at 39/F, Gloucester Tower,
The Landmark, 15 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong (email address:
ir@ss100.com.cn).

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed for each issue raised at a general meeting, including
the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at a
general meeting will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each general meeting.

Calling Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting Forward
Proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting according to Article 58 of the Articles of Association.

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transactions of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after such requisition.
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Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the joint
company secretaries of the Company by the following channels:
Address: 39/F, Gloucester Tower, The Landmark,
15 Queen Road Central, Hong Kong
Email: ir@ss100.com.cn

If within 21 days of such requisition the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards to how to nominate a person to stand for election as a
Director, the procedures are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Change In Constitutional Documents

The Articles of Association was adopted by the Board on 17 February
2014 and became effective on the Listing Date. A copy of the Articles
of Association is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. During the period from 1 January 2022 up to the date
of this annual report, there was no significant change in constitutional
documents of the Company.

The Company plans to make amendments to the Articles of
Association. For details, please refer to the announcement and circular
to be issued by the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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mazars
;I N T

Independent Auditor’'s Report to the members of Sunshine 100
China Holdings Ltd
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Sunshine 100 China Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on a 123 to 308, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flow for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter described in
the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. In
all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
PERR BB ETMEEMERAT

42 Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
EREFHEB18RPIRER42E

Tel E5E: (852) 2909 5555

Fax {#H: (852) 2810 0032

Email E#: info@mazars.hk

Website #811k: www.mazars.hk
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
Multiple Material Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern

As set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB3,317,029,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at 31 December
2022, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB5,559,986,000. In addition, as at 31 December
2022, the Group had total loans and borrowings of approximately
RMB26,816,659,000 of which the current loans and borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB25,221,676,000. However, the Group
only had cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB641,300,000.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group's loans and borrowings of
approximately RMB11,103,144,000, convertible bonds with principal
of USD45,400,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB316,193,000) and
interest of approximately USD5,466,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB38,069,000), senior notes of USD138,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB961,812,000), senior green notes with principal
of USD219,600,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,529,426,000)
and corporate bonds of approximately RMB702,000,000 were overdue
pursuant to the relevant borrowing agreements which constituted
events of default. With these events of default, the terms of cross-
default of senior notes with principal of USD120,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB835,752,000) at carrying amount of approximately
USD116,907,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB814,211,000) were
triggered, and the senior notes may immediately due and payable if
the creditors choose to accelerate. In addition, any further liabilities
or obligations arising from the legal proceedings (if any), in respect of
loans and borrowings, convertible bonds, senior green notes, senior
notes and corporate bonds may have significant impact on the liquidity
position of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had not finalised the land
appreciation tax returns with the tax authorities for certain property
development projects which had already met the requirement of
finalisation of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") land appreciation
tax (“Land Appreciation Tax"”). The potential Land Appreciation Tax
payment obligations arising from the clearance may have a significant
impact on the liquidity position of the Group.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

Multiple Material Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern
(Continued)

As at and subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group is subjected
to a number of legal proceedings which mainly in relation to disputes
under construction contracts in respect of its various property
development projects and defaults of repayment of several loans and
borrowings, which arose during the normal course of business. Details
of which are set out in Note 31(d) and Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. Based on the best estimation on the possible
outcomes of the disputes by the management in consideration of the
development of negotiations with the creditors and advice sought from
the independent legal advisors and internal legal counsel, the possible
further obligations (other than those liabilities/provisions that have
been recognised in the consolidated financial statements) arose from
litigations are expected to be immaterial to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. However, it is uncertain for the timing of
crystallisation of the relevant legal proceedings.

These events or conditions indicate the existence of multiple material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and, therefore, that the Group may not
be able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

Multiple Material Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern
(Continued)

In view of the above circumstances, the directors of the Company have
been taking measures to improve the Group's liquidity and financial
position, which are set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements. The validity of the going concern assumption on which
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared depends on
the outcome of these measures, which are subject to multiple material
uncertainties, including (i) successfully negotiating with the lenders on
the renewal of or extension for repayment of outstanding borrowings,
including those with overdue principal and interests; (ii) successfully
negotiating with the creditors and lenders on debt restructuring of
interest-bearing borrowings; (iii) successfully negotiating with various
financial institutions and potential lenders/investors to identify various
options for financing the Group's working capital and commitments in
the foreseeable future; (iv) successfully persuading the Group'’s existing
lenders not to take action to demand for immediate repayment of the
borrowings with interest payments in default including the prevention
from the auction of the Group's pledged properties; (v) successfully
implemented plans to dispose several investment properties instead
of generating rental income to improve the cash flow in future; (vi)
successfully accelerating the pre-sales and sales of properties under
development and completed properties and speeding up the collection
of outstanding sales proceeds and loans to third parties, and controlling
costs and capital expenditure so as to generate adequate net cash
inflows; (vii) successfully looking for larger property development
enterprises and cooperating with investors to develop properties
under development of the Group through joint effort; (viii) successfully
procuring and negotiating the preliminary terms with larger property
development enterprises for the sale of property development projects
at a price deemed appropriate; and (ix) successfully negotiating with
the local tax authorities and postponing the finalisation and payment of
Land Appreciation Tax for certain property development projects which
had already met the requirement of finalisation of Land Appreciation
Tax.

Accordingly, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about the appropriateness of the use of going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying values
of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively, and to provide any further liabilities which may
arise. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN RS

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA") and to issue an auditor’'s report.
However, because of the matter described in the “Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 2 November 2023

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

She Shing Pang

Practising Certificate number: P05510
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEREBRER

Year ended 31 December 2022

E220229F 1231 HILF/E
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR®TT AREETIT
Revenue A 4 2,357,610 5,399,205
Cost of sales/services SHEARISEA (1,901,687) (4,644,153)
Gross profit EH 455,923 755,052
Valuation losses on investment properties WAL EEE 12 (580,529) (562,011)
Other income, net H AU A F 58 5(a) 50,541 52,994
Selling expenses HEER (133,941) (366,299)
Administrative expenses THEA (282,738) (436,539)
Other operating expenses Hibga &R 5(b) (566,839) (592,504)
Impairment losses on intangible assets EREEREEE 5(c), 13 - (747,845)
Impairment losses on trade receivables FEUBR BB E & 18 5(c), 32(a) (75,299) (311,290)
Impairment losses on other receivables B R EEE 5(c), 32(a) (364,820) =
Impairment losses on loans provided to third  IR# 4% = H N ERERIEE
parties, net BIFE 5(c), 32(a) (327,605) (899,173)
Impairment losses on loans provided to non-  RHLAAHTE A FISEIEAERS MY
controlling interests of subsidiaries ERRREEE 5(c), 32(a) - (63,819)
Impairment losses on loans provided to RIELEE RN TINERRRE
associates &8 5(c), 32(a) - (2,781)
Loss from operations BEER (1,825,307) (2,654,215)
Finance income BB A 6(a) 397,889 468,991
Finance costs BERA 6(a) (1,925,815) (1,588,057)
Share of results of associates FEIREE & N AR TR ES 18 15 67,366 (20,732)
Loss before taxation FRRAIESE 6 (3,285,867) (3,794,013)
Income tax (expenses) credit Frisi (A=) E R 7 (31,162) 64,059
Loss for the year TEEBR (3,317,029) (3,729,954)
Other comprehensive (loss) income for FRHEM2E(ER) WA (R
the year (after tax and reclassification MEFHSRAE)
adjustments)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or BT A AER 52 B Y
loss: EH -
Fair value change of other financial assets SR RERE MR ERESE
classified as fair value through other AAEFEZEMERE
comprehensive income ENAREZSH) (1,388) =
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to & Al fEEFT 7748 41575 7
profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences on translation HMEGING B R BB R
of financial statements of overseas FREEAEROBE 5 2258
subsidiaries (31,484) 5,462
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FezEka®
Year ended 31 December 2022
Bt F20224 1231 HIFFEZ
2022 2021
202245 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Hiat AR®TT ARETTT

Other comprehensive (loss) income for the FRAEM2E (BB KA

year (32,872) 5,462
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEREHGREHE (3,349,901) (3,724,492)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTEHRIEEERSIR :

Equity shareholders of the Company KA RIERARR (3,163,571) (3,672,714)

Non-controlling interests FEPERR A (153,458) (57,240)
Loss for the year TEEBR (3.317,029) (3,729,954)
Total comprehensive loss for the year UT&AREZEGIREE -

attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company RN BRI R (3,196,443) (3,667,252)

Non-controlling interests IR (153,458) (57,240)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEZEGRAHE (3,349,901) (3,724,492)
Loss per share (RMB) BERER(ARY) 10

Basic K (1.24) (1.44)

Diluted wE (1.24) (1.44)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

maEMERAER

As at 31 December 2022

R2022F12H31H
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR®TT ARETFT
Non-current assets EREDEE
Property and equipment EYSET 11 525,587 653,495
Investment properties B 12 11,551,558 12,027,711
Intangible assets BREEE 13 = =
Restricted deposits R HIFER 23 42,708 97,699
Investments in associates REE RN BRI E 15 1,307,842 1,240,631
Trade and other receivables JFE UK B 3% R EL A R LARR 22 47,716 266,481
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 16(b) 1,195,584 949,595
Other financial assets EfhemEE 17 73,903 137,209
Total non-current assets EREEEEE 14,744,898 15,372,821
Current assets T EnEE
Properties under development and BRAMENFBEHEE REDN
completed properties held for sale [BREID %7/ ES 18 25,305,928 28,600,968
Land development for sale FE LR 19 3,137,903 2,950,639
Contract costs AR 20 253,522 315,429
Trade and other receivables Ui B 5% B L i R LSRR 22 7,584,665 7,093,216
Trading securities BEEESH 25 86,304 114,515
Other financial assets HEtemEE 17 348,230 318,785
Restricted deposits ZRHIFER 23 280,359 400,312
Cash and cash equivalents REeMBLEFEY 641,300 1,189,204
Total current assets mENEEHEEH 37,638,211 40,983,068
Current liabilities 4 h=Ki
Loans and borrowings EFAER 26(g) 25,221,676 18,363,116
Trade and other payables & < BR FUFD £ A FE A 3R 27 10,633,672 8,427,250
Contract liabilities ERAE 21 5,106,238 7,795,544
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 18,945 15,719
Contract retention payables EREORES 127,934 121,369
Current tax liabilities AEAFHIEBE 16(a) 2,089,732 1,968,287
Total current liabilities HWREARE 43,198,197 36,691,285
Net current (liabilities) assets (8 R)EERE (5,559,986) 4,291,783
Total assets less current liabilities HSERERTHAR 9,184,912 19,664,604
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBIRAE
As at 31 December 2022
R2022F12H31H
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat AER®TT AREETTT
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Loans and borrowings BERAER 26(f) 1,594,983 8,386,541
Contract retention payables EREHRES 87,183 78,5635
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 41,088 49,481
Trade and other payables JFEE AT BR RN EL A FE - 3R 27 1,427,246 1,058,824
Deferred tax liabilities RIETFIABE 16(b) 2,048,355 2,756,097
Total non-current liabilities EREREEE 5,198,855 12,329,478
NET ASSETS HERE 3,986,057 7,335,126
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR R 29
Share capital fgs 20,174 20,174
Reserves (G 2,537,609 5,734,052
Total equity attributable to equity ENFRSGEREEESEN
shareholders of the Company 2,557,783 5,754,226
Non-controlling interests JERRRRES 1,428,274 1,580,900
TOTAL EQUITY oy 3,986,057 7,335,126

YR E123E308 B MirA B 53R E M 2023F 11 A
2HREEESHERITIETE WA TIATRER

These consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 308 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

2 November 2023 and signed on its behalf by e
YI Xiaodi FAN Xiaochong 2l B
Director Director EFE Ed
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEHERBEER

Year ended 31 December 2022

E220229F 1231 HILF/E
Capita Property
Share Share Treasury  redemption  Exchange General  revaluation Retained Non-controling
capital ~ premium shares Tesene resene  resenve fund B8V profits - interests
e Efh ] B RRERE MRE(RR  REE i
o3l RVB'O00  RMB'000 RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMB'000 RMB000
i S r ] ARE T T T T
Balance at 1 January 2021 RO E1 A1 RfER 081 333,638 (587) 517 (12647 807879 13036 5218161 9383184 2786832 12,170,016
Changes in equity for 2021; WNEERRSE:
Loss for year EMER = = = = = = - Bemndg  BeTnd (67240 (3729954

Other comprehensive income
Items that mey be reciassified
Subsequentlyto profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of overseas

subsidiaries - - - - 5,462 - - - 5,462 - 5,462
Total comprehensive loss TEERLE - - - - h462 - - eI (3,667,260 (572400 (3,724492)
Transactions with owners: EREARSHLS:

Contrbutions and distrbutions /A
Cancellation of dvidends declred TEEZNNF12A31BLLE
in respect ofthe year ended 31 FERZRE

Decerber 2020 29b) = = - - - - - 13137 13137 - 131371
Distrbution to non-controllng interests 1R - - - - - - - - - %)
Purchase and cancellation of own shares  EE Uz 290
- par valug paid ) = = = = = = = (8) = (8)
- premium paid - [911) - - - - - - (911) - (911)
- transfer between reserves - (13 - 13 - - - - - - -
Cancelation of treasury shares () 4] (582) 587 - - - - - - - -
Equiy transactions with noncontroling ~ EFARERNEER S

nterests 3% - - - - - - = (193924 (193924)  (407562)  (601.486)
Liquidation o subsidiares EENELAT - - - - = = = = = 3003 3003

([KI—F: G 3 - - SWN B (11BN (171039
Balance at 31 December 2021 RONE12AN AR 20,174 333,132 - 530 (7,185 807819 13036 1984660 575426 1580900 733,126
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FERREDRx
Year ended 31 December 2022
2202291231 H I F/Z
Retained
Capital Property profits Non-
Share Share  Treasury redemption  Exchange General  revaluation  Fairvalue (Accumulated controlling
capital  premium shares reserve reserve reserve fund Teserve Teserve losses] ~ Sub-total interests Total
k%  B#ER BFR RIREEE  MERE -RERES WREGHE OARERR  REEN i FHREE it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
AERTT AERTn ABRTR ABRTT ABRTR ABRTT ABRTR AERTn ABRTR ABRTR ABRTR ABRTR
Bolenceat T January 2022~ R022E1 A1BHER 0,174 3335132 - 530 (7,185) 807879 13,036 - 1984660 5754226 1580900 72335126
Changes in equity for 2022: 2022 HESE :
Loss for year ERER - - = = = = = - (3163571) (3163571  (153458)  (3:317,029)
Other compreensiveloss ~ Efr2EHE
ltem that wil not be
reciassitied toprofit or
loss:
Fairvalue change of WonBETREA
other financil assets BHirARfizA
Classified as fair e ;
valug through other ENDAEERY
comprehensive income - - - - - - - (1,388) - (1,388) - (1,388)
ftem that may be reckssited 2 ]
subsequently to proft or
loss:
Bxchange differenceson ~~ BERIBLH
franslation of financial
sttementsof overseas SEE
subsidiaries - - - - (31.484) - - - - (31,484) - (31,484)
Other comprehensiveloss Rt 2EE - - - - 3148 - - (1,388) - ) - [
Total comprehensiveloss 2 BB - - - - (31484) - - (1388)  (3.163571)  (3196443)  (153458)  (3,349,901)
Transactions with owners:  ESEAETHRS :
Contrbutions and dlstabutions HERAF
Deregistration of  subsidary 555 ] - - - - - - - - - - 832 832
Balance at 31 December  12022612R 31 R M
2022 # 20174 333,132 - 530 (38669) 807,879 13,036 (1.388)  (1578911)  2557,783 1428274 3,986,057
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERaRER

Year ended 31 December 2022

E220229F 1231 HILF/E
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR®TT ARETTT
Operating activities e T
Loss before taxation BB A 1R (3,285,867) (3,794,013)
Adjustments for: FEIAR :
— Depreciation —E 6(c) 133,848 130,831
- Valuation losses on investment properties ~ — X&) ELEEE 12 580,529 52,011
— Finance costs —RUE R 6(a) 1,925,815 1,688,057
- Finance income —EE WA 6(a) (397,889) (468,991)
— Net gain on disposal of property and — HEME MR BN FEE
equipment (219) (688)
- Net loss on disposal of investment —HEREMENEERFE
properties 5(b) - 159,798
- Loss on disposal of subsidiaries —REMBARKEE 5(a) - 5,628
— Impairment loss on trade and other — PR RN H b FE U ORI (B
receivable 18 767,724 1,267,063
— Impairment loss on intangible assets -\ B ERERE - 747,845
— Write-down of properties under development —3EFR¥EMIFIEIEE B
and completed properties held for sale B2 &R R 5 5(b) 388,290 400,349
— Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary —BUE—HMEB R RS AR
ol 6 35 (2,797) -
— Share of results of associates —FE(REE A RRFIBEE (67,366) 20,732
42,068 108,622
Decrease in properties under development ERPYENFEHEREN
and completed properties held for sale B IER LD 1,716,395 2,136,669
Increase in land development for sale FRE T HIFEE AN (187,264) (6,366)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other JFEE A2 B S Lt R LSk (3 )
receivables VS (1,602,213) 52,806
Decrease in restricted deposits R HITFEFOR D 173,415 134,779
Increase in trade and other payables, and JFEE 1T BIR SRR L At P AT SR R P AT
contract retention payables BHRBEILM 1,032,367 478,262
Decrease in contract liabilities aRaERD (324,751) (2,045,247)
Increase in contract costs & RPN AN (746) (20,149)
Cash generated from operation BEITDEENRS 849,271 839,376
Income tax paid [=ESIZIEST! (447,055) (526,414)
Net cash generated from operating BETDHELENR LR
activities 402,216 312,962
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HFeEBanER
Year ended 31 December 2022
B FE20229F12 831 HILFE
2022 2021
20224 20214F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Htat AR®TT AREETTT
Investing activities BRER
Finance income received B EE KA 15,000 86,255
Dividend income from the trade securities BE SHBHFREWA
received 3,076 -
Proceeds from disposal of property and B MR EFTSRIE
equipment 16,821 17,074
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYEMSRIE
properties - 67,384
Acquisition of property and equipment A KRR (22,890) (37,396)
Acquisition of investment properties BAREME (8,442) (92,901)
Net cash outflow from deconsolidation of BUHMTE A Al4RE AR
subsidiaries REm 558 35 (15,777) =
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries in NEFEHEWBE AT
previous year Fr1S5K38 230,000 1,135,811
Repayment of loans provided to a related party 3eft ¥Rl ER 2 EiE - 6,688
Loans provided to third parties ME=FREER (601,082) (889,313)
Repayment of loans provided to third parties Rt FE=FHNERZEE - 87,244
Loans provided to associates RHTEHEQNFTNER (13,347) (110)
Repayment of loans provided to non- R T IEERERNERZ
controlling interests EiE 4,583 223,615
Loans provided to non-controlling interests T IEERERNER (31,042) (102,163)
Other investing activities Hig & 40,760 226,594
Net cash (used in) generated from BETE(FRR)EED
investing activities R&Rd (382,340) 728,782
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

IREBEeERER
Year ended 31 December 2022
B FE2022F12A31 HIFFE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT AREETTT
Financing activities MR
Proceeds from loans and borrowings B AERF1S5RIE 24(a) 987,432 4,793,691
Repayment of loans and borrowings EEEZFER 24(a) (338,207) (3,281,345)
Repayment of senior notes BREBRER 24(a) (222,170) (1,485,069)
Repayment of senior green notes BREELAZEEE 24(a) - (83,789)
Repayment of corporate bonds EEQRES 24(a) - (2,466,292)
Redemption of convertible bonds B AT EmES 24(a) - (571,027)
Proceeds from issuance of corporate bonds  FE1TRA BIEHFTEHKIE 24(a) - 887,547
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes BITREZRIBFTIS A 24(a) - 741,305
Proceeds from issuance of senior green notes 31T 54k B EIE 1S 7UE 24(a) - 1,452,216
Interest paid ERFLE 24(a) (971,346) (2,231,367)
Decrease in restricted deposits PR F AR 24(a) 1,529 46,505
Proceeds from loans from related parties B H B3R TS 5 24(a) 2,676 =
Repayment of loans from related parties BEREEHANER 24(a) - (4,108)
Capital element of lease rentals paid Eﬁfﬁi’ffﬁﬁmﬁzﬁ*ﬁﬁ 24(a) (29,793) (28,678)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHERSHF S5 S 24(a) (8,641) (7,617)
Repurchase of own shares B%@ EE=g 30 - (919)
Distribution to non-controlling interests BT IR S 24(a) - (744,133)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEFFANRE R (578,520) (2,983,080)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent HE&MREFEMRLBE (558,644) (1,941,336)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MB1HMBR MR £E
= 1,189,204 3,071,779
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SEEEETHHTE 10,740 58,761
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December ##12A31HEHR &
BeaERY 641,300 1,189,204
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022
EtFE2022F 12531 HIFFE

General

Sunshine 100 China Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman lIslands on 20 September 2007. The Company's shares
were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is located at One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand
Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands, and its principal place of
business is located at 12th Floor, Tower D, No. 2 Guang Hua
Road, Beijing 100026, the People Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, its immediate
holding company is Joywise Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") with limited
liability, and its ultimate holding company is Harvest Well Holding
Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company,
the “Group”) and associates are set out in Notes 14 and 15 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2021 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of new/revised IFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective
from the current period as set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022

B FE2022F12A31 HIFFE
2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
amendment to IFRSs to these consolidated financial statements
for the current reporting period:

Amendments to IAS 16

Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to IAS 37

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to IFRS 3

Reference to the Conceptual Framework
Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 16: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments clarify the accounting requirements for
proceeds received by an entity from selling items produced
while testing an item of property, plant or equipment before it is
used for its intended purpose. An entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in
profit or loss and measures the cost of those items applying the
measurement requirements of IAS 2.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (for example, direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts (for example, an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract).

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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B FE20229F12 831 HILFE
2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

134 SUNSHINE 100 CHINA HOLDINGS LTD

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in 2018. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its requirement
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for some types of liabilities and contingent liabilities,
an entity applying IFRS 3 should instead refer to IAS 37. The
exception has been added to avoid an unintended consequence
of updating the reference.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements Project - 2018-2020 Cycle

IFRS 1: Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter

This amendment simplifies the application of IFRS 1 for a
subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter of IFRSs later
than its parent — i.e. if a subsidiary adopts IFRSs later than its
parent and applies IFRS 1.D16(a), then a subsidiary may elect
to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign
operations at amounts included in the consolidated financial
statements of the parent, based on the parent’'s date of
transition to IFRSs.

IFRS 9: Fees in the “10 per cent” Test for Derecognition of
Financial Liabilities

This amendment clarifies that — for the purpose of performing
the “10 per cent” test for derecognition of financial liabilities —
in determining those fees paid net of fees received, a borrower
includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf.

IFRS 16: Lease Incentives
The amendment removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements. As currently drafted,

Example 13 is not clear as to why such payments are not a lease
incentive.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Annual Improvements Project - 2018-2020 Cycle (Continued)

IAS 41: Taxation in Fair Value Measurements

This amendment removes the requirement to exclude cash
flows for taxation when measuring fair value, thereby aligning
the fair value measurement requirements in IAS 41 with those in
IFRS 13.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet adopted for the year
ended 31 December 2022

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of new/revised IFRSs
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2022 and which have not been adopted in these consolidated
financial statements. These include the following new/revised
IFRSs which may be relevant to the Group.
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Amendments to |IAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates
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Amendments to IAS 12, International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

(IR &R R 1 25RAMERT — [ BB 2 F — ST — DR R IR

2022 FERE

1 January 2023
20231 H1H
1 January 2023
20231 H1H

1 January 2023
20231 H1H

Bxi1o0hEERERAF 135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBERERME

Year ended 31 December 2022

EtFE2022F 12531 HIFFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. EEGHBEGE)

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet adopted for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (Continued) -2 16

CRMERKERE2022F12A31HILF
B AREET - SRR AT REE £

Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after

LT B A%

ZikRAmmEst

MR

Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes — Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

(BRI B 25 NER] — /AT 7E/ — BB IR XS 5 2 4 1y B8 EEFI B (B 1G5 o A
HE/

IFRS 17, Insurance 